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INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement is furnished in connection with the issuance by the City of Fruita,
Colorado (the “City™), of its Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A (the “Series 2009A
Bonds”), in the aggregate principal amount of $2,440,000 and its Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds
(Federally Taxable—Issuer Subsidy—Build America Bonds), Series 2009B (the “Taxable Series 2009B
Bonds™), in the aggregate principal amount of $10,125,000. Except as otherwise indicated, as used in the
remainder of this Official Statement, the term “Bonds” includes the Series 2009A Bonds and the Taxable
Series 2009B Bonds, and the term “interest on the Bonds” includes the interest on the Series 2009A
Bonds which is payable to the owners of the Series 2009A Bonds and the interest on the Taxable Series
2009B Bonds which is payable to the owners of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The offering of the
Bonds is made only by way of this Official Statement, which supersedes any other information or
materials used in connection with the offer or sale of the Bonds. The information set forth in this Official
Statement has been obtained from the City and from other sources believed to be reliable but is not
guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness. This Official Statement contains, in part, estimates and
matters of opinion which are not intended as statements of fact, and no representation or warranty is made
as to the correctness of such estimates and opinions, or that they will be realized.

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject
to change.

The following introductory material is only a brief description of, and is qualified by, the more
complete information contained throughout this Official Statement. A full review should be made of the
entire Official Statement and the documents summarized or described herein.

| 37115 The City is located along Interstate 70 in the northwest portion of Mesa
County (the “County™) in west central Colorado (the “State”), and is
approximately 13 miles west of Grand Junction, Colorado. The local
economy is based primarily on tourism, recreation, ranching and
farming. The City is a home-rule municipality that is governed pursuant
to the Colorado Constitution and a home rule Charter (the “Charter”).
The City encompasses approximately 4,468 acres (approximately seven
square miles) and has a current estimated population of 10,947. See
“THE CITY,” and the preceding “VICINITY MAP.”

SeCurity .ceeeveemecercnenissneecsvecans The Bonds are special, limited revenue obligations of the City payable
solely from a 1% increase in the City’s sales and use tax (the “Pledged
Sales and Use Tax™), which was approved by the City’s electors pursuant
to an election held on November 4, 2008, and commenced January 1,
2009. The City is required to deposit all revenues from the Pledged
Sales and Use Tax to the “Community Center Fund” established solely
for payment of the Bonds. Such Pledged Sales and Use Tax is reduced
from a rate of 1.0% to a rate of 0.4% on January 1* following the date on
which the Bonds are paid in full (but in no event is such reduction to
occur later than January 1, 2039) to provide for the constructing,
improving, equipping, operating and maintaining of the Project (defined
hereafter).

The Bonds are secured by a first lien (but not necessarily an exclusive
first lien) on: (i) the Pledged Sales and Use Tax, (i) all moneys on
deposit from time-to-time in the Community Center Fund, and (iii) the
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cash subsidy payments received from the United States Treasury with
respect to interest on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds (the “Federal
Direct Payments”)(collectively, the “Pledged Revenues”). The Bonds
are additionally secured by a reserve account of the Community Center
Fund (the “Reserve Account”) and a supplemental reserve account of the
Community Center Fund (the “Supplemental Reserve Account™). The
Reserve Account is to be initially established from Bond proceeds in the
amount of $1,256,500 and maintained in the amount of the Reserve
Account Requirement (as defined in “THE BONDS—Security for the
Bonds”). The Supplemental Reserve Account is to be initially
established in the amount of $500,000 from moneys currently on deposit
in the Community Center Fund (the “Supplemental Reserve Account
Requirement”). The Supplemental Reserve Account is to be maintained
until no later than December 1, 2019. See “THE BONDS—Security for
the Bonds.” Draws on or shortfalls within the Reserve Account and the
Supplemental Reserve Account are to be replenished from available
Pledged Revenues, however, the City has, in addition to such
replenishment requirement, made a moral obligation pledge, subject to
annual appropriation, to replenish the required amounts. See “THE
BONDS—Flow of Funds—City Replenishment Consideration and
Moral Obligation”.

Upon the date of issuance of the Bonds, no obligations other than the
Bonds will be payable from the Community Center Fund or the Pledged
Revenues; however, subject to express conditions, the Ordinance adopted
by the City Council of the City (the “Council”), as amended by an
amending ordinance adopted by the Council (collectively, the “Bond
Ordinance™) provides that the City may issue bonds or other obligations
having a lien on the Pledged Revenues and moneys on deposit in the
Community Center Fund which is on a parity with the lien of the Bonds
(the “Parity Lien Bonds”). See “THE BONDS—Security for the
Bonds.” See “DEBT STRUCTURE—Revenue and Other Financial
Obligations.”

The Bonds are being issued to (i) finance construction and equipping of a
community center (the “Project™); (ii) fund the Reserve Account; and
(i11) pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds, as described in “THE
BONDS—Application of Bond Proceeds” herein.

Assured Guaranty Corp. (the “Bond Insurer” or “Assured Guaranty”) has
committed to issue, effective as of the date of issuance of the Bonds, a
policy of insurance (the “Bond Insurance Policy”) guaranteeing the
payment, when due, of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The
insurance extends over the life of the issue and cannot be canceled by the
Bond Insurer. Payment under the Bond Insurance Policy is subject to the
conditions described in “BOND INSURANCE.” A specimen of the
Bond Insurance Policy is attached as APPENDIX F to this Official
Statement.

The Bonds mature and bear interest at the rates (computed on the basis of
a 360 day year of twelve 30 day months) as set forth on the cover page
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hereof. Interest on the Bonds is payable semiannually on April | and
October 1 of each year, commencing April 1, 2010. Principal of the
Bonds is payable to the registered owner thereof (initially Cede & Co.) at
the principal operations office of the Paying Agent. Payments to
Beneficial Owners will be made as described under the caption
“APPENDIX D-—Book-Entry-Only System.”

The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form and will be registered
initially in the name of “Cede & Co.” as nominee for The Depository
Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), a securities depository.
Beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds may be acquired through
Participants in the DTC system. Such beneficial ownership interests will
be recorded in the records of the Participants. So long as DTC or its
nominee is the Owner of the Bonds, payments of principal of and interest
on the Bonds, as well as notices and other communications made by or
on behalf of the City pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, will be made to
DTC or its nominee only. Disbursement of such payments, notices, and
other communications by DTC to Participants, and by Participants to the
Beneficial Owners, is the responsibility of DTC and the Participants
pursuant to rules and procedures established by such entities. See
“APPENDIX D-—Book-Entry-Only System” for a discussion of the
operating procedures of the DTC system with respect to payments,
registration, transfers, notices, and other matters.

The Bonds are issued in fully registered form in denominations of $5,000
each or integral multiples thereof.

Interest on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds is included in gross income
for federal income tax purposes. In the opinion of Kutak Rock LLP,
Bond Counsel, under existing laws, regulations, rulings and judicial
decisions and assuming continuing compliance with certain covenants,
interest on the Series 2009A Bonds is excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes and is not a specific preference item for
purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. The Series 2009A
Bonds have been designated by the City as “qualified tax exempt
obligations” under Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. In Bond Counsel’s
further opinion, under State of Colorado existing statutes, the Series
2009A Bonds and the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds and the income
therefrom are exempt from taxation in the State of Colorado, except
inheritance, estate, and transfer taxes. In addition, interest See “TAX
MATTERS?” herein.

The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity as set forth in
“THE BONDS—Prior Redemption.”

The purchase of the Bonds involves certain investment risks which are
discussed throughout this Official Statement. Investors must read this
entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of



an informed investment decision and should consider carefully the
information contained under “RISK FACTORS.”

Authority for Issuance.......... The Bonds are issued in conformity with the Charter and the constitution
and laws of the State, and pursuant to the Bond Ordinance. The issuance
of the Bonds, not to exceed the aggregate principal amount of
$15,000,000, was approved by a majority of the City’s electors at an
election held on November 4, 2008. Such Bonds are to be paid solely
from the Community Center Fund. Upon the issuance of the Bonds, the
City will have authorization to issue an additional $2,435,000 of revenue
bonds for the financing of the Project. See “THE BONDS—Security for
the Bonds.”

Delivery Information............ The Bonds are offered when, as, and if issued by the City and accepted
by George K. Baum & Company (the “Underwriter”), subject to prior
sale, the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel, and certain other
conditions. It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery
through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York on or about
November 12, 2009, against payment therefor.

Exchange and Transfer ........ While the Bonds remain in book-entry-only form, transfer and ownership
by Beneficial Owners may be made as described under the caption
“APPENDIX D—Book-Entry-Only System.”

Financial Statements ............ Appended hereto are the audited basic financial statements of the City as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, which are the most recent
audited financial statements available for the City.

ALL OF THE SUMMARIES OF THE STATUTES, ORDINANCES, OPINIONS,
CONTRACTS, AND AGREEMENTS DESCRIBED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT ARE
SUBJECT TO THE ACTUAL PROVISIONS OF SUCH DOCUMENTS. The summaries do not purport
to be complete statements of such provisions and reference is made to such documents, copies of which
are either publicly available or available upon request and the payment of a reasonable copying, mailing,
and handling charge from: City of Fruita, 325 East Aspen Avenue, Fruita, Colorado 81521, Telephone:
(970) 858-3663; or George K. Baum & Company, 1400 Wewatta Street, Suite 800, Denver, Colorado
80202, Telephone: (303) 292-1600.

RISK FACTORS

The purchase of the Bonds involves certain investment risks which are discussed throughout this
Official Statement, and each prospective investor should make an independent evaluation of all
information presented in this Official Statement in order to make an informed investment decision.
Particular attention should be given to the factors described below which, among others, could affect the
payment of debt service on the Bonds.

Limited Obligations

The Bonds do not constitute a lien upon any real or personal property of the City. Rather, the
Bonds constitute an irrevocable but nonexclusive first lien upon the Pledged Sales and Use Tax, the
moneys on deposit from time to time in the Community Center Fund (which deposits include the Reserve
Account and the Supplemental Reserve Account), and Federal Direct Payments. See also “THE



BONDS—Flow of Funds—City Replenishment Consideration and Moral Obligation” for a description of
the City’s moral obligation pledge, subject to annual appropriation, to replenish the required reserves in
the Reserve Account and the Supplemental Reserve Account. Therefore, the payment of the principal of,
premium if any, and interest on the Bonds and any Parity Lien Bonds is dependent on the City’s receipt of
the Pledged Sales and Use Tax, which no later than January 1, 2039, is to be reduced from a rate of 1.0%
to a rate of 0.4% on January 1* following the date on which the Bonds are paid in full to provide for the
constructing, improving, equipping, operating and maintaining of the Project. Bondholders may not look
to any general or other revenues of the City, including without limitation the proceeds of ad valorem
property taxes, for the payment of the principal of, premium if any, and interest on the Bonds, and the
Bonds do not constitute a debt or an indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any constitutional or
statutory provision or limitation; nor shall they be considered or held to be general obligations of the City.
See “DEBT STRUCTURE.”

Issuance of Parity Lien Bonds

Upon the issuance of the Bonds, the City will have authorization to issue an additional
$2,435,000 of revenue bonds for the financing of the Project, pursuant to an election held on November 4,
2008. The City may not issue more than $2,435,000 in additional bonds secured by the Pledged
Revenues without obtaining further authorization from the City’s electors and satisfying the requirements
of the Parity Lien Bond test set forth in the Bond Ordinance. Although the City has the authority to issue
Parity Lien Bonds, the City currently does not anticipate the issuance of additional bonds or other
obligations secured by a lien on the Pledged Revenues on a parity with the lien of the Bonds.

Economic Conditions

The Bonds are payable from Pledged Sales and Use Tax and the money on deposit from
time-to-time in the Community Center Fund. Collections of sales and use taxes are subject to the elastic
nature of consumer spending. This causes sales and use tax revenues to increase along with higher prices
brought about by inflation, but also causes receipts to be vulnerable to adverse economic conditions and
reduced consumer confidence which may result in reduced spending. Additionally, the economy in the
City is based primarily on tourism and its secondary effects. A downturn in such industry could have a
material effect on the level of sales and use tax receipts received by the City. Future sales and use tax
receipts may fluctuate from historical levels and therefore may affect the level of debt service coverage.
Collections of the City’s sales and use taxes for the first twelve-month period ending August 31, 2009 are
down 17.5% from the preceding twelve-month period. Finally, the level of City sales and use taxes may
be affected in the future by Internet and mail order commerce as discussed in the following paragraph.

Effect of Internet Sales on e-Commerce Taxable Sales

The City’s sales and use tax is not imposed on internet sales of retailers that do not have a
physical presence in the State. The future level of taxable retail sales which occurs within the City may
be affected by the level of internet sales (also known as e-commerce). Such e-commerce vendors may
compete with local retail businesses and may reduce the taxable retail sales which otherwise would occur
- within the City. The ultimate impact of internet sales on the level of taxable retail sales which occurs
within the City cannot be determined at this time but such impact could be material.

Federal Subsidy Payment on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds

The City intends to elect to designate the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds as Build America Bonds
for the purposes of the Recovery Act and to receive a cash subsidy payment (also referred to herein as the
Federal Direct Payments) from the United States Treasury equal to 35% of the interest payable on the



Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The interest subsidy payments from the U.S. Treasury will be made
directly to the City and, in accordance with the Bond Ordinance, the City is required to deposit the same
directly into the Community Center Fund.

IRS Notice 2009-26 states: “In general, for fixed rate bonds, upon receipt of a timely Form 8038-
CP requesting payment of the credit, such amount i.e., the Federal Direct Payment will be paid on a
contemporaneous basis by the applicable interest payment date.” According to the U.S. Treasury
Department, its priority of making the cash subsidy payment is the same as the United States Treasury
refunding overpayments of tax. In the event that the City does not receive the Federal Direct Payments in
a timely fashion to pay 35% of the stated interest on each Interest Payment Date for the Taxable Series
2009B Bonds, then the City is obligated to pay such amounts from other Pledged Revenues. The Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 imposes requirements on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds that the City must
continue to meet after the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are issued in order to receive the Federal Direct
Payments. These requirements generally involve the way that Taxable Series 2009B Bond proceeds must
be invested and ultimately used, and the periodic requests for payment. If the City does not meet these
requirements, it is possible that the City may not receive the Federal Direct Payments. Although the City
will covenant in a certificate delivered on the date of issuance of the Bonds to take the actions necessary
to ensure receipt of the Federal Direct Payments, failure to comply with such covenant does not constitute
an Event of Default under the Bond Ordinance. As a result, in the event that the City fails to comply with
such covenant, no assurance is given that the Federal Direct Payments will be received.

Furthermore, in certain circumstances, the cash subsidy payments to be made to the City may be
reduced (offset) by amounts determined to be applicable under the Code and regulations promulgated
thereunder. For example, offsets may occur by reason of any past-due legally enforceable debt of the
City to any Federal agency. The amount of any such offsets is not predictable, and the City does not
currently expect that any such offsets will apply to the credits the City expects to receive.

Enforceability of Bondholders’ Remedies Upon Default

In the event of a default in the payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds, there is no
provision for acceleration of maturity of the principal of the Bonds. Consequently, remedies available to
registered owners and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may have to be enforced from year to year.
Moreover, there is no bond trustee or similar person or entity to monitor or enforce the provisions of the
Bond Ordinance on behalf of the registered owners and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, and therefore
such registered owners and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds should be prepared to enforce such
provisions themselves if the need to do so ever arises.

The remedies available to the owners of the Bonds upon a default are in many respects dependent
upon judicial action, which is often subject to discretion and delay under existing constitutional law,
statutory law and judicial decisions, including specifically the federal Bankruptcy Code. The legal
opinions to be delivered concurrently with delivery of the Bonds will be qualified as to enforceability of
the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by bankruptcy, reorganization and insolvency or
other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally, now or hereafter in effect; to usual principles
of equity which may limit the specific enforcement under State law of certain remedies; to the exercise by
the United States of America of the powers delegated to it by the federal Constitution; and to the
reasonable and necessary exercise, in certain exceptional situations, of the police power inherent in the
sovereignty of the State and its governmental bodies in the interest of serving an important public

purpose.



Legal Constraints on City Operations

Various Colorado statutory provisions apply to the imposition and collection of the City’s sales
and use tax and generally regulate the financing of City operations. There can be no assurance that there
will not be changes in interpretation of, or additions to, the applicable laws and regulations which would
have a material adverse effect, directly or indirectly, on the affairs of the City.

THE BONDS
Description

The Bonds are issued in the principal amount, dated as of the dated date, mature on the dates and
bear interest at the rates set forth on the cover page hereof. Certain matters relating to the Bonds are
described in detail in “INTRODUCTION” and are not restated under this caption. These include
provisions regarding redemption of the Bonds, registration and denominations of the Bonds, exchange
and transfer of the Bonds; payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds; a
description of the authority for issuance of the Bonds; and information regarding the delivery of the
Bonds.

Designation of Taxable Series 2009B Bonds as “Build America Bonds”

The Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are being issued as “Build America Bonds” for purposes of the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 signed into law on February 17, 2009 (the “Recovery
Act”). Pursuant to the Recovery Act, the City expects to receive a cash subsidy payment from the United
States Treasury (referred to herein as the Federal Direct Payments) equal to 35% of the interest payable
on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds on or prior to each Interest Payment Date, assuming submittal by the
City of the appropriate requests for payment in a timely manner. The cash payment does not constitute a
full faith and credit guarantee of the United States Government, but is required to be paid by the United
States Treasury under the Recovery Act. Federal Direct Payments received by the City are to be
deposited into the Community Center Fund.

Prior Redemption

Optional Redemption of the Bonds. The Bonds maturing on and after October 1, 2020 are
subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the City, in whole or in part in integral multiples
of $5,000, and if in part in such order of maturities as the City shall determine and by lot within a
maturity, on October 1, 2019 and on any date thereafter, at a redemption price equal to the principal
amount of the redeemed Bonds, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, and without redemption
premium.

‘ Extraordinary Event Redemption — Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The Taxable Series 2009B
Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities, at the option of the City, in whole but not
in part, upon the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event (as defined in the following sentence), from any
source of available funds, on the dates and at the price, including premium not to exceed three percent of
the principal amount so redeemed. An “Extraordinary Event” will have occurred if a material adverse
change has occurred to Section 54AA or 6431 of the Tax Code pursuant to which the City’s 35% cash
subsidy payment from the United States Treasury, defined herein as the Federal Direct Payments, is
reduced or eliminated.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption — Series 20094 Bonds. The Series 2009A Bonds
maturing on October 1, 2039, are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption by lot on October 1 of



the years and in the principal amounts specified below, at a redemption price equal to the principal
amount thereof (without redemption premium), plus accrued interest to the redemption date:

Years Principal Amount
2035 $410,000
2036 395,000
2037 385,000
2038 370,000
2039 370,000
I’Maturity date. k

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption — Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The Taxable Series
2009B Bonds maturing on October 1, 2029, are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption by lot on
October 1 of the years and in the principal amounts specified below, at a redemption price equal to the
principal amount thereof (without redemption premium), plus accrued interest to the redemption date:

Years Principal Amount
2020 $160,000
2021 190,000
2022 220,000
2023 255,000
2024 290,000
2025 330,000
2026 370,000
2027 415,000
2028 460,000
2029 ' 510,000

T Maturity date.

The Taxable Series 2009B Bonds maturing on October 1, 2034, are subject to mandatory sinking
fund redemption by lot on October 1 of the years and in the principal amounts specified below, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof (without redemption premium), plus accrued
interest to the redemption date:

Years Principal Amount
2030 $565,000
2031 620,000
2032 680,000
2033 745,000
2034 " 815,000

T Maturity date.

The Taxable Series 2009B Bonds maturing on October 1, 2039, are subject to mandatory sinking
fund redemption by lot on October 1 of the years and in the principal amounts specified below, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof (without redemption premium), plus accrued
interest to the redemption date:



Years Principal Amount

2035 $ 450,000
2036 550,000
2037 650,000
2038 750,000
2039 ! 1,100,000

T o Aare
Maturity date.

Redemption Procedures. Notice of any redemption of Bonds will be given by the Paying Agent
in the name of the City by sending a copy of such notice by first class, postage prepaid mail, not less than
30 days prior to the redemption date, to the Owner of each Bond being redeemed. Such notice is to
specify the number or numbers of the Bonds so to be redeemed (if redemption is in part) and the
redemption date. If any Bond shall have been duly called for redemption and if, on or before the
redemption date, there shall have been deposited with the Paying Agent in accordance with the Bond
Ordinance funds sufficient to pay the redemption price of such Bond on the redemption date, then such
Bond shall become due and payable at such redemption date, and from and after such date interest will
cease to accrue thereon. Failure to deliver any redemption notice or any defect in any redemption notice
shall not affect the validity of the proceeding for the redemption of Bonds with respect to which such
failure or defect did not occur. Any Bond redeemed prior to its maturity by prior redemption or otherwise
shall not be reissued and shall be cancelled.

Application of Bond Proceeds

The Project. The net proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to finance the construction
and equipping of an approximate 47,000 square foot community center. The Project is expected to
include, among others, aquatics facilities, pool party rooms, a gymnasium, a senior meeting room, multi-
use meeting rooms, a group exercise studio, fitness/wellness areas, child care facilities, locker rooms,
family changing rooms, updating of the existing City outdoor pool, lobby spaces and staff office spaces,
all as more particularly described below.

The approximate 14,153 square foot aquatics facilities is expected have a large warm water pool
with many features including: easy walk-in access, a large 18-inch depth toddler section, an adjacent
climbing wall, a slide with an eight-foot drop, several lap lanes, a diving board, a lazy river for resistance
walking or floating, and a hot tub.

An approximate 1,596 square foot senior center is also expected be constructed within the
community center. The senior center is expected to be free of charge and provide much needed services
to the senior community, including a senior lunch program and senior fitness programs. In addition, the
community center is expected to include, among others, an approximate 11,424 square foot gymnasium,
an approximate 2,688 square foot indoor running track, an approximate 844 square foot child sitting
room, an approximate 3,063 square feet of multipurpose meeting room space, an approximate 500 square
foot catering kitchen, an approximate 4,188 square foot fitness/wellness area, an approximate
1,911 square foot aerobics/dance room, an approximate 3,125 square feet of locker room space and an
approximate 3,388 square feet of lobby and staff offices.

The anticipated life of the Project is approximately 35 years, exceeding the weighted average
maturity of the Bonds. Construction is expected to begin in November 2009 and is expected to be
complete by January 2011. According to City officials, the City is employing a “Construction
Management/General Contractor” model for delivery of design and construction services. The model is



to allow the City for more accurate estimates of cost throughout the Project. The City is expected to hire
a contractor during the schematic design process and ask for a “Guaranteed Maximum Price” after design
documentation is complete. If costs of the Project exceed funds available, program and facility
expenditures are expected to be adjusted or cut from the overall Project to be within budget. In addition,
contingency funds are to be included within all budgeting. Contingency funds are to be reduced as the
Project moves forward and as risk of cost fluctuation and overruns are reduced.

The City expects to hire five new full-time staff in its Parks and Recreation Department,
including a facility manager, a programs coordinator, a front desk/marketing coordinator, an aquatics
coordinator and a building maintenance worker. In addition, part-time staff expected to be hired include
lifeguards and water safety instructors, front desk attendants, child care attendants, program instructors
and custodial staff.

Application of Bond Proceeds. The estimated application of the proceeds of the Bonds is as
follows:

SOURCES
Series 2000A BONA PLOCEEAS ....ooiieeee e e e eree e e e e e eeanens $ 2,440,000.00
Taxable Series 20098 Bond Proceeds ......oovvvveeeeeeeieiiiiiieeeieeeeeaeeaenns 10,125,000.00
Original Issue Premium on Series 2009A Bonds.....ccccovvviiiiiiiiiccieeeiee e 42,310.50
CiIty CONIIDULION .....evieieiiieiiiie e e e ete et e ettt e e e e e s e s satteenreeeensseeessaesssneeaannenss 145.166.48
T OtA] oot e e e e et a e e e e e e e s $12.752.476.98
USES
Deposit t0 Project ACCOUNL ...co..oiiiiiiiiiienii ettt ee ettt et et et sbe e e $10,918,750.04
Deposit t0 RESEIVE ACCOUNL.......cciiiiieiieeeiiieeitieeceeeaerreaessneeesareeeeeeeseeaesaeeeeaaees 1,256,500.00
Costs of issuance, including underwriting discount,' bond insurance premium, 2
professional fees and Printing COSES......ccvviiriiiiiieriie e e e 577.226.94
O AL ettt e e e e e e e earae e ans $12.752,476.98

'See “MISCELLANEOUS—Underwriting.”
2 A portion of the bond insurance premium will be paid from the City’s Contribution in the amount specified above.

Security for the Bonds

Special Limited Obligations. The Bonds are special, limited revenue obligations of the City.
The City has pledged a first lien, but not necessarily an exclusive first lien, on the Pledged Revenues for
the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, and any Parity Lien Bonds at
any time Outstanding. The Pledged Revenues include all of the Pledged Sales and Use Tax and all
moneys on deposit from time-to-time in the Community Center Fund.

The City has covenanted in the Bond Ordinance that it will not pledge or create any other lien on
the Pledged Revenues that is superior to the lien thereon of the Bonds. The City is not prohibited from
issuing additional parity obligations, subordinate lien obligations and pledging or creating a subordinate
lien on the Pledged Revenues, provided that no Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing.
See “—Parity Lien Bonds” below for a discussion of the requirements that must be satisfied prior to the
issuance of Parity Lien Bonds.

Flow of Funds

Pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, immediately upon receipt of the Pledged Sales and Use Tax, all
revenues therefrom will be deposited to the Community Center Fund in the following order of priority:
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(1) to the credit of the Interest Sub-Account, the amounts discussed in “—Bond Account” below and to
the credit of any other bond account established for the payment of interest on any Parity Lien Bonds; (ii)
to the credit of the Principal Sub-Account, the amounts discussed in “—Bond Account” below and to the
credit of any other bond account established for the payment of principal on any Parity Lien Bonds; (iii)
to the credit of the Reserve Account the amounts discussed in “—Reserve Account” below and to the
credit of any other account established as a reserve account for any Parity Lien Bonds; (iv) to the credit of
the Supplemental Reserve Account the amounts discussed in “—Supplemental Reserve Account” below;
(v) to the credit of any other fund or account thereafter established for the payment of the principal of,
premium if any, and interest on subordinate lien obligations, including any sinking fund, reserve fund, or
similar fund or account established therefor, the amounts required by the ordinance or other enactment
authorizing issuance of said subordinate lien obligations; and (vi) for any other purpose permitted under
the City’s Municipal Code (the “Municipal Code”) for the Community Center Fund.

Bond Account. Moneys deposited in the Bond Account will be used solely for the purpose of
paying the principal of, premium if any, and interest on the Bonds. The Principal Sub-Account will be
used to pay the principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds, and the Interest Sub-Account will be used
to pay the interest on the Bonds.

On or before the last day of each month, commencing in the month next succeeding the date of
issuance of the Bonds, the City will credit to the Interest Sub-Account, from the Pledged Revenues and
any interest income to be deposited in the Interest Sub-Account pursuant to the terms of the Bond
Ordinance, an amount equal to the Pro Rata Portion of the interest to come due on the Bonds on the next
succeeding Interest Payment Date.

On or before the last day of each month, commencing in the month next succeeding the date of
issuance of the Bonds, the City will credit to the Principal Sub-Account, from the Pledged Revenues and
any interest income to be deposited in the Principal Sub-Account pursuant to the terms of the Bond
Ordinance, an amount equal to the Pro Rata Portion of the principal coming due on the Bonds on the next
succeeding Principal Payment Date.

Moneys deposited in the Bond Account may be invested or deposited in securities or obligations
which are lawful investments permitted for the investment of fund of the City by the laws of the State of
Colorado (“Permitted Investments™). The investment of moneys deposited in the Bond Account will,
however, be subject to the covenants and provisions of the section of the Bond Ordinance entitled
“Covenants Regarding Exclusion of Interest on Bonds from Gross Income for Federal Income Tax
Purposes.” Except to the extent otherwise required by such section, all interest income from the
investment or reinvestment of moneys deposited in any sub-account of the Bond Account will remain in
and become part of such sub-account.

Reserve Account. The Reserve Account will initially be funded from Bond proceeds in the
amount of $1,256,500, initially equal to the Reserve Account Requirement (as defined below). Moneys
in the Reserve Account will be used, if necessary, only to prevent a default in the payment of the principal
of, premium if any, and interest on the Bonds when due. Moneys on deposit in the Reserve Account,
proceeds of the liquidation of Permitted Investments on deposit in the Reserve Account or moneys
available from a Reserve Account Contract will be transferred to the Bond Account on any date on which
a payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds is due to the extent the amount on
deposit in the Bond Account is insufficient to make such payment.

The “Reserve Account Requirement” as of any date on which it is calculated, is equal to the least

of (a) 10% of the principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds, (b) the maximum annual debt service in any
calendar year on the Outstanding Bonds, or (c) 125% of the average annual debt service on the
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Outstanding Bonds; provided, however, at no time is the amount of the Reserve Account Requirement,
when combined with moneys, if any, on deposit in the Supplemental Reserve Account, be less than the
Combined Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements (generally defined as the maximum annual
amount required to be paid in any calendar year as the principal of and interest on the Bonds and any
outstanding Parity Lien Bonds) required to be paid in any calendar year in connection with the
Outstanding Bonds including in the required amount that portion of the interest obligation which is
expected to be paid from Federal Direct Payments, the intent being that such required amount not be net
of the Federal Direct Payments.

The Reserve Account Requirement will be funded and maintained by any one of or any
combination of (i) cash; (ii) Permitted Investments; and (iii) with the prior written consent of the Bond
Insurer, if any, a Reserve Account Contract which provides for payments when and as required for
purposes of the Reserve Account. The Reserve Account Contract must be issued by an obligor whose
obligations such as the Reserve Account Contract are either (A) rated by a Rating Agency as investment
grade, or (B) if a rating has been obtained on the Bonds, whose obligations are rated by each Rating
Agency that then maintains a rating on the Bonds in a category (or comparable classification) equal to or
higher than the category, if any, in which the Bonds are rated, or will not impact the rating on the Bonds;
provided, however, if the Reserve Account Contract is issued by the Bond Insurer, if any, then no rating
standard shall apply to the obligor for such Reserve Account Contract.

Cash will satisfy the Reserve Account Requirement by the amount of cash on deposit. Permitted
Investments will satisfy the Reserve Account Requirement by the value of such investments. The value
of each Permitted Investment on deposit in the Reserve Account will be its purchase price from the date
of purchase and thereafter its fair market value determined as of each calculation date. A Reserve
Account Contract will satisfy the Reserve Account Requirement by the amount payable to the City
pursuant to such contract.

The Reserve Account Requirement will be calculated not less than annually. If at any time the
calculated amount of the Reserve Account is less than the Reserve Account Requirement or transfers are
made from the Reserve Account as provided in the Bond Ordinance, then the City will deposit to the
Reserve Account from the Pledged Revenues, amounts sufficient to bring the amount deposited in the
Reserve Account to the Reserve Account Requirement. If at any time the calculated amount of the
Reserve Account is more than the Reserve Account Requirement, then the City will transfer to the Bond
Account such amount which is in excess of the Reserve Account Requirement. Such deposits will be
made as soon as possible after such use or calculation, but in accordance with and subject to the
limitations of the section of the Bond Ordinance entitled “Deposit of Pledged Revenues.”

The investment of moneys deposited in the Reserve Account will be subject to the covenants and
provisions of the section of the Bond Ordinance entitled “Covenants Regarding Exclusion of Interest on
Bonds from Gross Income for Federal Income Tax Purposes.” Except to the extent otherwise required by
such section, interest income from the investment or reinvestment of moneys deposited in the Reserve
Account will be transferred to the Bond Account.

Supplemental Reserve Account. The Supplemental Reserve Account will be funded from
moneys on deposit in the Community Center Fund on the date of the issuance of and delivery of the
Bonds in the amount of $500,000 (the “Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement”). Moneys in the
Supplemental Reserve Account will be used, if necessary, only to prevent a default in the payment of the
principal of, premium if any, and interest on the Bonds when due and prior to the use of any moneys in
the Reserve Account for such purpose. Moneys on deposit in the Supplemental Reserve Account,
proceeds of the liquidation of Permitted Investments on deposit in the Reserve Account will be
transferred to the Bond Account on any date on which a payment of principal of, premium, if any, or
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interest on the Bonds is due to the extent the amount on deposit in the Bond Account is insufficient to
make such payment. The Supplemental Reserve Account is to be maintained within the Community
Center Fund until the earlier of December 1, 2019 or such time as the Sales and Use Tax for two
consecutive calendar years has been equal to at least 150% of the sum of the Combined Maximum
Principal and Interest Requirements (as defined below) due or to become due on the Bonds and any
outstanding Parity Lien Bonds.

The Supplemental Reserve Account is to be maintained, until terminated as provided above, by
any one of or any combination of cash or Permitted Investments. The investment of moneys deposited in
the Supplemental Reserve Account will be subject to the covenants and provisions of the section of the
Bond Ordinance entitled “Covenants Regarding Build America Bonds”.

Cash shall satisfy the Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement by the amount of cash on
deposit. Permitted Investments shall satisfy the Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement by the value
of such investments. The value of each Permitted Investment on deposit in the Supplemental Reserve
Account shall be its purchase price from the date of purchase and thereafter its fair market value
determined as of each calculation date required pursuant to paragraph (d) of this section.

The Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement is to be calculated not less than annually. If at
any time the calculated amount of the Supplemental Reserve Account is less than the Supplemental
Reserve Account Requirement or transfers are made from the Supplemental Reserve Account, then the
City is to deposit to the Supplemental Reserve Account from the Pledged Revenues, amounts sufficient to
bring the amount deposited in the Supplemental Reserve Account to the Supplemental Reserve Account
Requirement. Such deposits are to be made as soon as possible after such use or calculation, but in
accordance with and subject to the limitations of the Bond Ordinance. If at any time the calculated
amount of the Supplemental Reserve Account is more than the Supplemental Reserve Account
Requirement, then the City shall apply such excess amount to any lawful use of moneys in the
Community Center Fund in accordance with the Municipal Code.

City Replenishment Consideration and Moral Obligation. 1f, at any time, the Supplemental
Reserve Account is not funded at the Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement on a date which is 90
days prior to an Interest Payment Date or a Principal Payment Date, the Manager of the City is to prepare
and submit to the Council a request for an appropriation of a sufficient amount to replenish the
Supplemental Reserve Account to the Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement. The Council may
determine in its sole discretion, but is not required, to make the appropriations so requested. All sums
appropriated by the Council for such purpose will be considered a loan of legally available moneys of the
City to the Community Center Fund, may draw interest until repaid at rate determined by the Council at
the time the appropriation is made, and shall be deposited in the Supplemental Reserve Account. The
repayment obligation for any loan shall be subordinate to the payment of the Bonds. While the Council
has agreed to consider funding the Supplemental Reserve Account pursuant to the terms of Bond
Ordinance to provide additional assurance that the Supplemental Reserve Account will annually be
funded at the Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement, the Council’s decision not to so fund the
Supplemental Reserve Account will not constitute an Event of Default under the Bond Ordinance.

Following the date on which the Supplement Reserve is not required to be maintained pursuant to
the terms of the Bond Ordinance, if, at any time, the Reserve Account is not funded at the Reserve
Account Requirement on a date which is 90 days prior to an Interest Payment Date or a Principal Payment
Date, the Manager of the City is to prepare and submit to the Council a request for an appropriation of a
sufficient amount to replenish the Reserve Account to the Reserve Account Requirement. The Council
may determine in its sole discretion, but is not required, to make the appropriations so requested. All
sums appropriated by the Council for such purpose are to be considered a loan of legally available
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moneys of the City to the Community Center Fund, may draw interest until repaid at rate determined by
the Council at the time the appropriation is made, and is to be deposited in the Reserve Account. The
repayment obligation for any loan will be subordinate to the payment of the Bonds. While the Council
has agreed to consider funding the Reserve Account pursuant to the terms of the Bond Ordinance to
provide additional assurance that the Reserve Account will annually be funded at the Reserve Account
Requirement, the Council’s decision not to so fund the Reserve Account shall not constitute an Event of
Default under the Bond Ordinance.

Project Account. All moneys deposited in the Project Account shall be applied solely to the
payment of the costs of the Project. Upon the determination of the Council that all Project costs have
been paid or are determinable, any balance remaining in the Project Account (less any amounts necessary
to pay Project costs not then due and owing) shall be transferred to the Bond Account.

Moneys deposited in the Project Account may be invested or deposited in securities or obligations
that are Permitted Investments. The investment of moneys deposited in the Project Account shall,
however, be subject to the covenants and provisions of the section of the Bond Ordinance entitled
“Covenants Regarding Exclusion of Interest on Bonds from Gross Income for Federal Income Tax
Purposes.” Except to the extent otherwise required by such section, interest income from the investment
or reinvestment of moneys deposited in the Project Account shall remain in and become part of the
Project Account.

Events of Default and Remedies. The Bond Ordinance provides that the occurrence or existence
of any one or more of the following events will be an “Event of Default” thereunder: (a) failure to make
any payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds when due under the Bond
Ordinance; (b) breach by the City of any material covenant set forth in the Bond Ordinance or failure by
the City to perform any material duty imposed on it under the Bond Ordinance and continuation of such
breach or failure for a period of 60 days after receipt by the City Attorney of the City of written notice
thereof from the Paying Agent or from the Owners of at least 10% in principal amount of the Outstanding
Bonds, provided that such 60 day period will be extended so long as the City has commenced and
continues a good faith effort to remedy such breach or failure; or (c) an order or decree is entered by a
court of competent jurisdiction appointing a receiver for all or any portion of the revenues and moneys
pledged for the payment of the Bonds pursuant to the Bond Ordinance is entered with the consent or
acquiescence of the City or is entered without the consent or acquiescence of the City but is not vacated,
discharged or stayed within 30 days after it is entered. Each Owner of any Bond will be entitled to all of
the privileges, rights and remedies provided or permitted in the Bond Ordinance and as otherwise
provided or permitted by law or in equity.

Upon the occurrence and continuance of any Event of Default, the Owners of not less than 25%
in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, including, without limitation, a trustee or trustees
therefor, may proceed against the City to protect and to enforce the rights of any Owner of Bonds under
the Bond Ordinance by mandamus, injunction or by other suit, action or special proceedings in equity or
at law, in any court of competent jurisdiction: (i) for the payment of interest on any installment of
principal of any Bond that was not paid when due at the interest rate borne by such bond, (ii) for the
appointment of a receiver or an operating trustee, (iii) for the specific performance of any covenant
contained in the Bond Ordinance, (iv) to enjoin any act that may be unlawful or in violation of any right
of any Owner of any Bond, (v) to require the City to act as if it were the trustee of an express trust, (vi)
for any other proper legal or equitable remedy as such Owner may deem most effectual to protect their
rights, or (vii) any combination of such remedies or as otherwise may be authorized by any statute or
other provision of law; provided, however, that acceleration of any amount not yet due on the Bonds
according to their terms shall not be an available remedy. All such proceedings at law or in equity shall
be instituted, had and maintained for the equal benefit of ali Owners of Bonds then Outstanding. Any
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receiver or operating trustee appointed in any proceedings to protect the rights of Owners of Bonds under
the Bond Ordinance may collect, receive and apply all revenues and moneys pledged for the payment of
the Bonds pursuant to the Bond Ordinance arising after the appointment of such receiver or operating
trustee in the same manner as the City itself might do. The failure of any Owner of any Bond then
Outstanding to proceed in any manner provided in the Bond Ordinance shall not relieve the City of any
liability for failure to perform or carry out its duties under the Bond Ordinance. Each right or privilege of
any such Owner (or trustee therefor) is in addition and is cumulative to any other right or privilege, and
the exercise of any right or privilege by or on behalf of any Owner shall not be deemed a waiver of any
other right or privilege thereof.

Additional Covenants of the City. Pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, the City covenants for the
benefit of Owners of the Bonds that:

¢ The City will not reduce the percentage of the Pledged Sales and Use Tax deposited to the
Community Center Fund pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, will not reduce the rate of the Pledged
Sales and Use Tax, and will not alter, exempt or modify the transactions, properties or items
subject to the Pledged Sales and Use Tax in any manner that the City expects will materially
reduce the amounts available for deposit into the Community Center Fund.

o The City will manage the collection and enforcement of the Pledged Sales and Use Tax in the
most efficient and economical manner practicable.

o The City will keep or cause to be kept such books and records showing the proceeds of the
Pledged Sales and Use Tax, in which complete entries shall be made in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, as applicable to governmental entities, and the Owner of any
Bond will have the right at all reasonable times to inspect all non confidential records, accounts,
actions and data of the City relating to the Bonds, the Pledged Sales and Use Tax and the
Community Center Fund.

e The City will cause an annual audit to be made of the books relating to the Pledged Sales and Use
Tax each year by a certified public or registered accountant and shall furnish a copy thereof to the
Underwriter at its request and to any Owner who so requests and agrees to pay the cost of
reproduction and mailing. The annual audit of the City’s general purpose financial statements
shall be deemed to satisfy this covenant.

Parity Lien Bonds. The Bond Ordinance provides that the City shall not issue Parity Lien Bonds
unless all of the following conditions are satisfied:

o In the event that the Bonds are not issued in the principal amount of $15,000,000, for whatever
reason, the City shall be permitted to issue the remaining unissued principal amount authorized by
the Bond Ordinance without meeting the condition set forth in (i) or (ii) below, but with the
consent of the Bond Insurer. For all other proposed Parity Lien Bonds, the City is required to
obtain a written certification from a Certified Public Accountant that either:

1) the Pledged Sales and Use Tax for any 24 consecutive months in the 36
months immediately preceding the month in which such certification is delivered
(referred to in this paragraph as the “test period”) have been equal to at least 150% of the
sum of the Combined Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements due or to become
due on the Bonds, any Outstanding Parity Lien Bonds, and the proposed Parity Lien
Bonds during each calendar year following the date of issuance of the proposed Parity
Lien Bonds; or
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(i1) the proceeds of the proposed Parity Lien Bonds will be used to refund
the Bonds or Outstanding Parity Lien Bonds and the aggregate principal of and interest
due on the proposed Parity Lien Bonds is not greater than the aggregate principal of and
interest due on the bonds that will be refunded.

For purposes of the above test, the “Combined Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements”
means the maximum annual amount required to be paid in any calendar year as the principal of
(including any mandatory sinking fund requirements) and interest on the Bonds, any outstanding
Parity Lien Bonds and proposed Parity Lien Bonds, excluding any such bonds which have been
defeased pursuant to the terms of the authorizing documents. For purposes of calculating the
Combined Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements in any calendar year in which any issue
of Bonds and Parity Lien Bonds finally mature, there is to be subtracted from the final payment
for said bonds any cash or the present value of any investments deposited in a reserve fund or
account established pursuant to the authorizing documents which are properly allocable to said
bonds. Further, in calculating Combined Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements due or to
become due on the Bonds, any outstanding Parity Lien Bonds, and the proposed Parity Lien
Bonds in any calendar year, that portion of the interest obligation which is expected to be paid
from Federal Direct Payments are to be excluded from the calculation of the amounts required to
be paid, the intent being that such amounts be net of the Federal Direct Payments.

o The ordinance, indenture or other document providing for the issuance of the Parity Lien Bonds
must provide for a reserve account, which is established in the amount calculated in a manner and
on the same basis as the Reserve Account Requirement, and a bond account for the Parity Lien
Bonds; such accounts must be established and maintained on substantially the same terms and
contain substantially the same provisions as set forth in the Bond Ordinance for the Reserve
Account and the Bond Account, respectively.

s The Mayor certifies in writing that no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing.

Amendments to Bond Ordinance. The Bond Ordinance provides that the City may, with prior
written notice to the Bond Insurer, if any, and without the consent of or notice to the Owners of the
Bonds, adopt one or more ordinances amending or supplementing the Bond Ordinance (which ordinances
shall thereafter become a part of the Bond Ordinance) for any one or more or all of the following
purposes: (i) to cure any ambiguity or to cure, correct or supplement any defect or inconsistent provision
of the Bond Ordinance; (ii) to subject to the Bond Ordinance additional revenues, properties or collateral
or provide for a pledge of State or County sales taxes as permitted by the section of the Bond Ordinance
entitled “Additional General Covenants™; (iii) to facilitate the designation of a substitute securities
depository or to terminate the book entry registration system for the Bonds in accordance with the section
of the Bond Ordinance entitled “Bond Details”; (iv) to facilitate the issuance of Parity Lien Bonds
permitted to be issued pursuant to the section of the Bond Ordinance entitled “Conditions to Issuance of
Parity Lien Bonds™; (v) to facilitate the funding of the Reserve Account or the substitution of one source
of funding of the Reserve Account for another permitted source in accordance with the section of the
Bond Ordinance entitled “Reserve Account”; (vi) to maintain the then existing or to secure a higher rating
of the Bonds by any nationally recognized securities rating agency; or (vii) to make any other change that
does not materially adversely affect the Owners of the Bonds.

Except for amendments permitted by the immediately preceding paragraph, the Bond Ordinance
may only be amended (i) by an ordinance of the City amending or supplementing the Bond Ordinance
(which, after the consents required therefor, shall become a part thereof), and (ii) with the written consent
of the Bond Insurer, if any, and the Owners of at least 66 2/3% in aggregate principal amount of the
Bonds then Outstanding; provided that any amendment that makes any of the following changes with
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respect to any Bond shall not be effective without the written consent of the Owner of such bond: (A) a
change in the maturity of such bond; (B) a reduction of the interest rate on such bond; (C) a change in the
terms of redemption of such bond; (D) a delay in the payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest
on such bond; (E) the creation of any pledge of or lien upon any revenues or moneys pledged for the
payment of such bond under the Bond Ordinance that is superior to the pledge and lien for the payment of
such bond under the Bond Ordinance; (F) a relaxation of the conditions to the issnance of Parity Lien
Bonds or to the creation of any pledge of or lien upon any revenues or moneys pledged for the payment of
such bond under the Bond Ordinance that is equal to or on a parity with the pledge and lien for the
payment of such bond under the Bond Ordinance; (G) a reduction of the principal amount or percentage
of Bonds whose consent is required for an amendment to the Bond Ordinance; or (H) the establishment of
a priority -or preference for the payment of any amount due with respect to any other Bond over such

bond.
Debt Service Requirements
Set forth in the following table are the combined debt service requirements for the Series 2009A

Bonds and the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. See the cover of this Official Statement for the actual
interest rates for each maturity of such Bonds.

[Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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TABLE 1
Debt Service Requirements '

Series 2009A Bonds Taxable Series 2009B Bonds > Total Gross S“bii_dLs Total Net of Subsidy

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest

2010 $ - $ 116,081 5 -~ $ 674951 $ 791,032 $ (236,233) § 554,799
2011 25,000 131,000 -- 761,700 917,700 (266,595) 651,105
2012 25,000 130,250 - 761,700 916,950 (266,595) 650,355
2013 25,000 129,500 -- 761,700 916,200 (266,595) 649,605
2014 25,000 128,688 - 761,700 915,388 (266,595) 648,793
2015 50,000 127,812 - - 761,700 939,512 (266,595) 672,917
2016 60,000 125,937 -- 761,700 947,637 (266,595) 681,042
2017 75,000 123,538 -- 761,700 960,238 (266,595) 693,643
2018 100,000 120,537 - 761,700 982,237 (266,595) 715,642
2019 125,000 116,288 -- 761,700 1,002,988 (266,595) 736,393
2020 - 110,975 160,000 761,700 1,032,675 (266,595) 766,080
2021 -- 110,975 190,000 749,828 1,050,803 (262,440) 788,363
2022 -~ 110,975 220,000 735,730 1,066,705 (257,506) 809,199
2023 -- 110,975 255,000 719,406 1,085,381 (251,792) 833,589
2024 - 110,975 290,000 700,485 1,101,460 (245,170) 856,290
2025 -~ 110,975 330,000 678,967 1,119,942 (237,638) 882,304
2026 -- 110,975 370,000 654,481 1,135,456 (229,068) 906,388
2027 -- 110,975 415,000 627,027 1,153,002 (219,459) 933,543
2028 -- 110,975 460,000 596,234 1,167,209 (208,682) 958,527
2029 - 110,975 510,000 562,102 1,183,077 (196,736) 986,341
2030 -- 110,975 565,000 524,260 1,200,235 (183,491) 1,016,744
2031 -- 110,975 620,000 481,772 1,212,747 (168,620) 1,044,127
2032 -- 110,975 680,000 435,148 1,226,123 (152,302) 1,073,821
2033 -- 110,975 745,000 384,012 1,239,987 (134,404) 1,105,583
2034 - 110,975 815,000 327,988 1,253,963 (114,796) 1,139,167
2035 410,000 110,975 450,000 266,700 1,237,675 (93,345) 1,144,330
2036 395,000 87,400 550,000 232,410 1,264,810 (81,344) 1,183,466
2037 385,000 64,687 650,000 190,500 1,290,187 (66,675) 1,223,512
2038 370,000 42,550 750,000 140,970 1,303,520 (49,339) 1,254,181
2039* 370,000 21,275 1.100.000 83.820 1,575,095 (29.337) 1,545,758
Total $2.440,000 $3.241.143 $10.,125000 $17.383.791 $33.189.934 $(6.084.327)  $27.105.607

! Assumes no redemptions, other than mandatory sinking fund redemption payments. Figures have been rounded.

% The City expects to receive payments from the United States Government equal to 35% of the interest on the Taxable
Series 2009B Bonds (the Federal Direct Payments) as reimbursement for a portion of the interest payments made with
respect thereto by the City.

? Federal Direct Payments.

* The Pledged Sales and Use Tax is reduced from 1% to 0.4% on January 1, 2039; however, the payments in calendar year
2039 are expected to be made from moneys available in the Reserve Account. ‘

Source: The Underwriter

Debt Service Coverage

The following table sets forth the estimated annual debt service coverage which would have been
provided by the Pledged Revenues and Federal Direct Payments for the average annual debt service on
the Bonds for the periods shown below, had the City been collecting 1% of the Sales and Use Tax for
payment of the Bonds, if then outstanding. See “THE SALES AND USE TAX-Sales and Use Tax
Data.” The debt service requirements for the Bonds are set forth in “—Debt Service Requirements”
above.
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TABLE I
Estimated Historical Debt Service Coverage "**

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Estimated Historical Pledged Revenues $ 860,073 $§ 944500 $ 984,190 $1,224985 $1,114,285
Average Annual Federal Direct Payments 202,811 202.811 202.811 202.811 202,811
Total Available Revenues $1.062.884 $1.147.311 $1.187.001 $1.427.796 $1.317.096

Average Annual Debt Service on the Bonds
maturing December 1, 2010 to December 1,2019*  $928.988 $928,988  $928,988  $928,988  $928,988

Average Annual Coverage Factor (with Federal
Direct Payments) on the Bonds maturing
December 1, 2010 to December 1, 2019 1.14x 1.24x 1.28x 1.54x 1.42x

Average Annual Debt Service on the Bonds
maturing December 1, 2020 to December 1,2029*  $1,109,571 $1,109,571 $1,109,571 $1,109,571 $1,109,571

Average Annual Coverage Factor (with Federal
Direct Payments) on the Bonds maturing
December 1, 2020 to December 1, 2029 96x 1.03x 1.07x 1.29x 1.19x

Average Annual Debt Service on the Bonds
maturing December 1, 2030 to December 1, 2039 4 $1,280,434 $1,280,434 $1,280,434 $1,280,434 $1,280,434

Average Annual Coverage Factor (with Federal
Direct Payments) on the Bonds maturing
December 1, 2030 to December 1, 2039 0..83x 0.90x 0.93x 1.12x 1.03x

" As indicated in “TABLE IV-Monthly Comparison of Collections of Base Sales and Use Tax” for the last twelve month period as
compared to the preceding month period, the City has collected 17.5% less in sales and use tax collections.

2 The Internal Revenue Code of 1986 imposes requirements on the Taxable Series 20098 Bonds that the City must continue to meet
after the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are issued in order to receive the Federal Direct Payments. Although the City will covenant in
a certificate delivered on the date of issuance of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds to take the actions necessary to ensure receipt of
the Federal Direct Payments, failure to comply with such covenant does not constitute an Event of Default under the Bond
Ordinance. The amount of Federal Direct Payments will be based on the interest payable on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds and,
as a result, will vary over the term of such Taxable Series 2009B Bonds.

® Figures have been rounded.

* Averages are based on Total Gross Annual Debt Service, prior to any Federal Direct Payments subsidy.

Source: City Finance Department and Underwriter

The receipt of sales tax revenue is subject to the elastic nature of consumer spending. This causes
Sales and Use Tax revenue to increase along with the higher prices brought about by inflation, but also
causes collections to be vulnerable to adverse economic conditions and reduced consumer confidence
which would result in reduced spending. The estimated historical Pledged Revenues of the City set forth
in the table above may not be consistent with future Pledged Revenues of the City as a result of such
changes in economic conditions.

BOND INSURANCE

The following information is not complete and reference is made to APPENDIX F for a specimen
of the Bond Insurance Policy of Assured Guaranty.
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The Insurance Policy

Concurrently with the issnance of the Bonds, Assured Guaranty will issue the Policy for the
Bonds. The Policy guarantees the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due
as set forth in the form of the Policy included as APPENDIX F to this Official Statement.

The Policy is not covered by any insurance security or guaranty fund established under New
York, California, Connecticut or Florida insurance law.

The Insurer

Assured Guaranty is a Maryland-domiciled insurance company regulated by the Maryland
Insurance Administration and licensed to conduct financial guaranty insurance business in all fifty states
of the United States, the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico. Assured Guaranty commenced operations
in 1988. Assured Guaranty is a wholly owned, indirect subsidiary of Assured Guaranty Ltd. (“AGL”), a
Bermuda-based holding company whose shares are publicly traded and are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol “AGO.” AGL, through its operating subsidiaries, provides credit
enhancement products to the U.S. and global public finance, structured finance and mortgage markets.
Neither AGL nor any of its shareholders is obligated to pay any debts of Assured Guaranty or any claims
under any insurance policy issued by Assured Guaranty.

Assured Guaranty’s financial strength is rated “AAA” (negative outlook) by Standard & Poor’s, a
division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (“S&P”), “Aa2” (on review for possible downgrade) by
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) and “AA-" (negative outlook) by Fitch, Inc. (“Fitch”).
Each rating of Assured Guaranty should be evaluated independently. An explanation of the significance
of the above ratings may be obtained from the applicable rating agency. The above ratings are not
recommendations to buy, sell or hold any security, and such ratings are subject to revision or withdrawal
at any time by the rating agencies. Any downward revision or withdrawal of any of the above ratings
may have an adverse effect on the market price of any security guaranteed by Assured Guaranty. Assured
Guaranty does not guaranty the market price of the securities it guarantees, nor does it guaranty that the
ratings on such securities will not be revised or withdrawn.

Recent Developments

Ratings

On July 1, 2009, S&P published a Research Update in which it affirmed its “AAA” counterparty
credit and financial strength ratings on Assured Guaranty. At the same time, S&P revised its outlook on
Assured Guaranty to negative from stable. Reference is made to the Research Update, a copy of which is
available at www.standardandpoors.com, for the complete text of S&P’s comments.

On May 20, 2009, Moody’s issued a press release stating that it had placed the “Aa2” insurance
financial strength rating of Assured Guaranty on review for possible downgrade. Subsequently, in an
announcement dated July 24, 2009 entitled “Moody’s Comments on Assured’s Announcement to
Guarantee and Delist FSA Debt”, Moody’s announced that it expected to conclude its review by mid-
August 2009. Reference is made to the press release and the announcement, copies of which are available
at www.moodys.com, for the complete text of Moody’s comments.

In a press release dated October 12, 2009, Fitch announced that it had downgraded the insurer
financial strength rating of Assured Guaranty to “AA-“ (negative outlook) from “AA* (ratings watch
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negative). Reference is made to the press release, a copy of which is available at www fitchratings.com,
for the complete text of Fitch’s comments.

There can be no assurance as to the outcome of Moody’s review, or as to the further action that
Fitch or S&P may take with respect to Assured Guaranty.

For more information regarding Assured Guaranty’s financial strength ratings and the risks
relating thereto, see AGL’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008,
which was filed by AGL with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on February 26, 2009,
AGL’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2009, which was filed
by AGL with the SEC on May 11, 2009, and AGL’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended June 30, 2009, which was filed by AGL with the SEC on August 10, 2009.

Acquisition of FSA

On July 1, 2009, AGL acquired the financial guaranty operations of Financial Security Assurance
Holdings Ltd. (“FSA”), the parent of financial guaranty insurance company Financial Security Assurance
Inc. For more information regarding the acquisition by AGL of FSA, see Item 1.01 of the Current Report
on Form 8-K filed by AGL with the SEC on July &, 2009.

Capitalization of Assured Guaranty Corp.

As of June 30, 2009, Assured Guaranty had total admitted assets of $1,950,949,811 (unaudited),
total liabilities of $1,653,306,246 (unaudited), total surplus of $297,643,565 (unaudited) and total
statutory capital (surplus plus contingency reserves) of $1,084,906,800 (unaudited) determined in
accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory
authorities.

Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference

The portions of the following documents relating to Assured Guaranty are hereby incorporated by
reference into this Official Statement and shall be deemed to be a part hereof:

. the Annual Report on Form 10-K of AGL for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008
(which was filed by AGL with the SEC on February 26, 2009);

. the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2009
(which was filed by AGL with the SEC on May 11, 2009);

. the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2009 (which
was filed by AGL with the SEC on August 10, 2009); and

. the Current Reports on Form 8-K filed by AGL with the SEC relating to the periods
following the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008.

All consolidated financial statements of Assured Guaranty and all other information relating to
Assured Guaranty included in documents filed by AGL with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, subsequent to the date of this Official
Statement and prior to the termination of the offering of the Bonds shall be deemed to be incorporated by
reference into this Official Statement and to be a part hereof from the respective dates of filing such
consolidated financial statements.
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Any statement contained in a document incorporated herein by reference or contained herein
under the heading “BOND INSURANCE—The Insurer” shall be modified or superseded for purposes of
this Official Statement to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any subsequently filed
document which is incorporated by reference herein also modifies or supersedes such statement. Any
statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to
constitute a part of this Official Statement.

Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Assured Guaranty incorporated by reference
herein and of the statutory financial statements filed by Assured Guaranty with the Maryland Insurance
Administration are available upon request by contacting Assured Guaranty at 31 West 52nd Street, New
York, New York 10019 or by calling Assured Guaranty at (212) 974-0100. In addition, the information
regarding Assured Guaranty that is incorporated by reference in this Official Statement that has been filed
by AGL with the SEC is available to the public over the Internet at the SEC’s web site at
http://www.sec.gov and at AGL’s web site at http://www.assuredguaranty.com, from the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Room 1024, Washington, D.C. 20549, and at the office of the
New York Stock Exchange at 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

Assured Guaranty makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the advisability of investing in
the Bonds. In addition, Assured Guaranty has not independently verified, makes no representation
regarding, and does not accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this Official
Statement or any information or disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom, other than with respect
to the accuracy of the information regarding Assured Guaranty supplied by Assured Guaranty and
presented under the heading “BOND INSURANCE”.

THE SALES AND USE TAX

The Pledged Revenues for the payment of the debt service on the Bonds consists of the revenue
derived from a 1.0% tax comprising a portion of the City’s 3.0% Sales and Use Tax and interest earnings
on moneys deposited in the Community Center Fund. The following information includes a description
of the collection, administration, and enforcement procedures for the City’s Sales and Use Tax.

Authority for the Imposition of the Sales and Use Tax

The Sales and Use Tax is imposed pursuant to Title 3 of the City Municipal Code (the “Sales and
Use Tax Code™). The City currently imposes a voter-approved sales and use tax at the rate of 3.0%,
which commenced January 1, 2009, which is an increase of 1% pursuant to an election held November 4,
2008. The 1% increase, the Pledged Sales and Use Tax, is required to be deposited to the Community
Center Fund established solely for payment of the Bonds and the Parity Lien Bonds, if any. Such Pledged
Sales and Use Tax shall be reduced from a rate of 1.0% to a rate of 0.4% on January 1st following the
date on which the Bonds are paid in full (but in no event shall such reduction occur later than January 1,
2039) to provide for the constructing, improving, equipping, operating and maintaining of the Project.

The City also has a separate 3.0% accommodations tax which is imposed in addition to the Sales
and Use Tax.

The Sales Tax. Pursuant to the Sales and Use Tax Code, the City’s sales tax is imposed upon:
the purchase price paid or charged upon all sales and purchases of tangible personal property at retail in
the City; the purchase price paid or charged upon property exchanged; the price paid for telephone or
telegraph services, the price paid for gas and electric service, the price paid for all meals and cover
charges sold to the public, the price charged for rooms or accommodations, and the full purchase price of
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articles sold after manufacture or having been made to order (with the sales price being the gross value of
all the materials, labor, service and the profit thereon, included in the price charged to the consumer).

The Sales and Use Tax Code provides that the following classes of tangible personal property and
the following sales transactions, among others as more particularly described therein, are exempt from
taxation: food and prescription drugs; occasional sales by a charitable organization; farm equipment used
for agricultural purposes; and the sales and purchase of pesticides used for agricultural purposes.

The Sales and Use Tax Code additionally designates exemptions for: (A) all sales of personal
property on which a specific ownership tax has been paid or is payable are to be exempt from sales tax
when such sales meet both the following conditions: (i) the purchaser is a nonresident of, or has its
principal place of business outside of, the City; and (ii) such personal property is registered or required to
be registered outside the City limits of the City under the laws of the State. Further, every vendor
vending individual items of personal property through coin-operated vending machines are to be exempt
from the provisions of the Sales and Use Tax Code, but nevertheless such vender is to pay sales tax of 3%
on the personal property sold in excess of ten cents so bended in the coin-operated machines unless the
sales it otherwise exempt under the provisions of the Sales and Use Tax Code.

The Use Tax. The Use Tax is levied and collected for using or consuming in the City any
construction or building materials, or storing, using and consuming in the City, motor vehicles, other
vehicles on which registration is required, and mobile homes on which ad valorem property taxes have
not been paid.

The Sales and Use Tax Code also provides that the following classes of tangible personal
property and the following transactions are exempt from use tax: the storage, use or consumption of any
tangible personal property, the sale of which is subject to the City retail sales tax as provided in the Sales
and Use Tax Code; the storage, use or consumption of any tangible personal property purchased for resale
in the City, either in its original form or as an ingredient of a manufactured or compounded product, in the
regular course of a business; the storage , use or consumption of tangible personal property brought into
the City by a nonresident thereof for his own storage, use or consumption while temporarily within the
City, the storage, use of consumption of tangible personal property of the United States or the State or its
institutions or its political subdivisions, in their governmental capacities only or by religious or charitable
corporations, in the conduct of their regular religious or charitable functions; the storage, use or
consumption of tangible personal property for use in the business of manufacturing or compounding for
sale, profit or use, any article, substance or commodity which tangible personal property enters into the
processing of or becomes an ingredient or component part of the product or service which is
manufactured, compounded or furnished and the container, label or the furnished shipping case thereof;
the storage, use or consumption of tangible personal property and household effect acquired outside the
City and brought into it by a nonresident acquiring residency; the storage or use of a motor vehicle, other
vehicle on which registration is required, or mobile home if the owner is or was, at the time of purchase, a
nonresident of the City and he purchased the vehicle outside of the City for use outside the City and
actually so used it for the primary purpose for which it was acquired and he registered, titled and licensed
the motor vehicle, other vehicle on which registration is required, or mobile home outside the City; the
use or consumption of any construction and building materials, and the storage, use and consumption of
motor and other vehicles on which registration is required, and mobile home if a written contract for
purchase thereof was entered into prior to November 10, 1980; the use or consumption of any
construction and building materials required or made necessary in the performance of any construction
contract bid, let or entered into at any time prior to November 10, 1980; the purchase by tax-exempt
entities which would be otherwise taxable the Sales and Use Tax Code; for transactions consummated on
or after January 1, 1986 the storage of construction and building material; and for transactions
consummated on or after January 1, 1986, the City’s use tax is not to be imposed with respect to the use
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or consumption of tangible personal property within the City which occurs more than three years after the
most recent sale of the property if, within the three years following such sale, the property has been
significantly used within the State for the principal purpose for which it was purchased. In addition, the
Use Tax does not apply to the storage, use, or consumption of any article of tangible personal property the
sale or use of which has already been subject to a sales or use tax of another statutory or home rule
municipality.

Manner of Collection of the Sales and Use Tax

The collection, administration and enforcement of the Sales and Use Tax is performed by the City
“Director of Revenue”, who is to prescribe forms and reasonable rules and regulation for making of
returns, for the ascertainment, assessment, and collection of the taxes imposed under the Sales and Use
Tax Code, and for the proper administration and enforcement of the Sales and Use Tax Code. All money
collected by the Director of Revenue is to be remitted monthly to the City Clerk by the Director of
Revenue.

Sales Tax. Every retailer or vendor is, irrespective of the provisions as provided by the Sales and
Use Tax Code, liable and responsible for the payment of an amount equivalent to 3% of all sales made by
him of commodities or services as provided by the Sales and Use Tax Code (see “—Authority for the
Imposition of the Sales and Use Tax” above), and before the fifteenth day of each calendar month make a
return to the Director of Revenue for the preceding calendar month and remit an amount equivalent to
said 3% on such sales to said director, less 3.3% of the sum so remitted to cover the vendor’s expense in
the collection and remittance of said tax. If any part of the payment if deficient due to negligence or
intentional disregard of authorized rules and regulations with the knowledge thereof, but without the
intent to defraud, there is to be added 10% of the total amount of the deficiency, and interest in such cast
is to be collected at a rate of 0.5% per month, in addition to the interest provided by State statute, on the
amount of such deficiency from the time the return was due, from the person required to file the return,
which interest and addition is to become due and payable ten day after written notice and demand to him
by the Director of Revenue. Penalties and interest are increased for cases of deliberate fraud as set forth
in the Sales and Use Tax Code.

Use Tax. If any amount of Use Tax is not paid on or before the last date prescribed for payment,
there is to be added 10% of the total amount of the deficiency and interest is to be collected at an annual
rate established by the State commissioner of banking pursuant to the Sales and Use Tax Code. Penalties
and interest are increased for cases of deliberate fraud as set forth in the Sales and Use Tax Code.

Notice of Deficiency. If taxes, penalty or interest imposed by the Sales and Use Tax Code are not
paid within five days on Sales Tax, and ten days on Use Tax, after the same date due, the Director of
Revenue is to issue a notice setting forth, among others, the name of the taxpayer and amounts due, and
that the City claims a first and prior lien therefor on the real and tangible personal property. After said
notice has been filed, the Director of Revenue may issue warrant directed to any duly authorized revenue
collector, demanding him to levy upon, seize and sell sufficient for payment of amounts due, together
with interest, penalties and costs, as may be provided by law.

Sales and Use Tax Data

History of City Sales and Use Tax Collections. The following table sets forth historical City
Sales and Use Tax collections for the pre-existing 2% Sales and Use Tax (the “Base Sales and Use Tax”)
and the 1% Pledged Sales and Use Tax which went into effect on January 1, 2009. According to City
officials, as of the date of this Official Statement, approximately 438 of the 621 Sales and Use Tax
licenses issued are remitting sales tax to the City.
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TABLE II1
History of City Sales and Use Tax Collections '

Total Base Sales Pledged Sales
Base Sales Tax  Base Use Tax and Use Tax Percent and Use Tax
Year Collections Collections Collections Change Collections

2004 $ 737,308 $ 982,838 $1,720,146 - $ -
2005 882,593 1,006,407 1,889,000 9.8% --
2006 1,001,887 966,812 1,968,699 4.2 -
2007 1,201,264 1,248,706 2,449,970 245 -
2008 1,384,355 844,216 2,228,571 (9.0) -
2009 * 796,787 314,678 1,111,465 - 546,568

"The City’s Sales and Use Tax rate was 2.0% through December 31, 2008 (the “Base Sales and Use Tax”). The
additional voter approved 1% Pledged Sales and Use Tax went into effect on January 1, 2009, increasing the total
City Sales and Use Tax to 3.0%.

2 Collections through August 31, 2009.

Source: City Finance Department

Monthly Comparison of Collections of Base Sales and Use Tax. The following table presents a
comparison of monthly Base Sales and Use Tax receipts for the 12-month periods ended August 31, 2008
and 2009. Sales and Use Tax receipts generally lag retail sales by one month.

TABLE IV
Monthly Comparison of Collections of Base Sales and Use Tax '
12-Month Period Ended 12-Month Period Ended
August 30, 2008 August 30, 2009

Current Period Current Period

Month Month To Date Month To Date
September $212,541 $ 212,541 $205,162 $ 205,162
October 166,999 379,540 196,775 401,937
November 160,288 539,828 155,152 557,089
December 181,027 720,855 166,610 723,699
January 166,961 887,816 121,235 844,934
February 149,849 1,037,665 120,144 965,078
March 178,553 1,216,218 136,594 1,101,672
April 204,379 1,420,597 154,522 1,256,194
May 217,103 1,637,700 147,841 1,404,035
June 198,535 1,836,235 147,482 1,551,517
July 187,010 2,023,245 135,109 1,686,626
August 202,481 2,225,726 148,537 1,835,163

" The City’s Base Sales and Use Tax rate was 2.0% through December 31, 2008 with the
additional voter approved 1% Pledged Sales and Use Tax going into effect on January 1, 2009,
increasing the total City Sales and Use Tax to 3.0%. The figures presented in this table include
only the revenue received from the 2% Base Sales and Use Tax.

Source: City Finance Department
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Top 10 Generators of Base Sales and Use Tax. Set forth in the following table are the City’s
principal Base Sales and Use Tax generators for 2008. Because of the confidential nature of the gross
sales of the individual entities, the identity of vendors cannot be divulged by state law.

TABLE V
Top 10 Generators of 2008 Base Sales and Use Tax '

Base Sales and Use  Percent of Total

Business Type Tax Receipts Collections *

Utility $168,489 7.5%
Food and Beverage Store 93,846 4.2
Wholesale Trade 77,482 35
Motor Vehicle and Parts Dealer 51,231 2.3
Motor Vehicle and Parts Dealer 48,817 2.2
Food and Beverage Store 44,125 2.0
Telecommunications/Broadcasting 37,935 1.7
Food Services and Beverage Establishment 29,268 13
Accommodation 28,930 1.3
Accommodation 26,297 1.2

Total $606,420 27.2%

"'The City’s Base Sales and Use Tax rate was 2.0% through December 31, 2008 with the additional voter approved
1% Pledged Sales and Use Tax going into effect on January 1, 2009, increasing the total City Sales and Use Tax to
3.0%. The figures presented in this table include only the revenue received from the 2% Base Sales and Use Tax.
2Based on total 2008 Sales and Use Tax collections of $2,228,571.

Source: City Finance Department

THE CITY
Description

The City is located along Interstate 70 in the northwest portion of the County in the west central
portion of the State, and is approximately 13 miles west of Grand Junction. The area’s economy is based
primarily on tourism, recreation, ranching and farming. The City encompasses approximately seven
square miles and has a current estimated population of 10,947. The City was established in 1884, and
upon voter approval of the Charter in 1981, became a home rule City form of government.

Governing Body

The City operates under a council-manager form of government whereby, except as otherwise
provided by the Charter or statute, the Council exercises all powers conferred upon or possessed by the
City and has the power and authority to adopt such laws, ordinances and resolutions as it deems proper in
the exercise thereof. The City Manager serves as the chief administrative officer of the City government.
The Council consists of six members, all of whom are elected at large by the registered voters of the City.
The terms of all Council members are to be four years. At each regular election, three council members
are elected. The Mayor, who is chosen by regular election for a term of two years, is the presiding officer
of the Council, with voting powers only in the event of a tie vote of the Council. The Council elects from
its membership a Mayor Pro-Tem to serve during the Mayor’s absence or disability, also to serve a two
year term. Pursuant to statute, with certain exceptions, no nonjudicial elected official of any political
subdivision of the State can serve more than two consecutive terms in office; however, such term
limitation may be lengthened, shortened or eliminated pursuant to voter approval.
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The current Mayor and members of the Council, their principal occupations, length of service on
the Council, and terms of office are set forth in the following table.

Principal Years of  Term Expires
Name Occupation Service (April)
H. Kenneth Henry, Mayor Real Estate 25 2010
Lori Buck, Mayor Pro-Tem Small Business Owner 2.5 2010
R. Bruce Bonar Chemist 0.5 2010
Nick Kohls Retired Teacher 6.5 2010
Stacey Mascarenas County-Real Estate 0.5 2012
Terry Moss Medical Office Administrator 0.5 2012
Mel Mulder Craftsman 6.5 2012

The Council effects its decisions through the passage of ordinances, resolutions, and motions. All
legislative enactments must be in the form of an ordinance. Legislative enactments include, but are not
limited to, adopting or amending an administrative code or establishing, altering or abolishing any
department, office or agency; providing for a fine or other penalty or establishing a rule or regulation, for
which a fine or other penalty may be imposed; levying a tax; conveying or authorizing the conveyance of
any real property of the City and the lease of any real estate for a period of more than one year; and
granting a franchise.

Administration

The council-manager form of government vests responsibility for day-to-day City operations in
the City Manager and his staff. The Charter provides that, all the powers of the City are to be exercised
by direction of the Council, with the City Manager being the chief administrative officer and the Mayor
having separate powers and duties, as set forth therein. The City Manager and the City Attorney serve at
the pleasure of the Council, with the City Manager responsible for appointing the City Clerk.

City Manager. The City Manager is the chief executive officer of the City. The City Manager is
responsible to the Council for all City affairs placed in its charge by the Charter, the Council, or by law,
including the oversight of all departments, offices and agencies of the City and directing the preparation
of the City’s annual budget. Clinton M. Kinney was appointed City Manager in 2002. His prior
experience includes servicing in Durango, Colorado and Lenexa, Kansas in various management
positions. Mr. Kinney holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Business Administration and a minor in
Economics from Fort Lewis College in Durango, Colorado, and a masters degree in Public administration
from the University of Kansas. Mr. Kinney is an active member of the International City Managers
Association and is currently serving as the president of the Colorado City and County Management
Association.

City Clerk and Finance Director. The City Clerk is the custodian of the City’s records, issues
City licenses, conducts elections and performs such other duties as directed by the Charter, the Council or
the City Manager. The Finance Director is responsible for providing accurate financial data for use in
making informed decisions on the management of the City, and is responsible for preparation of the
City’s financial statements, investment of public funds and assisting the City Manager in preparation of
the City’s annual budget. The Finance Department provides general accounting services for the City,
including accounts payable, payroll and utility billing.

Margaret Steelman was appointed City Clerk in 1984. She received certification as a city clerk
from the University of Colorado. She also attended Mesa College in Grand Junction. Ms. Steelman was
appointed as acting Finance Director in 1985, becoming the Finance Director in 1992. She attended Mesa
College in Grand Junction. She has also served as Acting City Manager on numerous occasions. Ms.
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Steelman is a member of the Colorado Government Finance Officers Association, the Government
Finance Officers Association, the Colorado Municipal Clerks Association and the International Institute
of Municipal Clerks Association.

City Attorney. Edward P. Sands was appointed as the City Attorney in 1994. He received his
Artium Baccalaureatus (A.B.) degree in Political Science and History from Duke University and received
her Juris Doctorate from the University of Nebraska. Mr. Sands has practiced law in the State of
Colorado since 1977, specializing in real estate, commercial, probate and local government law.
Mr. Sands carries memberships in the Colorado Municipal League and the Colorado Bar Association.

City Employees and Benefits

The City has 59 permanent full time employees, 9 part-time employees and 33 seasonal
employees. According to City officials, the City has experienced significant growth in population in the
last several years, requiring additional staff to provide service. Specifically, the City has expanded its
park maintenance operations with the addition of trails and the 18 acre Little Salt Wash Park, resulting in
the need for additional seasonal employees for parks maintenance. The police department has also
increased part time staff to assist with clerical and records management functions of the department.
Engineering staff has increased to provide project management and inspections for both capital projects
and new residential and commercial development in the community. Recreation programs have expanded
to provide more opportunities for the community, requiring additional instructors and staff to oversee the
programs.

The City has worked to develop a comprehensive compensation package for its staff members.
Full time employees earn vacation at rates which increase as the length of the employees service increases
and receive sick leave at the rate of one day per month. City employees have 11 paid holidays each year.
The City provides health insurance for employees. City employees also receive workers compensation,
unemployment and social security benefits. None of the employees are unionized, and City management
believes employee relations to be good.

Services Available to City Residents

The City provides a broad range of municipal services to the community including police;
sidewalk repair services; wastewater collection and treatment; irrigation water; parks and recreation; and
trash and recycling services. Fire protection is provided by the Lower Valley Fire Protection District.
Utilities not provided by the City, including gas and phone service, are provided by public and private
entities.

In addition, the City owns the Devils Canyon Center, a 22,000 square foot facility, which is
leased to the Museum of Western Colorado for the operation of a dinosaur museum. The Devils Canyon
Center is operated as an Enterprise Fund and is not supported through the General Fund.

Capital Improvements Plan

The City maintains a five year capital improvement plan. Projects over the next five years and
the funding sources for such projects are included within different funds of the City. - In addition the City
anticipates issuing $30 million in new debt in 2009 or 2010 for the construction of a new wastewater
facility. The City has also been approved for a loan through the Colorado Water Resources and Power
Development Authority, which is expected to be repaid through monthly sewer charges and tap fee
revenues of the sewer fund.
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Current Capital Projects.

A portion of the net proceeds of the Bonds will be used to finance the Project as more particularly
described in “THE BONDS—Application of Bond Proceeds—The Project. The purpose of this Project is
to construct a community related facility that will house a multitude of recreation programs and activities,
and to prove adequate spaces to meet the recreational needs of the community. Construction is expected
to begin in November 2009 and is expected to be complete by January 2011.

CITY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Accounting Policies

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups. Such funds are
segregated for the purpose of accounting for the operation of specific activities or attaining certain
objectives. For a description of the various funds and account groups, see the City’s audited financial
statements attached hereto. Financial operations are accounted for by the City’s finance department.
State law and the Charter require an annual audit to be made of the City’s financial statements at the end
of the fiscal year. The audited financial statements must be filed with the Council within six months after
the end of the fiscal year and with the state auditor 30 days thereafter. Failure to file an audit report may
result in the withholding of the City’s property tax revenues by the county treasurer pending compliance.

The City’s fiscal year 2008 financial statements, appended hereto, were audited by Dalby,
Wendland & Co., P.C., Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, Grand Junction, Colorado. Such
financial statements are the most current audited financial information available for the City.

Historical and Budgeted General Fund Financial Information

The governmental fund utilized for the general administration and operation of the City is the
General Fund. Set forth hereafter is a five-year comparative statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the City’s General Fund. The following information should be read together

with the City’s financial statements and accompanying notes appended hereto. Preceding years’ financial
statements may be obtained from the sources noted in “MISCELLANEOUS—Additional Information.”

[Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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TABLE VI
History of General Fund Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Revenues:

Taxes :
Property $ 405,713 $ 442,114 $§ 611,632 § 652,317 $§ 949,023
City Sales 737,308 882,593 1,001,569 1,201,264 1,384,355
County Sales 1,527,268 1,699,073 1,964,908 2,196,927 2,246,799
Use Tax 982,838 1,006,407 966,812 1,248,706 844216
Other 273,630 313,750 410,989 440,567 546,493

Licenses and Permits 29,026 31,238 37,685 36,506 34,675

Intergovernmental 465,778 479,193 1,240,718 1,107,803 1,852,812

Charges for Services 259,004 309,748 398,583 294,449 363,616

Fines, Forfeitures and Assessments 55,394 62,374 58,631 67,207 63,476

Development Impact Fees 238,475 44,039 54,626 103,415 79,924

Investment Earnings 42,066 77,045 178,710 283,680 189,287

Rents and Royalties 25,019 18,726 24,162 34,788 31,085

Donations 25,336 17,593 10,683 8,485 11,469

Miscellaneous 22.317 8.876 9,131 24.315 7.740

Total Revenues 5,089.172 5,392,769 6.968.839 7.700.429 8.604.970
Expenditures:

General Government 219,205 225,090 320,742 346,748 351,338

Administration 361,674 347,339 469,432 495,085 497,440

Engineering 213,039 246,773 241,869 322,577 313,372

Community Development 236,418 280,554 283,780 430,108 406,033

Public Safety 1,091,066 1,253,473 1,334,202 1,579,546 1,748,015

Public Works 873,290 1,031,259 1,230,093 1,467,926 1,490,319

Recreation 277,582 288,530 316,095 431,208 526,218

Non-Departmental 136,120 166,846 143,430 161,694 204,718

Capital Outlay -- -- - - 483,524

Total Expenditures 3,408,394 3.839.684 4,339.643 5,234,892 6,020,977
Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 1,680,778 1,552,905 2,629,196 2,465,537 2,583,993
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 113,200 139,700 165,400 165,600 162,400

Transfers Out (1,167,382) (1,069,684) (1,386,811)  (1,066,986) (1,511,870)

Capital Leases - - 44,952 - --

Sale of Capital Assets 3.905 24,313 3.245 -= 5.512

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)  (1,050.277) (905.671) (1.173.214) (901.386)  (1.343.958)

Net Change in Fund Balances 630,501 647,234 1,455,982 1,564,151 1,240,035

Fund Balance — Beginning 2.680.308 3.310.809 3.958.043 5,414,025 6,978,176
Fund Balance — Ending $3.310,809 $3.958.043  $5.414.025 $6.978.176  $8.218.211

Source: City Audited Basic Financial Statements, 2004-2008

Budget and Appropriation Procedure. All City spending is in accordance with its annual
budget, adopted pursuant to the procedure prescribed in the Charter. The City’s fiscal year runs from
January 1 through December 31.  Pursuant to the Charter, on or before October 1 of each year, the City
Manager must submit to the Council a complete City budget for the ensuing fiscal year. The budget must
be a complete financial plan, including: (a) anticipated revenue from all sources other than the tax levy for
the ensuing year, (b) general fund surplus or deficit at the end of the current fiscal year, (¢) proposed
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expenditures for the operation of the City, (d) debt service requirements, (€) proposed capital projects and
financing thereof for the ensuing year and five years thereafter, and (f) a balance between the proposed
expenditures and the proposed available capital. The Council sets a public hearing on the budget,
providing notice by publication ten days prior to such hearing. After the hearing, and on or before the
first regular meeting in November, the Council adopts the budget by resolution, and on or before the first
regular meeting in December, the Council adopts the tax levy. Subsequent to the adoption of the budget
and on or before their first regular meeting in November, the Council passes the annual appropriation
ordinance for the next fiscal year. :

The Council, may, by ordinance, make additional appropriations during the fiscal year for
unforeseen expenditures; however, such appropriations may not exceed the amount by which actual
revenues are surpassing revenues proposed in the budget, except in emergency situations. By an
affirmative vote of five or more, the Council may transfer unencumbered funds from one department to
another; however, they may not transfer funds from any sinking fund, encumbered fund, or the capital
project fund. The Council timely adopted the City’s 2009 budget and appropriation resolution pursuant to
the above described procedure and timely filed such budget with the State division of local government.

2008 and 2009 General Fund Budget Summary and Comparison. Set forth hereafter is a
comparison of the City’s 2008 and 2009 General Fund budgets, as amended, as compared to the 2009
actual year-to-date unaudited figures.

[Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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TABLE VII

General Fund Budget Summary and Comparison

REVENUE

Taxes

Property

City Sales

County Sales

Use Tax

Other
Permits and Licenses
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines, Forfeitures and Assessments
Development Impact Fees
Investment Earmings
Rents and Royalties
Donations
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Administration
Community Development
Culture and Recreation
Engineering
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Non-Departmental
Contingency

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Sale of Capital Assets

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance — Beginning
Fund Balance — Ending

2009 Actual
2008 Budget 2009 Budget  Year-to-Date
(as amended) (as amended)  (unaudited)’
$ 951,350 $1,024,750 $ 983,318
1,210,000 1,315,000 841,426
2,300,000 1,840,000 1,257,509
950,800 426,000 - 324972
425,500 518,150 323,696
34,500 34,000 13,940
992,292 1,195,313 239,529
269,350 227,500 204,923
63,000 58,500 40,390
80,000 100,000 71,256
200,000 45,000 44,788
29,700 31,200 21,005
5,000 5,000 2,086
7,500 6,200 18,757
7,518,992 6,826,613 4,392,595
591,100 651,525 426,412
462,450 371,700 230,406
619,450 1,139,775 846,350
362,195 392,700 267,763
420,000 418,400 261,545
2,075,500 2,081,330 1,404,064
1,895,350 1,766,700 1,321,144
262,000 226,400 179,492
88,893 181,250 -
6,776,938 7,229,780 4,937,176
742,054 (403,167) (544,581)
164,400 164,600 82,300
(2,542,495) (1,967,804) (125,926)
(2,.378,095) (1.803.204) (43.626)
(1,636,041) (2,206,371) (588,207)
6,978,176 8.218.211 8218211
$5.342.135 $6.011.840 $7.630.004

"'Unaudited actual figures through August 31, 2009.
Source: City 2008 and 2009 Budgets and the City
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Retirement Matters

See Note 6 to the City’s financial statements appended hereto for a discussion of the City’s
retirement plans.

Insurance Coverage

In the opinion of the City’s management, the City’s present insurance coverage is adequate.
However, there can be no assurance that the City will maintain its present level of coverage. See also
Note 7 to the City’s financial statements appended hereto.

Deposit and Investment of City Funds

State statutes set forth requirements for the deposit of City funds in eligible depositaries and for
the collateralization of such deposited funds. See also Note 4 to the City’s financial statements appended
hereto. The City also may invest available funds in accordance with applicable State statutes.

Constitutional Amendment Limiting Taxes and Spending

On November 3, 1992, Colorado voters approved an amendment to the Colorado Constitution,
which is commonly referred to as the Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights, or TABOR, and now constitutes
Section 20 of Article X of the Colorado Constitution. TABOR imposes various limits and new
requirements on the State of Colorado and all Colorado local governments which do not qualify as
“enterprises” under TABOR (each of which is referred to in this section as a “governmental unit”). Any
of the following actions, for example, now requires voter approval in advance: (a) any increase in a
governmental unit’s spending from one year to the next in excess of the rate of inflation plus a “growth
factor” based on (i) for the State, the percentage change in State population, (i) for a school district, the
percentage change in student enrollment, and (iii) for any other local government, the net percentage
change in actual value of all real property from construction of taxable real property improvements, minus
destruction of similar improvements, and additions to, minus deletions from, taxable real property;
(b) any increase in the real property tax revenues of a local governmental unit (not including the state)
from one year to the next in excess of inflation plus the appropriate “growth factor” referred to in
clause (a) above; (c) any new tax, tax rate increase, mill levy above that for the prior year, valuation for
assessment ratio increase for a property class, extension of an expiring tax or a tax policy change directly
causing a net tax revenue gain; and (d) except for refinancing bonded indebtedness at a lower interest rate
or adding new employees to existing pension plans, creation of any multiple fiscal year direct or indirect
debt or other financial obligation whatsoever without adequate present cash reserves pledged irrevocably
and held for payments in all future fiscal years. Elections on such matters may only be held on the same
day as a state general election, at the governmental unit’s regular biennial election or on the first Tuesday
in November of odd numbered years, and must be conducted in accordance with procedures described in
TABOR.

Revenue collected, kept or spent in violation of the provisions of TABOR must be refunded, with
interest. TABOR requires a governmental unit to create an emergency reserve of 3% of its fiscal year
spending in 1995 and subsequent years. TABOR provides that “[wlhen [a governmental unit’s]
annual . . . revenue is less than annual payments on general obligation bonds, pensions, and final court
judgments, the [voter approval requirement for mill levy and other tax increases referred to in clause (c)
of the preceding paragraph and the voter approval requirement for spending and real property tax revenue
increases referred to in clauses (a) and (b) of the preceding paragraph] shall be suspended to provide for
the deficiency.” The preferred interpretation of TABOR shall, by its terms, be the one that reasonably
restrains most the growth of government.
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De-Brucing. At the election held on April 4, 2006, for the purpose of implementing the City’s
capital improvements, including the maintenance of capital improvements, voters of the City approved an
election question allowing the City, without increasing existing tax rates or adding new taxes of any kind,
from January 1, 2006 through December 31, 2012, to receive and expend all State grants and to collect,
retain and expend all revenues generated, without regard to any limitations under TABOR.

DEBT STRUCTURE

The following is a discussion of the City’s authority to incur general obligation indebtedness and
other financial obligations and the amount of such obligations presently outstanding.

Required Elections

Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution requires that, except for refinancing bonded
debt at a lower interest rate, the City must have voter approval in advance for the creation of any
multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect City debt or other financial obligation whatsoever without adequate
present cash reserves pledged irrevocable and held for payments in all future fiscal years. Enterprises, as
defined in Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution, are excluded from the application of said
Section and the voter approval requirements established therein. For a discussion of Article X, Section 20
of the Colorado Constitution, see the caption “CITY FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Constitutional
Amendment Limiting Taxes and Spending.”

Revenue and Other Financial Obligations

The City has the power to issue revenue obligations, subject to the election requirements
described above, payable from the net revenue of City facilities, or payable in whole or in part from the
proceeds of sales taxes. The City provides for the operation of certain of its services, such as irrigation
water, sewer collection and treatment, trash collection and lease of the Devils Canyon Center, as
enterprises which are not subject to the provisions of TABOR, see “CITY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION—Constitutional Amendment Limiting Taxes and Spending.” Upon the issuance of the
Bonds, the City will have authorization to issue an additional $2,435,000 of revenue bonds for the
financing of the Project.

Colorado Water Resources & Power Development Authority Loan (“CWRPDA”). In 1995, the
CWRPDA loaned the City $155,435 for the construction of a sewer line extension (the “CWRPDA 1995
Loan”). As of December 31, 2008, the outstanding principal balance on the CWRPDA 1995 Loan was
$39,478. The City anticipates borrowing additional moneys from CWRPDA in an amount not to exceed
27,000,000 in December 2009 for the construction of a new wastewater treatment facility, approximately
two miles of interceptor sewer lines, a new lift station, and other system appurtenances (“CWRPDA 2009
Loan”). The City is to repay the CWRPDA 1995 Loan and the CWRPDA 2009 Loan from income and
revenues earned by the City from or attributable to the ownership of the City’s sewer system less all
actual maintenance and operations costs of the City’s sewer system.

Colorado Department of Local Affairs Loan. In 2002, the City entered into a loan agreement
with the Colorado Department of Local Affairs Loan (“DOLA”) for a loan from the Local Government
Severance Tax Fund to fund the construction of the Greenway Business Park sewer line and sewer facility
improvements. The original principal balance was $123,000 with annual payments of principal and
interest of $15,929 through September 1, 2012, with such payments to be paid from the Sewer Fund. As
of December 31, 2008 the current principal balance is $56,484.
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Capital Leases. The Council has the authority to enter into installment or lease option contracts,
subject to annual appropriation, for the purchase of property or capital equipment without prior electoral
approval as described above in “—Required Elections.” The City has one capital leases relating to
vehicles with a current principal balance of $68,962.

General Obligation Debt

Debt Limit and Outstanding General Obligation Debt. Pursuant to the Charter, there is to be no
limitation on the amount of bonds or other securities the City may issue, except as may be stated in the
documents pertaining thereto. The City currently has no authorized but unissued general obligation
indebtedness.

LEGAL MATTERS
Sovereign Immunity

The Governmental Immunity Act, Title 24, Article 10, of the Colorado Revised Statutes, as
amended (the “Immunity Act™), provides that, with certain specified exceptions, sovereign immunity acts
as a bar to any action against a public entity, such as the City, for injuries which lie in tort or could lie in
tort.

The Immunity Act provides that sovereign immunity does not apply to injuries occurring as a
result of certain specified actions or conditions. In such instances, the public entity may be liable for
injuries arising from an act or omission of the public entity, or an act or omission of its public employees,
which are not willful and wanton, and which occur during the performance of their duties and within the
scope of their employment. The maximum amounts that may be recovered under the Immunity Act,
whether from one or more public entities and public employees, are as follows: (a) for any injury to one
person in any single occurrence, $150,000; and (b) for an injury to two or more persons in any single
occurrence, $150,000 per person not to exceed the sum of $600,000. Suits against both the City and a
public employee do not increase such maximum amounts which may be recovered. The City may not be
held liable either directly or by indemnification for punitive or exemplary damages. In the event that the
City is required to levy an ad valorem property tax to discharge a settlement or judgment, such tax may
not exceed a total of ten mills per annum for all outstanding settlements or judgments.

The City may be subject to civil liability and may not be able to claim sovereign immunity for
actions founded upon various federal laws. Examples of such civil liability include, but are not limited to,
suits filed pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983 alleging the deprivation of federal constitutional or statutory
rights of an individual. In addition, the City may be enjoined from engaging in anti-competitive practices
which violate the antitrust laws. However, the Immunity Act provides that it applies to any action
brought against a public entity or a public employee in any Colorado state court having jurisdiction over
any claim brought pursuant to any federal law, if such action lies in tort or could lie in tort.

Pending and Threatened Litigation

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the City Attorney will deliver a certificate stating
that, as of the date of issuance of the Bonds, to the best of its knowledge, there is no action, suit,
proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court, public board or body
pending or threatened against or affecting the City, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding
would have a material adverse affect upon the City’s ability to comply with its obligations under the Bond
Ordinance.
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Approval of Legality

Legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds are subject to approval by
Kutak Rock LLP, Denver, Colorado, Bond Counsel. In addition to acting as Bond Counsel,
Kutak Rock LLP has been retained to advise the City concerning, and has assisted the City in the
preparation of, this Official Statement.

The legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the
professional judgment of the attorneys rendering the opinions as to legal issues expressly addressed
therein. By rendering a legal opinion, the opinion giver does not become an insurer or guarantor of the
result indicated by that expression of professional judgment, or of the transaction on which the opinion is
rendered, or of the future performance of parties to the transaction. Nor does the rendering of an opinion
guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the transaction.

No Litigation Certificate

The Underwriter’s purchase of the Bonds is conditioned on, among other things, receipt from the
City Attorney and/or certain City officials of certification at closing that, other than as described herein,
there is no litigation then pending, or to their knowledge threatened, affecting the validity of or security
for the Bonds.

TAX MATTERS

The following is a summary of certain material federal income tax consequences of the purchase,
ownership and disposition of the Bonds for the investors described below and is based on the advice of
Kutak Rock LLP, as Bond Counsel. This summary is based upon laws, regulations, rulings and decisions
currently in effect, all of which are subject to change. The discussion does not deal with all federal tax
consequences applicable to all categories of investors, some of which may be subject to special rules,
including but not limited to, partnerships or entities treated as partnerships for federal income tax
purposes, pension plans and foreign investors, except as otherwise indicated. In addition, this summary is
generally limited to investors that are “U.S. holders” (as defined below) who will hold the Bonds as
“capital assets” (generally, property held for investment) within the meaning of Section 1221 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Investors should consult their own tax
advisors to determine the federal, state, local and other tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and
disposition of Bonds. Prospective investors should note that no rulings have been or will be sought from
the Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) with respect to any of the federal income tax consequences
discussed below, and no assurance can be given that the Service will not take contrary positions.

As used herein, a “U.S. holder” is a “U.S. person” that is a beneficial owner of a Bond. A “non
U.S. holder” is a holder (or beneficial owner) of a Bond that is not a U.S. person. For these purposes, a
“U.S. person” is a citizen or resident of the United States, a corporation or partnership created or
organized in or under the laws of the United States or any political subdivision thereof {except, in the case
of a partnership, to the extent otherwise provided in the Treasury Regulations), an estate the income of
which is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of its source or a trust if (i) a United
States court is able to exercise primary supervision over the trust’s administration and (ii) one or more
United States persons have the authority to control all of the trust’s substantial decisions.

Series 2009A Bonds

General. In the opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, Bond Counsel, to be delivered at the time of
original issuance of the Bonds, under existing laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, interest on
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the Series 2009A Bonds (referred to herein as the “Tax-Exempt Bonds”) (2) is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes and (b) is not a specific item of tax preference nor included in
adjusted current earnings for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and
corporations.

The City has covenanted to comply with all requirements that must be satisfied in order for the
interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be excludible from gross income for federal tax purposes. The
opinions set forth above are subject to continuing compliance by the City and others with such covenants.
Failure to comply with such covenants could cause interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be included in
gross income retroactive to the date of issue of such Tax-Exempt Bonds.

The accrual or receipt of interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds may otherwise affect the federal
income tax liability of certain recipients such as banks, thrift institutions, property and casualty insurance
companies, corporations (including S corporations and foreign corporations operating branches in the
United States), Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefit recipients, taxpayers otherwise entitled to
claim the earned income credit or taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued
indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations, among others. The extent of these other tax
consequences will depend upon the recipients' particular tax status or other items of income or deduction.
Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such consequences and investors should consult their
own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of purchasing or holding the Tax-Exempt Bonds.

Original Issue Premium. Certain of the 2009A Bonds are being sold at a premium (each a
“Premium 2009A Bond”). An amount equal to the excess of the issue price of a Premium 2009A Bond
over its stated redemption price at maturity constitutes premium on such Premium 2009A Bond. An
initial purchaser of a Premium 2009A Bond must amortize any premium over such Premium 2009A
Bond’s term using constant yield principles, based on the purchaser’s yield to maturity (or, in the case of
Premium 2009A Bonds callable prior to their maturity, by amortizing the premium to the call date, based
on the purchaser’s yield to the call date and giving effect to the call premium). As premium is amortized,
the amount of the amortization offsets a corresponding amount of interest for the period and the
purchaser’s basis in such Premium 2009A Bond is reduced by a corresponding amount resulting in an
increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale
or disposition of such Premium 2009A Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the purchaser’s basis may
be reduced, no federal income tax deduction is allowed. Purchasers of the Premium 2009A Bonds should
consult with their tax advisors with respect to the determination and treatment of premium for federal
income tax purposes and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning a Premium
2009A Bond.

Bank Qualified. The City has represented that it does not reasonably anticipate issuing greater
than $30,000,000 of tax exempt obligations (excluding certain private activity and refunding bonds) in
calendar year 2009 and that it has properly designated the Series 2009A Bonds as “qualified tax exempt
obligations” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. Accordingly, Bond Counsel is of the
opinion that in the case of certain banks, thrift institutions or other financial institutions owning the Series
2009A Bonds, a deduction is allowed for 80% of that portion of such institutions’ interest expense
allocable to interest on the Series 2009A Bonds. Bond Counsel has expressed no opinion with respect to
any deduction for federal tax law purposes of interest on indebtedness incurred or continued by a holder
of the Series 2009A Bonds or a related person to purchase or carry the Series 2009A Bonds.

Backup Withholding. Certain purchasers may be subject to backup withholding at the
application rate determined by statute with respect to interest paid with respect to the Tax-Exempt Bonds
if the purchasers, upon issuance, fail to supply the indenture trustee or their brokers with their taxpayer
identification numbers, furnish incorrect taxpayer identification numbers, fail to report interest, dividends
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or other “reportable payments” (as defined in the Code) properly, or, under certain circumstances, fail to
provide the indenture trustee with a certified statement, under penalty of perjury, that they are not subject
to backup withholding. Information returns will be sent annually to the Service and to each purchaser
setting forth the amount of interest paid with respect to the Tax-Exempt Bonds and the amount of tax
withheld thereon.

Taxable Series 2009B Bonds

In General. The City intends to elect to designate the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds as taxable
“Build America Bonds” pursuant to Section 54AA of the Code. Although the Taxable Series 2009B
Bonds are issued by the City, interest on the Taxable Series 20098 Bonds is not excludable from gross
income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code. Interest on the Taxable Series
2009B Bonds will be fully subject to federal income taxation. Thus, owners of the Taxable Series 2009B
Bonds generally must include interest on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds in gross income for federal
income tax purposes.

To ensure compliance with Treasury Circular 230, holders of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds
should be aware and are hereby put on notice that: (a) the discussion in this Official Statement with
respect to U.S. federal income tax consequences of owning the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds is not
intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding penalties
that may be imposed on the taxpayer; (b) such discussion was written in connection with the promotion or
marketing (within the meaning of Treasury Circular 230) of the transactions or matters addressed by such
discussion; and (c) each taxpayer should seek advice based on its particular circumstances from an
independent tax advisor.

Because Build America Bonds are a relatively new product, and the investors and future investors
therein may be different than the typical investors in tax-exempt bonds which have a more developed
market, our discussion of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds may be more detailed than our discussion of
the Series 2009A Bonds.

Build America Bonds. The Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are expected to be issued as taxable,
Build America Bonds as authorized by the Recovery Act. Pursuant to the Recovery Act, the City will
receive cash subsidy payments from the United States Treasury equal to 35% of the interest payable on
the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986 imposes requirements on the
Taxable Series 2009B Bonds that the City must continue to meet after the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds
are issued in order to receive the cash subsidy payments. These requirements generally involve the way
that Taxable Series 2009B Bonds proceeds must be invested and ultimately used, and the periodic
submission of requests for payments. If the City does not meet these requirements, it is possible that the
City may not receive the cash subsidy payments.

Characterization of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. Kutak Rock LLP will render on the
closing date, with respect to the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds, its opinion to the effect that the Taxable
Series 2009B Bonds will be treated as debt (and not equity) of City for federal tax purposes.

If, alternatively, it were determined that the Taxable Series 2009B Bond transaction created an
entity which was classified as a corporation or a publicly traded partnership taxable as a corporation, such
entity would be subject to federal income tax at corporate income tax rates on the income it derives from
the revenues derived from City operations, which would reduce the amounts available for payment to the
Bondholders. Cash payments to the holders of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds who are treated as equity
owners generally would be treated as dividends for tax purposes to the extent of such corporation’s
accumulated and current earnings and profits. A similar result would apply if the holders of the Taxable
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Series 2009B Bonds were deemed to have acquired stock or other equity interests. However, as noted
above, City has been advised that the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds will be treated as debt of City for
federal income tax purposes and that the transaction will not be characterized as an association or publicly
traded partnership taxable as a corporation.

Characterization of the Bonds as Indebtedness. The City intends that, for federal income tax
purposes, the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds will be indebtedness (as opposed to equity) created by the
Bond Ordinance secured by the Pledged Revenues. The owners of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds, by
accepting such Taxable Series 2009B Bonds, have agreed to treat the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds as
indebtedness of the City for federal income tax purposes. The City intends to treat the Taxable Series
2009B Bond transaction as a financing reflecting the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds as its indebtedness for
tax and financial accounting purposes.

In general, the characterization of a transaction as a sale of property or a secured loan, for federal
income tax, is a question of fact, the resolution of which is based upon the economic substance of the
transaction, rather than its form or the manner in which it is characterized for state law or other purposes.
While the Service and the courts have set forth several factors to be taken into account in determining
whether the substance of a transaction is a sale of property or a secured indebtedness, the primary factor
in making this determination is whether the transferee has assumed the risk of loss or other economic
burdens relating to the property and has obtained the benefits of ownership thereof. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in some instances, courts have held that a taxpayer is bound by the particular form it has
chosen for a transaction, even if the substance of the transaction does not accord with its form.

The City believes that it has retained the preponderance of the primary benefits and burdens
associated with ownership of the Project and that as a result, the owners of the Taxable Series 2009B
Bonds should not be treated as the owners of the Project for federal income tax purposes. If, however, the
Service were successfully to assert that the Taxable Series 2009B Bond transaction should be treated as a
sale of the Project, the Service could further assert that the entity created pursuant to the Bond Ordinance,
as the owner of the Project for federal income tax purposes, should be deemed engaged in a business and,
therefore, characterized as a publicly traded partnership taxable as a corporation.

Taxation of Interest Income of the Bonds. Payments of interest with regard to the Taxable
Series 2009B Bonds will be includible as ordinary income when received or accrued by the holders
thereof in accordance with their respective methods of accounting and applicable provisions of the Code.

Payments of interest received with respect to the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds will also constitute
investment income for purposes of certain limitations of the Code concerning the deductibility of
investment interest expense. Potential holders of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds should consult their
own tax advisors concerning the treatment of interest payments with regard to the Taxable Series 2009B
Bonds.

A purchaser (other than a person who purchases a Taxable Series 2009B Bond upon issuance at
the issue price) who buys a Taxable Series 2009B Bond at a discount from its principal amount will be
subject to the market discount rules of the Code. In general, the market discount rules of the Code treat
principal payments and gain on disposition of a debt instrument as ordinary income to the extent of
accrued market discount. Each potential investor should consult his tax advisor concerning the
application of the market discount rules to the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds.

Sale or Exchange of Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. If a Bondholder sells a Taxable Series

2009B Bond, such person will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount realized
on such sale and the Bondholder’s basis in such Bond. Ordinarily, such gain or loss will be treated as a

39



capital gain or loss. At the present time, the maximum capital gain rate for certain assets held for more
than twelve months is 15%. In February of 2009, President Barack Obama proposed increasing the long-
term capital gains rate to 20%. the City and Bond Counsel cannot predict whether this increase will
receive Congressional approval.

If the term of a Taxable Series 2009B Bond was materially modified, in certain circumstances, a
new debt obligation would be deemed created and exchanged for the prior obligation in a taxable
transaction. Among the modifications which may be treated as material are those which relate to
redemption provisions and, in the case of a nonrecourse obligation, those which involve the substitution
of collateral. Each potential holder of a Taxable Series 2009B Bond should consult its own tax advisor
concerning the circumstances in which the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds would be deemed reissued and
the likely effects, if any, of such reissuance.

Backup Withholding. Certain purchasers may be subject to backup withholding at the
application rate determined by statute with respect to interest paid with respect to the Taxable Series
2009B Bonds if the purchasers, upon issuance, fail to supply the applicable party or their brokers with
their taxpayer identification numbers, furnish incorrect taxpayer identification numbers, fail to report
interest, dividends or other “reportable payments” (as defined in the Code) properly, or, under certain
circumstances, fail to provide the applicable party with a certified statement, under penalty of perjury, that
they are not subject to backup withholding. Information returns will be sent annually to the Service and
to each purchaser setting forth the amount of interest paid with respect to the Taxable Series 2009B
Bonds and the amount of tax withheld thereon.

State, Local or Foreign Taxation. The City makes no representations regarding the tax
consequences of purchase, ownership or disposition of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds under the tax
laws of any other state, locality or foreign jurisdiction (except as provided in “Exemption Under State
Law” below). Investors considering an investment in the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds should consult
their own tax advisors regarding such tax consequences.

Tax-Exempt Investors. In general, an entity which is exempt from federal income tax under the
provisions of Section 501 of the Code is subject to tax on its unrelated business taxable income. An
unrelated trade or business is any trade or business which is not substantially related to the purpose which
forms the basis for such entity’s exemption. However, under the provisions of Section 512 of the Code,
interest may be excluded from the calculation of unrelated business taxable income unless the obligation
which gave rise to such interest is subject to acquisition indebtedness. Therefore, except to the extent any
holder of a Taxable Series 2009B Bond incurs acquisition indebtedness with respect to a Taxable Series
2009B Bond, interest paid or accrued with respect to such Bondholder may be excluded by such tax
exempt Bondholder from the calculation of unrelated business taxable income. Each potential tax exempt
holder of a Taxable Series 2009B Bond is urged to consult its own tax advisor regarding the application
of these provisions.

Certain ERISA Considerations. The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended (“ERISA”), imposes certain requirements on “employee benefit plans” (as defined in Section
3(3) of ERISA) subject to ERISA, including entities such as collective investment funds and separate
accounts whose underlying assets include the assets of such plans (collectively, “ERISA Plans”) and on
those persons who are fiduciaries with respect to ERISA Plans. Investments by ERISA Plans are subject
to ERISA’s general fiduciary requirements, including the requirement of investment prudence and
diversification and the requirement that an ERISA Plan’s investments be made in accordance with the
documents governing the ERISA Plan. The prudence of any investment by an ERISA Plan in the Bonds
must be determined by the responsible fiduciary of the ERISA Plan by taking into account the ERISA
Plan’s particular circumstances and all of the facts and circumstances of the investment. Government and
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non-electing church plans are generally not subject to ERISA. However, such plans may be subject to
similar or other restrictions under state or local law.

In addition, ERISA and the Code generally prohibit certain transactions between an ERISA Plan
or a qualified employee benefit plan under the Code and persons who, with respect to that plan, are
fiduciaries or other “parties in interest” within the meaning of ERISA or “disqualified persons” within the
meaning of the Code. In the absence of an applicable statutory, class or administrative exemption,
transactions between an ERISA Plan and a party in interest with respect to an ERISA Plan, including the
acquisition by one from the other of a Taxable Series 2009B Bond could be viewed as violating those
prohibitions. In addition, Code Section 4975 prohibits transactions between certain tax-favored vehicles
such as Individual Retirement Accounts and disqualified persons. Code Section 503 includes similar
restrictions with respect to governmental and church plans. In this regard, the City or any Dealer of the
Taxable Series 2009B Bonds might be considered or might become a “party in interest” within the
meaning of ERISA or a “disqualified person” within the meaning of the Code, with respect to an ERISA
Plan or a plan or arrangement subject to Code Sections 4975 or 503. Prohibited transactions within the
meaning of ERISA and the Code may arise if Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are acquired by such plans or
arrangements with respect to which the City or any Dealer is a party in interest or disqualified person.

In all events, fiduciaries of ERISA Plans and plans or arrangements subject to the above Code
Sections, in consultation with their advisors, should carefully consider the impact of ERISA and the Code
on an investment in the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The sale of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds to a
plan is in no respect a representation by the City or the Underwriter that such an investment meets the
relevant legal requirements with respect to benefit plans generally or any particular plan. Any plan
proposing to invest in the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds should consult with its counsel to confirm that
such investment is permitted under the plan documents and will not result in a non-exempt prohibited
transaction and will satisfy the other requirements of ERISA, the Code and other applicable law.

Exemption Under State Tax Law

In Bond Counsel is further opinion, under State of Colorado existing statutes, the Series 2009A
Bonds and the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds and the income therefrom are exempt from taxation in the
State of Colorado, except inheritance, estate, and transfer taxes.

Changes in Federal and State Tax Law

From time to time, there are legislative proposals in the Congress and in the states that, if enacted,
could alter or amend the federal and state tax matters referred to above or adversely affect the market
value of the Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such proposal might be enacted
or whether if enacted it would apply to bonds issued prior to enactment. In addition, regulatory actions
are from time to time announced or proposed and litigation is threatened or commenced which, if
implemented or concluded in a particular manner, could adversely affect the market value of the Bonds.
It cannot be predicted whether any such regulatory action will be implemented, how any particular
litigation or judicial action will be resolved, or whether the Bonds or the market value thereof would be
impacted thereby. Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding any pending or
proposed legislation, regulatory initiatives or litigation. The opinions expressed by Bond Counsel are
based upon existing legislation and regulations as interpreted by relevant judicial and regulatory
authorities as of the date of issuance and delivery of the Bonds and Bond Counsel has expressed no
opinion as of any date subsequent thereto or with respect to any pending legislation, regulatory initiatives
or litigation.
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MISCELLANEOUS
Ratings

S&P is expected to assign the rating to the Bonds as shown on the cover page hereof, with the
understanding that, upon delivery of the Bonds, the Bond Insurance Policy will be issued by Assured
Guaranty. Such ratings reflect only the view of such rating agencies. Any explanations of the
significance of such rating should be obtained from S&P at 55 Water Street, New York, New York
10041. Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on the information and materials furnished to it and on
investigations, studies and assumptions of its own. There is no assurance such rating will continue for
any given period of time or that such rating will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the
applicable rating agency if in the judgment of such rating agency circumstances so warrant. Any
downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the
Bonds.

S&P has also assigned the underlying rating shown on the cover page, which is reflective of the
capacity of the City to fulfill its payment obligations for the Bonds without giving effect to Bond
Insurance Policy.

Underwriting

The Bonds are being sold by the City to the Underwriter at a discount of $92,352.75 pursuant to a
bond purchase agreement entered into between the Underwriter and the City. Expenses associated with
the issuance of the Bonds are being paid by the City from proceeds of the Bonds. The right of the
Underwriter to receive compensation in connection with the Bonds is contingent upon the actual sale and
delivery of the Bonds. The Underwriter has initially offered the Bonds to the public at the prices or yields
set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement, plus accrued interest from the date of the Bonds.
Such prices or yields may subsequently change without any requirement of prior notice. The Underwriter
reserves the right to join with dealers and other investment banking firms in offering the Bonds to the
public.

Registration of Bonds

Registration or qualification of the offer and sale of the Bonds (as distinguished from registration
of the ownership of the Bonds) is not required under the federal Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or
the Colorado Securities Act, as amended. THE CITY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR
QUALIFICATION OR REGISTRATION OF THE BONDS FOR SALE UNDER THE SECURITIES
LAWS OF ANY JURISDICTION IN WHICH THE BONDS MAY BE SOLD, ASSIGNED, PLEDGED,
HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED.

Undertaking To Provide Ongoing Disclosure

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12 (17 CFR
Part 240, § 240.15¢2-12)-(“Rule 15¢2-127), the City has covenanted, for the benefit of the holders of the
Bonds, to provide certain financial information and other operating data and notices of material events
after the Bonds are issued. The form of the City’s Continuing Disclosure Undertaking for the Bonds is
attached as APPENDIX A to this Official Statement. The City has not failed to comply with any of its
previous undertakings. ‘
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Interest of Certain Persons Named in this Official Statement

The legal fees to be paid to Kutak Rock LLP are contingent upon the sale and delivery of the
Bonds.

Independent Auditors

The basic financial statements of the City for the year ended December 31, 2008, which are
appended hereto, have been audited by independent auditor, Dalby, Wendland & Co., P.C., Certified
Public Accountants and Consultants, Grand Junction, Colorado as stated in their report appearing therein.
Such audit has been included without the review and consent of the auditor.

Additional Information

Copies of constitutional provisions, statutes, resolutions, agreements, contracts, financial
statements, reports, publications and other documents or compilations of data or information summarized
or referred to herein are available as described in “INTRODUCTION.”
Official Statement Certification

The preparation of this Official Statement and its distribution have been authorized by the Board.
This Official Statement is not to be construed as an agreement or contract between the City and any

purchaser, owner or holder of any Bond.

CITY OF FRUITA, COLORADO

By: /s/ H. Kenneth Henry
Mayor
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APPENDIX A

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Undertaking”) is executed and delivered as of
November 12, 2009, by the City of Fruita, Colorado (the “City™).

Section 1. Purpose. This Undertaking is being executed and delivered by the City in connection
with that certain issue of Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A in the aggregate principal
amount of $2,440,000 and Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds (Federally Taxable—Issuer Subsidy—
Build America Bonds), Series 2009B in the aggregate principal amount of $10,125,000 (collectively, the
“Bonds™). The Bonds are issued pursuant to an approving ordinance of the City finally adopted by the
Council of the City prior to the date of issuance of the Bonds (the “Bond Ordinance™). This Undertaking
is intended to facilitate compliance with Section (b)(5) of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule
15¢2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (17 C.F.R. § 240.15¢2-12) (the “Rule™),
and to assist the Underwriter, as a Participating Underwriter under the Rule, to comply with the Rule.

Section 2. Definitions. Capitalized terms in this Section and elsewhere in this Undertaking shall
have the meanings set forth herein. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
set forth in the Bond Ordinance. The following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings for
purposes of this Undertaking:

“Annual Financial Information” means the financial information or operating data with respect to
the City, provided at least annually, of the type included in the following tables in the Final Official
Statement: Tables II, IIL, IV, V, VI, and VII. Any financial statements included in the Annual Financial
Information shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). Such financial statements may, but are not
required to be, Audited Financial Statements.

“Audited Financial Statements” means the City’s annual financial statements, prepared in
accordance with GAAP for governmental units as prescribed by GASB, which financial statements shall
have been audited by such auditor as shall be then required or permitted by the laws of the State of
Colorado.

“EMMA” means the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access System, with a portal at
http://emma.msrb.org.

“Final Official Statement” means the Official Statement with respect to the Bonds dated the date
of adoption of the Bond Ordinance.

“Material Event” means any of the following events, if material, with respect to the Bonds:

(a) principal and interest payment delinquencies;
(b) nonpayment related defaults;
(c) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

(@ unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;



(e) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
® adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax exempt status of the Bonds;
(2) modifications to rights of holders of Bonds;
(h) bond calls (other than mandatory sinking fund redemptions);
(1) defeasances;
] release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; and
(o rating changes.
“Material Event Notice” means written or electronic notice of a Material Event.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The current address of the MSRB is
Suite 600, 1900 Duke Street, Alexandria, Virginia 22314; Facsimile: (703) 797-6700.

Section 3. Information To Be Provided. The City undertakes to provide the following
information as provided herein:

(a) Annual Financial Information, which information may, at the option of the City,
be included in the Audited Financial Statements provided pursuant to clause (b) below or be
provided separately therefrom;

(b) Audited Financial Statements, if any; and
(© Material Event Notices.
Section 4. Procedures for Providing Information.

(a) Annual Financial Information. While any Bonds are Outstanding, the City
shall provide the Annual Financial Information on or before July 31, 2010 and July 31 of each
subsequent year (the “Report Date”) to EMMA. If the City changes its fiscal year, it may change
the Report Date to any date within 210 days of the end of the City’s new fiscal year by written
notice of the change of fiscal year and change in Report Date to EMMA. It shall be sufficient if
the City provides to EMMA any or all of the City’s Annual Financial Information by specific
reference to (i) documents previously provided to EMMA; or (if) documents filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission or, if such a document is a final official statement within
the meaning of the Rule, available from the MSRB.

(b) Audited Financial Statements. If not provided as part of the Annual Financial
Information provided pursuant to “—Amnnual Financial Information” above, the City shall provide
the Audited Financial Statements to EMMA, when and if such Audited Financial Statements are
available while any Bonds are Outstanding.

(c) Material Events. 1f a Material Event occurs while any Bonds are Outstanding,
the City shall, in a timely manner, provide a Material Event Notice to EMMA, which Material
Event Notice shall be captioned “Material Event Notice,” shall prominently state the date, title
and CUSIP numbers of the Bonds and shall describe the Material Event.

A-2



(d) Notices of Failure To Provide Annual Financial Information. The City shall
provide in a timely manner to EMMA, notice of any failure by the City while any Bonds are
Outstanding to provide to EMMA, City’s Annual Financial Information on or before the Report
Date.

(e) Means of Transmitting Information. Unless otherwise required by law and
subject to technical and economic feasibility, the City shall employ such methods of information
transmission as shall be requested or recommended by the designated recipients of the
information to be received pursuant to this Undertaking.

Section 5. Termination. The obligations of the City under this Undertaking shall terminate
immediately once the Bonds no longer are Outstanding. This Undertaking, or any provision hereof, shall
be null and void in the event that the City delivers to EMMA, an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect
that those portions of the Rule which require this Undertaking, or any such provision, are invalid, have
been repealed retroactively or otherwise do not apply to the Bonds; provided that the City shall have
provided notice of such delivery and the cancellation of this Undertaking or any provision hereof to
EMMA.

Section 6. Amendment. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Undertaking, this
Undertaking may be amended by the City, without the consent of the holders of the Bonds, but only upon
the delivery by the City to EMMA, of the proposed amendment and an opinion of Bond Counsel to the
effect that such amendment, and giving effect thereto, will not adversely affect the compliance of this
Undertaking and by the City with the Rule and that such amendment complies with this Section. Any
such amgndment shall satisfy, unless otherwise permitted by the Rule, the following conditions:

(a) The amendment may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances
that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law or change in the identity, nature or
status of the City, or type of business conducted.

(b) This Undertaking, as amended, would have complied with the requirements of
the Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances.

(©) The amendment does not materially impair the interest of holders of the Bonds,
as determined by Bond Counsel, or by approving vote of holders of the Bonds pursuant to the
terms of the Bond Ordinance at the time of the amendment.

The initial Annual Financial Information provided by the City hereto after the amendment shall
explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the effect of the change in the type of
operating data or financial information being provided.

Section 7. No Event of Default. Any failure by the City to perform in accordance with this
Undertaking shall not constitute an Event of Default under the Bond Ordinance, and the rights and
remedies provided by the Bond Ordinance upon the occurrence of an Event of Default shall not apply to
any such failure. If the City fails to comply with this Undertaking, any Owner of a Bond may take such
actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking specific performance by court order, to
cause the City to comply with its obligations hereunder.

Section 8. Governing Law. This Undertaking shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Colorado; provided that to the extent this Undertaking addresses matters of
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federal securities laws, including the Rule, this Undertaking shall be construed in accordance with such
federal securities laws and official interpretations thereof.

Section 9. Beneficiaries. This Undertaking shall inure solely to the benefit of the Underwriter
and the holders from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.
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APPENDIX B

AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE
CITY AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008



DALBY, WENDLAND & CO., P.C. D'&‘C

464 MAIN STREET o P.O. BOX 430 ¢ GRAND JUNCTION, COLORADQ 81502-0430
TELEPHONE 970/243-1921 o FAX 970/243-9214 e www.dalbycpa.com

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Fruita
Fruita, Colorado

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Fruita (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. The summarized comparative
information for the year ended December 31, 2007 was audited by other auditors whose report
dated September 30, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the information.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Fruita, as of December
31, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for

the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Management’s discussion and analysis and on pages 1 through 28 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation

of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The budgetary comparison
information for the General Fund and other major funds on pages 77 and 78 is not a required part
of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements
and supplementary schedules, and the Local Highway Finance Report are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The required
supplementary information, other than management’s discussion and analysis, and the
combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and supplementary schedules, and
the Local Highway Finance Report have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Volloy Wordlard 4 (o, 00,

DALBY, WENDLAND & CO.,P.C.
Grand Junction, Colorado

July 7, 2009
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This discussion and analysis of the City of Fruita’s financial performance provides an overview of the
City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. Please read this in
conjunction with the financial statements which begin on page 31.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

At the end of 2008, the City of Fruita remains in good financial condition and is well positioned to
address any future declines in the economy. The City is in good condition primarily due to recent
growth in population, new commercial development in the City and a strong regional economy as
compared to much of the nation. While local revenues have increased significantly due to this strong
economy, the City of Fruita has focused on tightly managing and controlling on-going operational
expenses and has invested heavily in critical infrastructure and other capital projects. This
conservative approach has created an efficient, sustainable on-going operating budget and has
allowed for the accumulation of significant cash reserves. This model will continue to allow the City
of Fruita to endure dynamic economic conditions.

Significant events occurring in 2008 include:

. Completion of the first two phases of construction and development of the Little Salt Wash
Park,

. Acquisition of 40 acres of vacant land at 16 and L Road for future development as a park
and school site with the City owning 27 acres and School District #51 owning the remaining
13 acres,

. Acquisition of B0 acres of vacant land at 15 Road north of the Colorado River as the site for

the future wastewater treatment plant,

. Approval by voters of a sales and use tax increase, along with issuance of debt, for the
construction of a new community recreation center,

. Completion of sewer and street improvements on East Ottley,

. Completion of sewer improvements on Coulson and Mulberry Streets,

. Completion of the roundabouts by CDOT at SH 340 and the 1-70 interchange,

. Construction of a new hospital in Fruita which is anticipated to be completed in 2009,

. Construction and opening of Walgreens which has added to the sales tax base for the City,
. Continued public and private activity on the development of the Greenway Business Park,

. Continved implementation of the 2008 Community Plan with a significant amount of time
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devoted to updating the Fruita Land Use Code

The City of Fruita’s assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of 2008 by $56.6 million (net assets),
an increase of $11.4 million (25% ) from the close of 2007. This compares fo a similar increase of
$10.0 million (29%) in net assets from 2006 to 2007. Of the $56.6 million of net assets, 24% ($13.7
million) is unrestricted and may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. Unrestricted assets increased 10% ($1.26 million) from the prior year.

At the end of 2008, the unreserved and undesignated fund balance for the General Fund was $7.4
million or 98% of the total 2008 General Fund expenditures. This is an increase of 19% ($1.1
million) from 2007.

The City's cumulative cash and investments for all funds increased by $250,000 (2%) from $15.37
to $15.62 million. Of the total cash and investments of $15.62 million, approximately $1.88 million
(12%) Is restricted primarily for capital improvements for governmental activities, $5.7 million (37%)
has been accumulated in the Sewer Fund to help offset costs that will be incurred with construction
of a new waste water treatment facility including engineering and land acquisition and $8.16 million
(52%) has been accumulated in the General Fund..

The City acquired $10.57 million of capital assets in 2008 which includes equipment, buildings, and
infrastructure assets such as streets, storm water drainage, sidewalks, and sewer lines. Of the $10.57
million increase in capital assets, $2.47 million (24%) consisted of contributions of infrastructure assets
as a result of new development and donated assets. An additional $1.29 million (12%) of the
increase is for construction in progress for the Grand Valley Transit (GVT) transfer station and when
completed, the asset will be transferred to GVT. Capital assets acquired or constructed by the City
accounted for the remaining $6.81 million (64%) of the increase in capital assets.

The City’s long term debt decreased by $701,126 in 2008. Total outstanding debt at the end of
2008 was $142,990.

The City's General Fund revenues increased 12% over the prior year. City sales tax revenues
increased 15% from $1.20 million to $1.38 million. County sales tax revenues increased 2% over the
prior year from $2.20 million to $2.25 million. Use tax revenues decreased 32% from $1.248,706
to $844,216 in 2008. Use tax on motor vehicles was down 3% and use tax on building materials
was down 57% from the prior year. Severance tax and mineral lease revenues received by the City
were up 128% from $650,589 to $1,486,250. Due to the unpredictable nature of this revenue
source, the City uses it to fund capital expenditures versus on-going operational expenses.

Unrestricted assets in the Sewer Fund of $5.75 million reflect a decrease of 13% from the prior year.
This is primarily due to the use of unrestricted assets for final engineering and design of a new waste
water treatment facility and a reduction in revenue from the sale of sewer tap fees for new
construction. Though not legally restricted or designated, the accumulation of unrestricted assets is
necessary for the construction of a new sewer treatment plant which is tentatively scheduled to begin
construction in 2009.



QVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Fruita’s basic
financial statements. The City of Fruita's basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to
the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Fruita's finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

= The statement of net assefs presents information on all of the City of Fruita's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases
or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the City of Fruita is improving or deteriorating.

L The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will

only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods {e.g., uncollected taxes and eamed but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Fruita that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Fruita include general
government, public safety (police), public works, storm water management, parks and recreation, and
marketing and promotion. The business-type activities of the City of Fruita include the provision of

irrigation water, sewer collection and treatment, trash collection and lease of the Devils Canyon
Center.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 31 and 32 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Fruita, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Fruita can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

L Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmenial activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,

unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus
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on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as weil as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances

provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

The City maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and capital projects fund
which are considered to be major funds. In addition, information is presented separately for
the Debt Service Fund (which is not considered a majer fund) in order to provide consistency
from year to year. Data from the other two special revenue governmental funds
{Conservation Trust Fund and Marketing and Promotion Fund) are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Fruita adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance
with the budget. .

The basic govermmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 33 through 35 of
this report.

Proprietary funds. The City of Fruita maintains two different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type aclivities in
the government-wide financial statements. The City of Fruita uses enterprise funds to account
for its Sewer, Irrigation Water, Trash and Devils Canyon Center activities. Internal service
funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
City of Fruita's various functions. The City of Fruita uses an internal service fund to account
for maintenance of its fleet of vehicles. Because this service predominantly benefits
governmental rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for Sewer and Trash operations which are considered to be major funds of the
City of Fruita. irrigation Water and Devils Canyen Center operations are non-major funds but
are set forth in detail to provide consistency in reporting.

4



The basic proprietcury'fund financial statements can be found on pages 36 through 45 of this
report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City
of Fruita's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financlal statements can be found on pages 46 through 47 of this
report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 51 through 73 of this
report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statement and accompanying notes, this
report also presents required and other supplemenfary information including budget
comparison schedules, combining statements and the annual financial report for the use of
revenues from the state highway user’s tax fund.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Assets. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Fruitg, assets exceeded liabilities by $56.6 million at the

close of 2008. Net assets increased 25% from $45.15 milllon at the end of 2007 to $56.6 million
ot the end of 2008.

By far the largest portion (74%) of the City of Fruita’s net assets reflect its investment in capital assets
{e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related outstanding debt used to acquire
those assets. The City of Fruita uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Fruita’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to

liquidate these liabilities, Investments in capital assets increased by 34% from 2007 ($31.01 million)
to 2008 {$41.56 million).

CITY OF FRUITA NET ASSETS
Governmental Activities Business-type Activilies Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

ASSETS
Current and other
assets $12,265820 $11,272,336 $ 6,438,923 $§ 7,044,879 $18,704743 $18,317,215
Capital assets 30,065,698 22,423,490 11,641,703 8,813,979 41,707,401 31,237,469

Total assets 42,331,518 33695826 18,080,626 _15858,858 60,412,144 49,554,684
LIABILITIES
Long-term debt 12,029 656,037 86,088 188,679 98,117 844,716
Other liabilities 3,300,882 3,358,887 408,340 199,999 3,709,222 3,558,886

Total liabilities 3,312,911 4014924 494,428 388,678 3,807,339 4,403,602
NET ASSETS
Invested in copital
assets, net of related
debt 30,042,184 22,389,010 11,522,227 8,625,301 41,564,411 31,014,311
Restricted 1,298,538 1,686,757 - - 1,298,538 1,686,757
Unrestricted 7,677,885 5605,135 6063972 6844879 13,741,857 12,450,014

Total net assets  $39,018,607 $29,680,902 $17,586,199 $15470,180 $56,604,806 $45,151,082




An additional portion of the City
of Fruita's net assets in the amount
of $1.3 million (2% of the total net
assets) represents resources that
are subject to restrictions on how
they may be used. Restricted
assets decreased by 23% from

Net Assests - $56.6 million

Restricted
2%

Unrestricted
24%

2007 ($1.69 million) to 2008
($1.3 million). This decrease is due
to the elimination of the reserve

for a note receivable which was
paid in full in 2008.

Invested in
fixed assets
74%

The remaining 24% ($13.74
million} of net assets is the amount
of unrestricted net assefs which may
be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Unrestricted net assets increased 10% from $12.45
million at the end of 2007 to $13.74 million at the end of 2008. Of this amount, $7.65 million is
available for governmental activities and the remaining $6.06 million is available for business-type
activities. The unrestricted net assets of business-type activities includes $5.75 million in the sewer
fund. It is anticipated that the majority of these funds will be used to offset a portion of the cost of
a new sewer treatment facility which will be needed within the next several years. The sewer
treatment facility is estimated to cost between $25 and $30 million.

Changes in Net Assets. The City’s total revenues of $19.29 million exceeded program expenses

Changes in Net Assets
50,000,000

40,000,000

30,000,000

20,000,000 -

| 10,000,000 -

0_

2007

2008

i R Governmental J Business

of $7.83 million for an increase in net assets of $11.45 million.



Revenues:
Program revenues
Charges for services

Operating grants and
contributions

Capital grants and
contributions
General revenues:

Property taxes
Sales and use taxes
Other taxes
Other

Total revenues

Expenses:

General government
Marking and promotion
Parks and recreation
Public works
Public safety
Stormwater management
Interest on long-term debt
Devils Canyon Center
Irrlgation water
Sewer
Trash

Total expenses
Increase in net assets before
transfers
Transfers
Increase in net assets

Net assets - 1/01/2008
Net assets - 12/31/2008

CITY OF FRUITA'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmental activities Business-type aclivities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

$ 1,082,947 $ 561,239 $ 2,022,372 $ 1,642,047 $ 3,105,319 $ 2,203,286
102,484 193,471 - - 102,484 193,471
5,231,946 5,046,770 1,577,784 2,359,471 6,809,730 7,406,241
1,066,736 732,941 - - 1,066,736 732,941
4,475,370 4,646,896 - - 4,475,370 4,646,896
2,459,624 1,496,918 - - 2,459,624 1,496,918
1,128,282 394,628 142,894 271,113 1,271,176 665,741
15,547,389 13,072,863 3,743,050 4,272,631 19,290,439 17,345,494
1,900,694 2,223,283 - - 1,900,694 2,223,283
102,212 106,444 - - 102,212 106,444
915,094 795,742 - - 915,094 795,742
1,582,689 1,325,366 - - 1,582,689 1,325,366
1,851,213 1,505,183 - - 1,851,213 1,505,183
- - - - - 0
20,182 30,678 - - 20,182 30,678
- - 42,493 37,367 42,493 37,367
- - 89,989 89,685 89,989 89,685
- - 834,644 758,515 834,644 758,515

- - 497,505 447,232 497,505 447,232
6,372,084 5,986,696 1,464,631 1,332,799 7,836,715 7,319,495
9,175,305 7,086,167 2,278,419 2,939,832 11,453,724 10,025,999
162,400 290,200 {162,400} {290,200) - -
9,337,705 7,376,367 2,116,019 2,649,632 11,453,724 10,025,999
29,680,902 22,304,535 15,470,180 12,820,548 45,151,082 35,125,083
$ 39,018,607 $17,586,199 $15,470,180 $56,604,806 $45,151,082

p— .

$29,680,902
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Fruita's net assets by $9.33
million thereby accounting for 82% of the total growth in the net assets of the City of Fruita. The
following graph illustrates the program revenues and expenses for govermmmental activities.

Revenves were $15.7 million in 2008, representing an 18% increase ($2.47 million) over 2007
revenues of $13.36 million.

Governmental Activities - Revenues i
2007 - 2008

2008
W 2007

Invesiment eamings

Severance ond other tax
Sales and use taxes g
Property taxes

Capital gronts |
Guain on sale of assets F————
Operating grants

Charges for services

- 1 2 3 4 5 é
Millions

Capitgl grants and contributions of $5.23 million were the largest source of revenues for
governmental activities and increased by 4% from 2007 revenues of $5 million. Many of these
revenues sources are related to specific projects and are non-recurring revenue sources. Capital
grants and contributions include developer contributions of capital assets of $1.97 million, grants and

contributions from other agencies of $2.88 million and development impact fees used in construction
of capital assets of $369,613.

Sales and use tax revenyes were the second largest source of revenue at $4.47 million. This
represents a decrease of 3.7% from 2007 revenues of $4.65 million. The decrease is a result of
declining use tax revenues for building materials and motor vehicles.

Severance and other taxes of $2.46 million increased by 64% from 2007 revenues of $1.5 million.
Severance and mineral lease taxes, a component of this category increase by 128%. These revenues
are distributed by the State of Colorado based on formulas which take into account the amount of
federally owned land leased for mineral extraction in the region and the number of energy related
employees living In the city limits. Other taxes include franchise fees and cigarette taxes.

Property taxes increased by 45.5%. The assessed valuation of property in the City of Fruita increased
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7.8% from $93.7 million in 2007 to $101 million in 2008. The valuation of new construction and

annexations accounts for 76% of the increase.
Expenses for governmental activities were $6.37 million in 2008, an increase of 6.4% ($385,388)

Governmental Activities

Revenues by Source Charges for servicas
Transfers 7%
¢ Galn on sale of
1%
assets
6%

Severance and other
tax
16%

Sales and use taxes
28%

Investment earnings
2%

Operating grants
1%

Property taxes
7% Capital grants

32%

from 2007 expenses of $5.99 million.
General government expenses represent 30% of the total expenses of governmental activities and

2008 Governmental Activities - Expenses
W 2007 2007 - 2008 comparison

Interest on long term debt
Public safety

Public works TR

Parks and recreation

Marketing and Promotion

General Govemment

: ! Millions

decreased 15% from 2007 expenses. General government activities include administration, general
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government, engineering, and community development related expenses.

Public safety expenses represent 29% of the total governmental activity expenses. Public safety
expenses increased by 23%.

Public works expenses are the third largest area of expense at 25% of the total expense of
governmental activities. Public works expenses increased 19% in 2008.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Fruita's net assets by $2.1
million from $12.82 million to $15.47 million thereby accounting for 18% of the total growth in the
net assets of the City of Fruita. The following graph illustrates the program revenues and expenses
for business-type activities.

Revenues for business-type activities were $3.74 million in 2008. This is a decrease of 12% from

2008 Business-type activities - Revenues and Expenses

Trash

Sewer

Revenue M Expense

- 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000

2007 revenues of $4.27 million and is largely due to a decrease in revenue from sewer tap fees.

Business Type Activities - Revenues

2007
2008 - 2007

W 2008

2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
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Charges for services were the largest

source of revenue for business-type Revenue by Source

activities at $2.0 million representing Business Type Acdtivities

54% of the total revenues. Charges for Copltol

services increased 23% over the prior gronts and

year (from $1.64 million to $2.02 contributions Investment
million). This was a result of both an 42%

sarnings
increase of 5% in the number of users of 4%
sewer and trash services (4,181 in 2007
to 4,400 in 2008) and an increase in
monthly rates. Sewer rates increased by
25%, irrigation system maintenance rates :
increased 24% and trash rates increased Charges for
by 2%. In addition, a variable fuel services
surcharge was added to the trash charge 54%
to offset increased fuel costs.

Capital grants and contributions of $1.57 million were the second largest source of revenue for
business-type activities at 42% of the total revenue. Capital grants and contributions decreased by
33% from the prior year. This decrease is primarily due to a slower rate of new construction and a
54% reduction in revenues from sewer tap fees. Capital grants and contributions include:

. Tap fees of $722,720 ($1,572,215 in 2007),

. Developer contributions of capital assets of $474,888 ($443,676 in 2007), and
. Grants and contributions from other agencies of $380,176 ($274,480 in 2007).
Expemes for total business-type activities were unchanged from the prior year ot $1.62 miliion.

However, operating expenses {excluding transfers) increased by 10% and transfers to other funds
decrecsed by 10%. Increases in operating expenses are a result of the increased number of
customers served and reflect higher costs including personnel services and fuel costs.

Expenses of Business-type Aclivilies
W 2008 2007 - 2008 Comparison

2007 Transfers

Trosh ™ G 'w R R R

Sewer

Irrigation Water

Devils Canyon Center

0 200,000 400,000 600,000 800,000 1,000,000
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Fruita uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Fruita's governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources.

Such information is useful In assessing : Governmental Funds
the City of Fruita's financing Chanaes in Fynd Balance
requirements. In  particular,

unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a | 2008
government's net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

2007

|

1

R Reserved

2006

At the end of the year, the City's
governmental funds (general, special
revenue, capital projects and debt
service) reported a combined ending 2004
fund balance of $9.04 million, an ’ '

increase of 13% {$1.06 miilion) from - 2 iﬂﬂliom 6 8 10
the prior year fund balance of
$7.98 million. Of this $9.04 million
in fund balance, $7.74 million (85%) constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for
spending at the government's discretfon. The remaining 15% of fund balance ($1.3 million) is reserved
to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed or
restricted in use for other purposes.

2005

Unreserved

4

Fund Balance - $9.04 million

Emergency and
Parks and Other reserves
5%

recreation
2%
Street improvements
4%
Marketing
2%

Unreserved
85%
Vehide Replacement
Reserve
2%
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Reserved fund balances of $1.3 million decreased by $25% from the prior year. The key element
of this decrease is the elimination
of the reserve for a note

receivable which was paid off in General Fund Revenues and Expenses
2008.

General Fund. The General Fund
is the primary operating fund of 2008
the City. All activities which are
not required to be accounted for
in separate funds either by state
or local ordinance, or by a desire
to maintain a matching of
revenues and expenses, are 2007
accounted for in this fund.

The unreserved fund balance of
the General Fund was $7.4 0 2 4 6 8 10
million while the total fund Millions

balance was $8.2 million. Total -
fund balance increased 18% Revenues Ml Expenses Clincrease in fund balance
($1.24 million) from the prior
year. The unreserved fund
balance represents 98% of actual expenses for 2008,

Revenues exceeded expenses in the General Fund by $1.24 million. General Fund revenues
increased 12% ($906,853) from $7.86 in 2007 to $8.77 million in 2008. Taxes continue to be the

200 Revenues - illio

Intergovermmental
21%

Charges
4%
Miscellaneous

Interesgﬁems

3%
Tra nsfoers

2%
\_Fines o

1%
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largest sources of revenue in the General Fund and represent 67% of the total revenues in the

General Fund.

2,500,000

General Fun Rreven

2,000,000 {8

1,500,000
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W2008 |

1,000,000 -

500,000 1
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tax
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vehides bldg materials

Tax revenues increased 4% ($231,105) over the prior year. The following graph shows the changes

in tax revenves.

City sales tax revenues increased 15.2% over the prior year. County sales tax revenues increased

2.3%. Property tax revenves
increased 45%. Use tax
revenues on building materials
decreased by 57.3% and motor
vehicle use tax decreased 2.6%.
The increase in sale and
property tax revenues is a result
of the continved growth In
population of the City, The
decrease in use tax revenues
reflects a significant slow down
in the construction of new homes
and commercial properties as
well as reduction in consumer
spending on big ticket items such
as motor vehicles. In the 5 year
period from 2004 through 2008,
the City of Frulta issved 1,383

Building Permits for New Residential Construction

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

500

permits for new residential construction which represents a 32% increase in housing units, or an
average annual growth rate of 6%.
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Intergovernmental revenues represent 21% of General Fund revenue. These revenues increased by
67% ($745,009) in 2008. This increase is primarily due to an increase of 128% {$835,661) in
severance tax and mineral lease revenues received by the City in 2008, These revenues account for
the 80% of the total intergovernmental revenues in the General Fund. Severance tax and mineral
lease revenues are distributed by the State of Colorado based on formulas which take into account
the number of residents employed in the energy field and the amount of public lands in the County
leased for mineral extraction. The legislature has amended the formulas for distribution of these
revenues which may have an adverse impact on the City in future years. Due to the unpredictability
of the mineral lease and severance tax revenues, the City of Fruita has informally designated these
revenues for use on one time expenditures such as capital projects in order to reduce reliance on this
revenue source for operational costs. Intergovernmental revenues also include funds received from
the State Highway Users Tax Fund. These revenues increased by 2% and are distributed by the
State based on the number of miles of streets maintained by the City. Annual reports are filed for
changes in miles of streets maintained by the City as well as financial reports showing road and

bridge expenditures for the year. A copy of the Local Highway Finance Report is included in the
financial statements on pages 86 and 87.

2008 General Fund Expenses riment - $7.5 million ' |
Non Transfers
Deparimental 20% Police

3%

Administration’
7%

General

25%

0,
E :A . f Public Works
ngineering =
4% Culture and |  Community 24%
Recreation L Development
7% 5%
Expenses. General Fund expenses increased 19.5% ($1.23 million) from $6.3 million in 2007 to

$7.53 million in 2008. As the following graph shows, Police and Public Works are the two largest
areas of expense in the General Fund at 25% and 24%, respectively, of the total General Fund
expenses. The third largest area of expense (20%)]) is transfers to other funds.

The following chart shows changes in departmental expenses from 2007 to 2008. Highlights of the
increase in expenses include:

. Transfers to other funds increased 41.7% ($444,884). This was primarily due to an increase
in the transfer to the Capital Projects Fund for various capital projects.
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General Fund Expenses by Department 2007 W 2008
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. Public Works expenses increased 22% ($328,184).
. Public Safety expenses increased 18.5% ($292,478).

The next chart shows the saume expenses noted above but categorized by type of expense.

General Fund Expense Comparison by Category @2007 M2008

Debt

Capital

Supplies
Purchased services
Spe;ial projects

Personnel services
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0 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000
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. Personnel services are the largest expense category at 46% of the total General Fund
expenses. Personnel services increased 15% ($447,519) over the prior year. This increase
reflects the addition of two full time employees (one maintenance worker and one recreation
program coordinator), three part time employees (two maintenance workers and o police
records clerk), as well as pay plan adjustments including an additional mid year adjustment
to police officer salaries. Health insurance costs increased by 20%. To help offset this

increase, employees began contributing 5% of the cost of health insurance for dependents
and family members.

. Capital expenses represent the second largest expense category at 26% of the total
General Fund expenses and increased 34% over 2007 expenses. Capital expenses include

the purchase of capital equipment and transfers to the Capital Projects Fund for capital
projects.

. Purchased services represent the third largest area of expense at 17% of the total General
Fund expenses and reflect an increase of 19% ($171,891) over the prior year. Two of the

most significant increases In this area include increased expenses for road maintenance and
911 dispatch center charges.

Capital Projects Fund. The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for major capital projects of the
City of a governmental nature. The Capital Projects Fund had a fund balance of $593,761 at the
end of 2008. Of this amount, 56% is unrestricted and the remaining 44% represents interest
eamnings on development impact fees and is reserved for street and open space projects.

Revenues of the Capital Projects Funds are tied to specific projects and fluctuate from year to year
based on grant revenues and the nature of capital projects completed. Capital Project Fund revenues
were $6.14 million in 2008. Grants and other intergovemmental revenues represent 45%

Capital Project Revenues
W 2008

B 2007

Sale of assets
Invesiment eamings P

Development Impact Fees Froremesstyme

Donations

Mitlions
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{$2.7 miliion) of the total revenues. . Transfers from other funds were 24.9% ($1.52 million) of the
total revenues. In 2008 another significant revenue source was the proceeds from the sale of
property owned by the City at 14.3% of the total revenues.

Expenses of the Capital Projects Fund were $5.79 million. The following graph illustrates some of
the major projects undertaken in 2008.

Capital Project Expenses - $5.79 million

Misc. Projects
SH 6 Pedestrian Path
Building Improvements

1.3 Road Imp. |
Reservoir #1 Engineering
Sycamore/Ottley Drainage
Community Center Road Imp
Overiay and Sidewalks
Ottley Avenue Road Imp.
16 & L Road Land Acquisition
GVT Transfer Station
Little Salt Wash Pork

Millions

The single largest project of $2.3 million was for the development of the 18 acre Little Salt Wash
Park located off of Pine Street north of Ottley Avenue. This a multi year project. The second largest
project of $1.17 million for the Grand Valley Transit transfer station is a cooperative project for the
construction of a new transfer station located in Grand Junction. The project is funded with grant
funds and the City of Fruita acts as the financial conduit for the payment of invoices and receipt of
grant funds. The third largest project was the purchase of 40 acres located at 16 and L Road for
the future development of parks and open space and schools. This project was funded through a
cooperative effort by the City of Fruita, Mesa County and School District #51. An agreement
between the City and School District specifies that the City owns 27 acres and the School District owns
the remaining 13 acres of the 40 acre parcel.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds of the City include the Devils Canyon Center Fund, Irrigation
Water Fund, Sewer Fund and Trash Fund. Net assets for all proprietary funds at the end of the year
was $17.58 million. This is an increase of $2.1 million from the prior year. Of this amount, $11.5
million is invested in capital assets and not available for spending and $6.0 million is unrestricted.

Sewer Fund. The Sewer Fund accounts for 87% of the total amount invested in capital assets and
95% of the unrestricted net assets of proprietary funds. The following shows the increases in Net
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Sewer Fund - Changes in Net
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Assets of the Sewer Fund. Unrestricted net assets are purposely being accumulated in order to offset
costs of the new wastewater treatment plant which is expected to cost approximately $30 million.

Revenyes. Sewer revenues for
2008 were $3.0 million. The
largest source of revenues in 2008
was from monthly charges for
service which accounted for 43% of
the total revenues of the Sewer
Fund. Revenues from sewer tap
fees was the second largest source
of revenue at 24% of the total
revenue. Tap fee revenues fluctuate
on an annual basis depending on
the amount of new residential and
commercial construction. Other
sources of revenue include
developer constructed sewer system
improvements (16% ), an Energy
Impact Grant for final engineering

Sewer Fund Revenues $3.0 milion
Monthly

charges
43%

Tap Fees
24%
Grants
Developer interest/MI  12%
contribution s«

S

<174

and design of a new wastewater

- /¥

treatment facllity {12%) and miscellanecus revenues including interest on investments (5%).

A comparison of revenues from 2007 to 2008 shows a decrease in revenue of 17% ($521,052). This
decrease is to due to fewer sewer taps for new construction sold in 2008 versus 2007 which reflects
the a slow down in new construction in 2008. The 117% ($849,495) decrease in sewer tap revenues
offset by a 23% ($306,957) increase in revenue from monthly charges. The increase in monthly
charges is due to o 25% rate increase and larger customer base.
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The City conducted a rate study for sewer services to determine the monthly charge that would be
needed to operate and pay debt on the new wastewater treatment facility. The study was updated
in 2008 and indicates that the monthly charge for a single family residence will need to be
approximately $50 per month. In an effort to implement this rate increase in an incremental manner,
the sewer rates are scheduled to increase annually until 2011 when the treatment plant is scheduled
to be in full operation. The monthly charge for sewer increased by 14% ($2) in 2007, 25% ({$4)
in 2008 and 25% ($5) in 2009. Plant Investment fees {tap fees) for a single family residence have
also increased from $4,000 in 2007 to $6,200 in 2008 and $6,400 in 2009.

Expenses. Sewer Fund expenditures (GAAP Basis) of $948,044 refiect an increase of 9% from 2007

expenses of $871,915. This increase was primarily in the cost of sales and services (18%) and
personnel services {13%).

Sewer Fund Expenses - GAAP Basis @ 2007

N 2008
interest Expense
Tronsfers
Depreciation
Cost of sales and services
Personnel Services

- 100,000 200,000 300,000 400,000
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

General Fund revenues exceeded budget
by 14% ($1.09 million} and General Fund | General Fund Revenues and Expenses
expenses were under budget by 19% Budget vs Actual

($1.78 million) resulting in @ positive
varionce of $2.87 million between
budgeted and actual revenues and
expenses.

Expenses

During the year the General Fund budget
was amended from an original budget
appropriation of $9.29 million to $9.31
million. These additional appropriations of
$28,143 were approved by the City
Council by resolution and after public
hearing as required by the City Charter. ; ; t

Intra-departmental budget changes that - 2 4 6 8 10
modify line items within departments Millions

within the same fund are permitted with - —
approval of the City Manager. ! l Original Budget EFinal Budget M Actual

Revenues

Actual expenses were $7.5 million, a positive variance of $1.78 million with the final approved
budget of $9.31 million. Significant reasons for the variances between actual and budgeted
expenses include the following:

General Fund Expenses - Budget to Actual

Transfers out [

Public Safety

Non-departmental

Community Development

General government {# Final Budget

Administration ' ! @ Original Budget
Engineering
Reareation ‘ ‘
Public Works
- 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000
Thousands
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Transfers to the Capital Project Fund were 41% ($1.03 million) less than budget. This is primarily due
to timing of various capital projects. A number of capital projects originally included in the 2008
budget were re-appropriated in the 2009 budget.

Public Safety expenses were 10% ($203,476) lower than budget.

Non-departmenial expenses were 42% lower than budget primarily due to unspent contingency funds
of $88,892 as well as the funds budgeted for vehicle replacements reserves of $53,000. The vehicle
replacement resarve is a budgeted addition to the reserved fund balonce but is not an actual
expense of funds until the reserve is used for the purpose intended.

Recreation expenses were 15% ($93,232) under budget primarily due to a significant portion of the
Parks, Open Space and Trails Master Plan initially budgeted for completion in 2008 being carried
forward to the 2009 Budget for compietion.

Public Works expenses were 5% ($99,240) under budget primarily in the personnel services area
due to capitalization of personnel expenses for traffic control on road improvement projects and
labor on the shop building improvements,

Actual revenues were $8.77 million, a positive variance of $1.09 million with the final approved
budget of $7.68 million. Significant reasons for the variances between actual and budgeted revenues
include the following:

Transfers

Use tax - BM

1 Actual
Final Budget
B Original Budget

Charges for service

Miscellaneocus

Other taxes

Use tax - MV

Property Tax
City sales tax ==

Intergovernmental

County sales tax

Millions
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Intergovernmental revenues for severance and mineral lease taxes were budgeted conservatively at
$600,000. Actual revenues were $1,486,250, an increase of 248% over budget. These revenues
can fluctuate dramatically from one year to the next and are informally designated for funding of
one time capital projects to reduce the City's reliance on this revenue source for operating expenses.

Cily sales tox revenues of $1.38 million were 14% ($174,355) over budget. This was due to a
continued growth in the local economy and development in both the commercial and residential
sectors of Fruita through the first half of 2008. Fruita has experienced robust growth rates in the past
several years due to the attractiveness of the area In climate, geography and proximity to services
as well as a significant amount of energy related economic growth and development.

Other faxes which consist primarily of franchise taxes were $546,493, 28% ($120,993) higher than
budgeted.

Use tax revenues on building materials were under budget by 28% ($110,141) as the pace of new
construction slowed significantly in the last half of 2008 as the local economic conditions began to
feel the effects of the construction and housing market slow down being experienced in the rest of
the nation.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The City of Fruita's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of
December 31, 2008, was $41.7 million. Total additions to fixed assets in 2008 net of accumulated
depreciation of $1.06 million was $10.47 million. This investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, and system, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, and

bridges.

Capital assels of governmen clivities.

Maijor capital asset events during the current fiscal year for governmental activities included the
addition of $7.64 million in assets net of accumulated depreciation.

2008 2007 Change
Lend 5,643,420 4,103,909 1,539,511
Buildings 2,396,667 2,414,275 (17,608)
Machinery and equipment 5,479,932 2,822,135 2,657,797
Hospital equipment 452,846 495,660 {42,814)
Infrastructure 14,799,879 12,587,511 2,212,368
Construction in progress —1292955 _ O __1,292955

$30,065,699 $22,423,49 $7,642,209

Maijor capital additions during 2008 include capital projects of $5.79 million as shown in the chart on
page 19, $591,732 in capital equipment, and $1.96 million in development related construction of
infrastructure assets as outlined on page 27. Depreciation expenses on capital expenses for
governmental activities in 2008 was $710,973.

Capital assels of business-type activities:

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year for business-type activities included the
addition of $2.83 million in assets net of accumuloted depreciation. This includes the addition of
$474,887 in development related construction of system related assets as outlined on page 27.

2008 2007 Change
Lond 989,687 308,256 681,431
Source of Supply 14,712 14,712 0
Buildings 1,051,520 1,091,628 {40,108)
Machinery and equipment 420,686 500,863 (80,177)
Distribution and collection system 7,474,590 6,533,224 941,366
Construction in progress - 1.690508 365296 _ 1325212

$11,641,703 $8,813,979 $2,827,724
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Maior capital additions during 2008 include capital projects of $2.7 million as shown below, $8,603
in capital equipment, and $474,887 in development related construction of infrastructure assets as

outlined on page 27. Depreciation expenses on capital expenses for governmental activities in 2008
was $351,761.

2008 Capital Projects - Business-type activities
$2.7 million

N. Mulberry Sewer Replacement
Coulson Sewer Replacement
Ottley Sewer Improvements

Land for WWTP

Treatment System Engineering

0 500,000 1,000,000 1,500,000

Long term debt. The total debt outstanding for the City of Fruita at the end of 2008 was $142,990.
Of this amount, $95,962 is long term debt and $47,028 is for capital leases on equipment.

The net reduction in the City of Fruita's debt obligations in 2008 was $701,726. This decrease was
due to scheduled payments on notes and leases and early pay off of a note payable to the Colorado
Water Conservation Board. No new debt was issued in 2008. Pursuant to the Fruita City Charter,
there is no limit on the amount of general obligation debt that can be issued except that said issuance
must be approved by the voters. Additional information on the City of Fruita's capital leases can be
found on pages 66 and 67 in the notes to the financial statements and long-term debt obligation on
pages 67 thru 69 in the notes to the financial statements.

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes and loans paycble - 621,557 25,962 113,796 95,962 735,353
Capital leases 23,514 34,480 23,514 74,883 47,028 109,363
Total 23,514 656,037 119,476 188,679 142,990 844,716
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DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL ASSET ADDITIONS - 2008

Governmental Activiti |Business-
type
Activities
x E
= ‘g P - £ Grand
c )
é% g ki 3 2 E < @ Total
is E K] € 2 = i o ;é‘
BD N 2 * = 5 ; ]
SUBDIVISIO 3% 3 3 8 o & 2 a
Family Health West 0 0 0 35,000 0 0| 115000 150,000 o | 150,000
Home Loan 13524 o] o 3sess|. 15700 o] so9se | 153825 o] 153825
[River Glen 36,810 | 0 o| 22080 500 | 29,050 70690 | 159130 | 36,200 | 195,330
Santa Ana 69,675 o) 0 30,371 o| 153382 237980 491417 57,202 | 548,709
Steele 3,480 ol o 0 0 0 12848 | 16328 ] 8930 | 25267
Vinmer's 194458 | 0| o o108| 29000| 234506 | 474502 | 992974 | 372456 |1 365430
Grand Total 317,947 0 0| 181,204 | 45200 | 416,938 | 1,002,385 | 1,963,674 | 474,887 | 2,438,561
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City of Fruita has seen significant growth in recent years. The City offers a small town atmosphere
which attracts a variety of demographic groups looking for easy access to recreational opportunities,

a safe environment to raise a family, availability of medical services, geographical diversity, and
a sense of community brought together through a variety of special events. Fruita is located just
minutes away from Grand Junction, the largest city between Salt Lake City and Denver. While this
proximity provides chaillenges in the sales tax base for Fruita it also provides more services and job
opportunities than would typically be found in a City the size of Fruita.

The City of Fruita continues to be in a strong financial position. City-wide reserves are in excess of
levels required in the City's Budget Policy. As of December 31, 2008 unrestricted assets of
governmental funds were 60% of the 2008 total expenses and unrestricted assets of business-type
activities were at 373% of 2008 expenses including interest and transfers. These reserves are the
result of a fiscally conservative policy in which unpredictable or one time revenues are matched with
expenses of a similar nature such as capital expenses or special projects and predictabie and on-
going revenues are allocated towards ongoing operational expenses. This policy has served the City
well by providing funds to take advantage of opportunities that may arise and also buffering the City
from some of the more severe effects of swings in economic conditions.

The effects of the national economic downturn began to manifest itself more strongly in Fruita during
the first half of 2009. City sales tax revenues are down 8%, county sales tax revenues are down
18%, use tax revenues on building materials are down 77%, and use tax revenues on motor vehicles
are down 46%. Fruita properties on the foreclosure list in June 2008 were 1.3% of the total number
of homes in Fruita. The percentage of utility accounts 90 days past due has remained constant over
the last year at approximately 2% of the total receivables.

The City of Fruita has two significant projects it will be undertaking in 2009 and 2010. The first
project includes the construction of @ community recreation center. The voters approved a 1% increase
in the sales and use tax rate and the issuance of up to $15 million in bonds to fund the construction
of the center. The City anticipates issuing bonds for this project in September of 2009 and will
continue to monitor sales and use tax revenues to evaluate the effects of the decline in these revenues
on the amount of debt that the City can incur for this project and still provide for both debt service
payments and an operational subsidy for the facility. The second project includes the construction of
a new wastewater treatment facility ond collection line. This project is estimated to cost
approximately $30 million and will be paid for through revenues of the Sewer Fund. The City began
increasing sewer tap fees and monthly sewer charges several years ago in order to accumulate funds
to help offset the cost of this project. In 2009 the monthly sewer rate increased from $20 to $25 for
a single family residence. Annual increases in the sewer rates will continue fo be required to make
payments on the debt incurred for this project. The City has obtained approval for a loan through
the Colorado Water and Power Development Authority at 2% apr and it is anticipated that this
project will begin construction in September of 2009.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Fruita's finances.
Quaestions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial

information should be addressed to the Office of the Finance Director, 325 E. Aspen, Ste 155, City
of Fruita, Colorado, 81521.
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City of Fruita, Colorado

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2008
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 7,756,134 $ 5982971 $ 13,739,105
Receivables 1,201,511 353,394 1,554,905
Inventories 11,623 - 11,623
Restricted assets:
Due from other governments 1,414,251 100,333 1,514,584
Restricted cash 1,882,301 2,225 1,884,526
Capital assets {net of accumulated depreciation})
Lond 5,643,420 989,687 6,633,107
Source of supply - 14,712 14,712
Construction in progress 1,292,955 1,690,508 2,983,463
Buildings, net 2,396,667 1,051,520 3,448,187
Systems, net 14,799,879 7,474,590 22,274,469
Machinery and equipment, net 5,932,777 420,686 6,353,463
Total Assets 42,331,518 18,080,626 60,412,144
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current llabllities 327,375 362,392 689,767
Accrued interest payable 303 1739 2,042
Accrued compensation payable 90,981 8,596 99,577
Deferred revenue 2,870,738 - 2,870,738
Liabilities payable from restricted assets - 2,225 2,225
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Bonds and notes - 21,903 21,903
Capital leases 11,485 11,485 22,970
Due in more than one year
Bonds and notes - 74,059 74,059
Capital leases 12,029 12,029 24,058
Total Liabilities 3,312,911 494,428 3,807,339
NET ASSETS
Invested In capital assets, net of related debt 30,042,184 11,522,227 41,564,411
Restricted for:
Culture and recreation 200,656 - 200,656
Marketing and promotion 157,530 - 157,530
Streets 322717 - 322,717
Vehicle replacement 168,000 - 168,000
Other purposes 49,635 - 49,635
Emergency reserves 400,000 - 400,000
Unrestricted 7,677,885 6,063,972 13,741,857
Total Net Assets $ 39,018,607 $ 17,586,199 $ 56,604,806

The notes to the financial stotements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Fruitg, Colorado
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the year ended December 31, 2008

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
General government
Marketing and promotion
Parks and recreation
Public works
Public safety
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Devils Canyon Center
lrrigation water
Sewer
Trash

Total business-type activities

Total government

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total
1,900,694 792,041 6,538 1,187,136 85,021 - 85,021
102,212 - - - (102,212) - (102,212)
915,094 200,259 10,738 1,720,038 1,015,941 - 1,015,941
1,582,689 46,879 79,924 2,324,772 868,886 - 868,886
1,851,213 23,273 5,284 - (1,822,656} - (1,822,656}
20,182 20,495 - - 313 - 313
6,372,084 1,082,947 102,484 5,231,946 45,293 - 45,293
42,493 57,600 - - - 15,107 15,107
89,989 93,614 - - - 3,625 3,625
834,644 1,331,500 - 1,577,784 - 2,074,640 2,074,640
497,505 539,658 - - - 42,153 42,153
1,464,631 2,022,372 - 1,577,784 . 2,135,525 2,135,525
$7,834715 $ 3,105,319 $ 102!484 $ 6,809,730 $ 45,293 $ 2135525 § 2180818
GENERAL REVENUES:
Property taxes 1,066,736 - 1,066,736
Sales and use taxes 4,475,370 - 4,475,370
Severance tax 1,486,250 - 1,486,250
Lodging tax 128,270 - 128,270
Highway users tax 280,647 - 280,647
Franchise fees 348,056 - 348,056
Other shared taxes 216,401 - 216,401
Unrestricted Investment earnings 239,938 141,701 381,639
Gain on sale of capital assets 868,344 1,193 889,537
Transfers 162,400 (162,400) -
Total general revenues and transfers 9,292,412 {19,506) 9,272,906
Change In net assets 9,337,705 2,116,019 11,453,724
Net Assets - beginning 29,680,902 15,470,180 45,151,082
Net Assets - ending $ 39,018,607 3 17,5§6,'| 99 § 56,604,806

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,




City of Fruita, Colorado

BALANCE SHEETY
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2008
Non-Major Funds
Capital Debt Other
General Projects Service Governmental Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 7,488,338 $ - $ - $ 233,219 $ 7,721,557
Accounts receivable 5,338 - - - 5,338
Notes receivable - - - - -
Taxes receivable 1,024,750 - - 7,422 1,032,172
Special assessments receivable - - - - -
Due from other funds 34,582 - - - 34,582
Due from other governments 688,589 889,662 - - 1,578,251
Inventories 11,623 - - - 11,623
Cash - restricted 673,257 1,209,044 - - 1,882,301
Total Assets 9,926,477 2,098,706 - 240,641 12,265,824
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilitles:
Accounts payable 84,921 87,320 - 12,963 185,204
Due to other funds - 34,582 34,582
Deposits payable 135,650 - - - 135,650
Deferred revenue 1,487,695 1,383,043 - - 2,870,738
Total Liabilities 1,708,266 1,504,945 - 12,963 3,226,174
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Marketing - - - 157,530 157,530
Notes receivable - - - - -
Community center 87,710 - - - 87,710
Parks and open space - 42,798 - 70,148 112,946
War memorial maintenance 11,848 - - - 11,848
Streets 102,234 220,483 - - 322,717
Vehicle Replacement 168,000 - - - 168,000
Inventories 11,623 - - - 11,623
Emergency reserve 400,000 - - - 400,000
Unreserved, designated for
subsequent years expenditures 26,164 - - - 26,164
Unreserved, undesignated 7,410,632 330,480 - - 7741,112
Total fund balances 8,218,211 593,761 - 227,678 9,039,650
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 9,926,477 $ 2,098,706 $ - $ 240,641
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in govemmental actlvities are not financial resources and, therefore
are not reported In the funds. 30,065,698
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet maintenance
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included
in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 28,057
Long term liabilities, including bonds payabie, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (114,798)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 39201 8,607

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Fruita, Colorado

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the year ended December 31, 2008
Non-Major Funds
Capital Debt Other
General Projects Service Governmental Total
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 949,023 $ - $zn2 $ - $ 1,066,735
City soles 1,384,355 - - - 1,384,355
County sales 2,246,799 - - - 2,246,799
Use tax 844,214 - . - 844,216
Other 546,493 - - 128,270 674,763
Licenses and permits 34,675 - - - 34,675
Intergovernmental revenues 1,852812 2,782,435 - 106,225 4,741,472
Charges for services 363,616 - - - 363,616
Fines and forfeitures, ossessments 63,476 - - - 63,476
Development impact fees 79,924 369,613 - - 449,537
Investment eamings 189,287 48,170 20,495 2,480 260,432
Rents and royalties 31,085 - - - 31,085
Donations 11,469 530,245 - - 541,714
Miscellaneous 7.740 - - - 7,740
Total revenues 8,604,970 3,730,463 138,207 236,975 12,710,615
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 351,338 - - - 351,338
Administration 497,440 ’ - - - 497,440
Engineering 313,372 - - - 313,372
Community development 406,033 - - - 406,033
Marketing and promotion - - - 102,212 102,212
Public safety 1,748,015 - - - 1,748,015
Public works 1,490,319 - - - 1,490,319
Recreation 526,218 - - 14,000 540,218
Stormwater - - - - -
Non-departmental 204,718 - . - 204,718
Debt service
Principal retirement - - 632,523 - 632,523
Interest and fiscal charges - - 27,963 - 27,963
Capital outlay 483,524 5,793,710 - 108,208 6,385,442
Total expenditures 6,020,977 5,793,710 660,486 224,420 12,699,593
Excess {deficiency} of revenues
over expenditures 2,583,993 {2,063,247) (522,279) 12,555 11,022
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 162,400 1,528,585 44,286 - 1,735,271
Transfers (out} (1,511,870) - - {61,000) {1,572,870)
Sale of capital assets 5,512 882,832 - - 888,344
Total other financing sources {uses) {1,343,958) 2,411,417 44,286 {61,000) 1,050,745
Net change in fund balances 1,240,035 348,170 (477,993} (48,445) 1,061,767
Fund balances - beginning 6,978,176 245,591 477 993 276,123 7977883
Fund balances - ending $ 8,218,211 $ 593,761 $ - $ 227,678 $ 9,039,650

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this stotement.
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City of Fruita, Colorado
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are differenct because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,061,767

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, In the statement of
activities the cost of those assets Is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which copital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period. 5,674,469

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets {construction and
donation of infrastructure by developers) is to Increase net assets. 1,973,673

The issuance of long-term debt (leases) provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the trectment of long-term debt. 632,523

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds. (15,767)

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds Is reported with governmental

actlvities 11,040
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 9,337,705

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Fruita, Colorado
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
12/31/2008 (With comparative totals for 2007)

Business-type Aclivities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Trash
2008 2007 2008 2007
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 5,738,155 $ 6,409,958 $ 13,627 $ 13913
Interest receivable 64 47 - -
Accounts receivable 201,547 155,193 78,901 74,985
Special assessments receivable 5,291 6,032 - -
Notes receivable 9,593 11,419 - -
Due from other governments 100,333 135,561 - -
Total current assets 6,054,983 6,718,210 92,528 88,898
Non-current assets:
Restricted cash:

Customer deposits 2,225 5,400 - -
Special assessments receivable 32,042 40,760 - -
Capital assets

Ltand 707,524 26,093 - -

Source of supply - - - -

Construction in progress 1,690,507 - - -

Buildings, net 52,513 54,489 - -

Systems, net 7,311,794 46,723,804 - -

Equipment, net 419,305 498,881 1,383 1,982

Total copital assests, net 10,181,643 7,303,267 1,383 1,982
Total non-current assets 10,215,910 7,349,427 1,383 1,982
Total assets 16,270,893 14,067,637 93,911 90,880
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Non-Major Funds

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Gavernmential Activities
Devils Canyon Center Irrigation Woter Totals Fieot Maintenance
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 Internal Service Fund
202,978 $§ 147,845 $ 28211 $ 6,371 $ 5982971 $ 34,578
- - 200 291 264 -
4,800 4,800 2,965 2,995 288,213 -
- - 17,991 29,309 23,282 -
- - - - 2,593 -
- - - - 100,333 -
207,778 152,645 49,367 38,966 6,404,656 34,578
- - - - 2,225 -
- - - - 32,042 -
225,514 225,514 56,649 56,649 989,687 -
- - 14,712 14,712 14712 -
- - - - 1,690,507 -
986,044 1,023,089 12,963 14,050 1,051,520 -
- - 162,795 174,716 7,474,589 -
. - - - 420,688 6,008
1,211,558 1,248,603 247,119 260,127 11,641,703 6,008
1,211,558 1,248,603 247,119 260,127 11,675,970 6,008
1,419,336 1,401,248 296,486 299,093 18,080,626 40,586
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City of Fruita, Colorado
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
12/31/2008 (With comparative totals for 2007)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Trash
2008 2007 2008 2007
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts Payable 321,513 142,974 40,879 38,076
Compensated absences 7,665 7,593 - -
Accrued interest payable 1,739 3,599 - -
Notes poyable - current maturity 21,903 17,835 - -
Capital leases payable - current maturity 11,485 51,369 - -
Bond payable - current maturity (net of
restricted cash) - - - -

Total current liabilities 364,305 223,370 40,879 38,076

Current liabilites payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits payable 2,225 5,400 -
Accrued interest payable from restricted cash - -
Bonds payable from restricted cash - -

Total current liabilities payable from

restricted ossets 2,225 5,400 - -
Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable 74,059 95,961 - -
Capital leases payable 12,029 23,514 - -
Bonds payable (net of unomortized discounts) - - - -
Total noncurrent liabilities 86,088 119,475 - -
Total Liabilities 452,618 348,245 40,879 38,076
NET ASSETS

Invested In capital assets, net of related debt 10,062,167 7,114,589 1,383 1,982
Unrestricted 5,756,108 6,604,803 51,649 50,822
Total net assets 15,818,275 13,719,392 53,032 52,804

The notes to the financial statements are an integral port of this statement.
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Non-Major Funds

Business-type Aclivities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental Activities

Devils Canyon Center Irrigation Water Totals Fleet Maintenance
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 Internal Service Fund
- - - 1,454 362,392 6,521
- - 931 903 8,596 3,505
- - - - 1,739 -
- . . - 21,903 -
- . - . 11,485 -
- - 931 2,357 406,115 10,026
- - - - 2,225 -
. - - - 2,225 -
N - - - 74,059 -
. - - - 12,029 -
- - - - 86,088 -
- - 931 2,357 494,428 10,026
1,211,558 1,248,603 247,119 260,127 11,522,227 6,008
207,778 152,645 48,437 36,609 6,063,972 24,552
$1,419,336 $ 1,401,248 $ 295556 $ 296,736 $§ 17,586,199 $ 30,560
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City of Fruita. Colorado
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the year ended December 31, 2008 (With comparative totals for 2007)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Cther revenues
Total opercting revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services
Cost of sales and services
Depreciction and amortization
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Intergovernmental
Investment income
System development charges and contributions
Sales of equipment
Interest expense
Total nonopercting revenues (expenses)

INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND
TRANSFERS

Capital contributions - tap fees
Transfers in
Transfers out

Changes in net assets

Total net assets - beginning
Totol net assets - ending

Business-type Aclivities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Trash
2008 2007 2008 2007

$ 1,326,883 $ 1,016,483 $ 539,658 $ 488,513
4,617 3,443 - .
1,331,500 1,019,926 539,658 488,513
308,547 268,083 - .
224,136 183,129 496,905 446,632
295,363 297,894 4600 600
828,046 749,106 497,505 447,232
503,454 270,820 42,153 41,281
380,176 274,480 - -
136,945 257,682 75 684
474,888 443,676 - -
498 - - -
{6,598) (9,409) - -
986,109 966,429 75 484
1,489,563 1,237,249 42,228 41,965
722,720 1,572,215 - -
{113,400) (113,400) (42,000) (39,800}
2,098,883 2,696,064 228 2,165
13,719,392 11,023,328 52,804 50,639
$15,818,275 $13,719,392 $ 53,032 $ 52,804

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement,
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Non-Major Funds

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental Activities
Devils Canyon Center lrrigation Water Totals Fleet Maintenance

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 Internal Service Fund
$ 57,600 $ 57,600 $ 93,614 $ 76,008 $ 2017755 $ 222725
- - - - 4,617 7,167
57,600 57,600 93,614 76,008 2,022,372 229,892
- - 45,464 54,158 354,011 137,107
5,448 908 26,560 21,849 753,049 80,957
37,045 36,459 17,965 13,678 350,973 788
42,493 37,367 89,989 89,685 1,458,033 218,852
15,107 20,233 3,625 {13,677} 564,339 11,040
- - - - 380,176 -
2,981 9.755 1,700 2,992 141,701 -
- - - 67,600 474,888 -
- - 495 - 1,193 -
- - - - (6,598) -
2,981 9,755 2,195 70,592 991,360 -
18,088 29,988 5,820 56,915 1,555,699 11,040
- - - 1,500 722,720 -
- - - 13,000 - -
~ {145,000} (7,000) (5,000} {162,400} -
18,088 {(115012) {(1,180) 66,415 2,116,019 11,040
1,401,248 1,516,260 296,736 230,321 15,470,180 19,520
$ 1,419,336 $ 1,401,248 $ 295,556 $ 296,736 $ 17,586!199 $ 30,560
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City of Fruita, Colorado

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the year ended December 31,2008 (With comparative totals for 2007)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Operating transfers
Net cash used by non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contributions - grants

Capital contributions - plant investment fees

Gain on sale of equipment

Proceeds from special assessments

Transfers from another fund

Principal paid on capital debt

Interest paid on capital debt

Purchase of capital assets

Net cash provided {used) by capital and related
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
interest received on investments
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 {including
$39,281 in the Irrigation Water Fund and
$35,580 in the Sewer Fund reported in
restricted accounts)

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 (including
$2,225 in the Sewer Fund reported in
restricted accounts)

Business-type Aclivitles - Enterprise Funds
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Sewer Trash
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ 1,281,970 $ 987,009 $ 535742 $ 488,522
{228,660) (176,385) {494,103) (444,613)
{308,474} (265,789) - -
744,836 544,835 41,639 43,909
(113,400) {113,400) (42,000) {39,800)
{113,400} {113,400) (42,000} (39,800}
415,404 200,378 - .
724,546 1,583,106 - -
498 -

9,459 5,457 - .
{69,204) (68,662) - -
(8,458) {11,207) - -
{2,515,787) {739,978) - -
{1,443,342) 969,094 - -
136,928 257,654 75 684
136,928 257,654 75 684
(674,978) 1,658,183 (286) 4,793
6,415,358 4,757,175 13,913 9,120
$ 5740380 § 65415,358 $ 135627 $ 135913



Non-Major Funds

Business-fype Aclivities - Enterprise Funds Governmental Activities
Devils Canyon Center lrrigation Water Totals Fleet Maintenance
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 Internal Service Fund
$ 57600 $§ 57,600 $ 93,644 $ 75803 $ 1,968,956 $ 229,892
(5,448) {908) {28,015) {20,405) {756,226) {76,932)
- - (45,436) {53,875) (353,910} (136,331)
52,152 56,692 20,193 1,523 858,820 16,629
- (145,000} (7,000} {5,000) {162,400} -
- {145,000) (7,000) (5,000) {162,400} -
- - - - 415,404 -
- - - 1,500 724,546 -
- . 495 - 1,193
. - 11,318 38,291 20,777 .
] . ; 13,000 - .
- - - . (69,204) -
- - - - {8,458) -
- - (4,956) (93,149) {2,520,743) (3,647)
- - 6,857 {40,358) {1,436,485) {3,647)
2,981 9,755 1,790 2,701 141,774 -
2,981 9,755 1,790 2,701 141,774 .
55,133 (78,553) 21,840 (41,134) (598,291) 12,982
147,845 226,398 6,371 47,505 6,583,487 21,596
$ 202978 $ 147,845 $ 28,211 $ 6,371 $ 5,985,196 $ 34,578
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City of Fruita, Colorado
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the year ended December 31,2008 (With comparative totals for 2007)

Business-type Aclivities - Enterprise Funds

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)
Adijustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided {used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrecse) in accounts poyable
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
payable
Increase {decrease)} in due to other funds
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities $

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Sewer Trash

2008 2007 2008 2007
503,454 270,820 42,153 41,281
295,363 297,894 600 600
(46,355} {15,450) {3,916) 10
{4,524) 6,744 2,802 2,018
73 2,294 - .
(3,17 5) (17,467) - -
241,382 274015 (514) 2,628
744,836 544,835 $ 41,639 $ 43,909
474,888 443,676 - -

Contributions of capital assets from developers

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Non-Major Funds

Business-type Aclivities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental Activities

Devils Canyon Center lrrigation Water Totals Fieet Maintenance

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 Internal Service Fund
15,107 20,233 3,625 (13,677) 564,339 11,040
37,045 36,459 17,965 13,678 350,973 788
- - 30 {205) (50,241) -
) - (1,455) 1,444 (3,177) 4,025
- - 28 283 101 776
- - - - (3,175) -
37,045 36,459 16,568 15,200 294,481 5,589
$ 52,152 56,692 $ 20,193 1,523 858,820 $ 16,629
. - - - 474,888 -
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City of Fruita, Colorado

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments ot fair valve
Total ossets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for:
Pension benefits
Total net assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Agency Retirement
Fund Trust Fund

171 $ .

- 394,742

171 394,742

171 .

171 -

- 394,742

- $ 394,742




City of Fruita, Colorado
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the year ended December 31, 2008

ADDITIONS:
Employer contributions
Total contributions
Investment Earnings
Net investment gain
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits
Administrotive expenses
Total Deductions

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning
Total net assets - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Refirement

Trust Fund

$ 88,294
88,294

{128,386)
(40,092)

34,473
1,000
35,473

{75,565)

470,307
$ 394,742
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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City of Fruita, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting entity

[

The City of Fruita, Colorado was established in 1884 and operates under a City Council -
Manager Home Rule form of Government with six elected council members, an elected mayor
and an appointed manager. The City's financial statements include the accounts and
operations of all City functions. The City’s major operations include public sofety, street
construction and maintenance, community development, parks, recreation programs,
irrigation, trash collection, sewer service, and general administration. The City of Fruito,
Colorado is the primary government. The City has no component units.

Govemmem-wide and fund financial siatements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to o significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenves. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Transfers for financial services
rendered to proprietary funds by the General Fund are included in the direct expenses of
proprietary funds. Also included is depreciation on capital assets associated with specific
programs. Depreciation on assets which can not be attributed to a specific program is
included in direct expenses of the General Government function. Program revenves include
1) charges to customer or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment including transfers for
financial services and 2} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other

items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and

fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements.
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City of Fruita, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2008

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or
expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of

accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardiess of the measurement
focus applied.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as scon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both meosurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accruai
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgements, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales tax, use tax, franchise fees, grant revenues, and interest associated
with the current fiscal period are alil considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have
been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible
to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial

resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

The capital projects fund is used to account for the financing and construction of significant
capital projects.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

52



City of Fruita, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2008

The sewer fund accounts for all activities associated with providing sewer collection and
treatment to customers within the sewer service area.

The frash fund accounts for all activities associated with providing trash collection services
to residential customers within the City limits.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The internal service fund accounts for fleet maintenance services provided to other
departments or agencies of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

The agency fund is used to account for custodial functions for collecting and forwarding
fees paid on new developments in lieu of dedication of land to the local school district.

The retirement trust fund is used to account for activities of the City of Fruita Employees
Retirement Plan which accumulates resources for retirement benefit payments to qualified
City employees.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of
the Governmental Accounting Stondards Board. Governments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise
funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-
sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rules are payments to the Generali Fund
by various enterprise funds for providing administrative and billing services for such funds.
Elimination of these charges/transfers would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods and services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Intemally dedicated resources are reported as

general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all
taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operoting revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of ail the City's enterprise and internal service funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and
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City of Fruita, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2008

internal service funds include cost of sales and services, personal services, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses. Transfers out are classified separately in the
statements from operating and non-operating expenses. However, transfers could be
classified as operating expenses of the business-type activities as the transfer is to
compensate the General Fund for administrative functions for the proprietary funds. These

administrative functions include utility billing, payroll, accounts payable and other financial
and other management expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy
to use restricted assets first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or i

1. Cash and investments.

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Colorado State Statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the United States
or obligations unconditionally guaranteed by the United States, bonds of the State of
Colorado and its political subdivisions, certain obligations secured by mortgages,
bankers acceptances, commercial paper, state investment pools, repurchase agreements,
money market funds and guaranteed investment contracts.

Assets of the Retirement Trust Fund are investment by the International City Manager's
Association Retirement Corporation.

Investments are presented ot fair volue determined from quoted market prices. The
state investment pools exist under the laws of the State of Colorado and are registered
with the Securities Commissioner of the State of Colorado. The investment pools are
similar to money market funds, with each share valued at $1.

2. Inferfund receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are classified as “due to/from other funds”
(i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the
non-current portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the

govermnmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “intemal balances”
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City of Fruita, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2008

3. Property taxes

4.

5.

6.

Property taxes as set by the City Council are collected by the County Treasurer. The
County Treasurer remits property taxes collected to the City by the 10™ day of the month
following collection. Property taxes receivable represent 2008 taxes collectible in
2009 and are also shown as deferred revenue. Property taxes may be paid in
instaliments with one-haif of the total amount due payable on February 28 and the
second half payable on june 15, or they may be paid in full by April 30.

Special assessments receivable

Special assessments receivable are recorded for the property owners’ share of the cost
of street or utility improvements within special improvement districts. Corresponding
deferred revenue is recorded until the assessments meet the revenue recognition
availability criteria, Special assessments receivable for projects which were initially
financed with existing governmental resources are recorded together with corresponding
deferred revenue in the fund which provided the resources.

Inventories and prepaid items.

The inventory in the General Fund consists of fuel to be consumed by the City's
departments and is valued at cost which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out
(FIFO} method. The costs of inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed
rather than when purchased.

Restricted assets

Certain resources are set aside for specific purposes and classified as restricted because
of donor restrictions on use of the resources or legal restrictions on their use.

7. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bridges, alleys, traffic lights and storm drainage), are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as
equipment purchases with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and on
estimated useful life in excess of three years, and construction projects which have a cost
of more than $10,000 and a useful life of more than five years. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market vailue ot the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
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or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Gains or losses on dispositions of
property and equipment are included in income.

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Distribution and collection system 5 - 50 years
Buildings and improvements 10 - 50 years
Equipment 3 to 25 years
Infrastructure 20 to 40 yeoars

8. Compensatfed absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and
sick leave benefits. An employee may accumulate and carry forward one years
accumulation of vacation leave. Sick leave may be accumulated up to 2080 hours. The
City pays a terminating employee for all accumulated vacation time. The City does not
pay any amounts for accumulated sick leave when employees separate from service with
the City. All vacation pay is accrved when incurred in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the
governmental funds balance sheet only if they have matured, for example, as a result
of employee resignations and retirements.

9. Long-term liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the

straightline method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium
or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
the debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses.

Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.
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10. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balances
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans for future use of financial resources that are subject to change.

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF ERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
govemment-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total
governmental funds and net assefs - governmenial activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long term
liabilitles are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in
the funds.” The details of this $114,798 difference are as follows:

Capital leases payable $ 23514
Accrued interest payable 303
Compensated absences 90,981

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total govemnmental funds to
arrive at net assefs - governmental activities. $ 114,798

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “internal service funds are used by
management to charge the costs of fleet maintenance to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement
of net assets.” The details of this $28,057 difference are as follows:

Net assets of the Internal service funds $ 30,560

Less: Capital assets of the internal service fund (6,008)
Plus: Compensated absences payable 3,505

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds to

arrive at nef assets - governmental aclivifies. g 28,057

8. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
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includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmenial aclivities as reported in the government-wide statement
of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report
capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.”
The details of this $5,674,469 difference are as follows:

Capital outiay reported in capital projects $5,793,710

Capital equipment included in expenses of General Fund functional

activities 483,524
Capital equipment and improvements in expenses of the

Conservation Trust Fund activities 108,208
Depreciation expense, net of intemal service fund (710,973)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - fotal
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental

aclivities g 5!674!469

Another element of that reconciliation states that “The net effect of various miscellaneous
transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins and donations) is to increase net
assets.” The details of this $1,973,673 difference are as follows:

Donations of capital assets increase net assefs in the statement of
activities, but do not appear in the governmental funds because they

are not financial resources. $1,973,673

Another element of that reconciliation states that “issuance of long-term debt {leases)
provides current financial resources to governmentai funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.” The details of this $632,523
difference are as follows:

Principal repayments
Lease payments 10,966
Note payments 621,557

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - fotal
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of

governmental activities $ 632,523
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Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement
of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not

reported as expenditures in governmental funds.” The detdails of this {$15,767) difference
are as follows:

Compensated absences, net of internal service fund $ (14,757)
Loss on disposal of assets {8,792)
Accrued interest 7,782

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - tofal
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assels of

governmental activities é (15,767)

NOTE 3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary information

Annual budgets are adopted on o basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles for all governmental funds, proprietary funds and internal service funds. Fiduciary
funds for the employees retirement plan ond the agency trust fund for school land dedication
fees are not budgeted. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

On or before the last day of August of each year, all departments of the City submit
requests for appropriations to the City Manager so that a budget may be prepared. On
or before the 1¥ day of October, the proposed budget is presented to the City Council for
review. The Council holds public hearings aond a final budget must be prepared and
adopted not later than December 15 in order to meet the statutory deadline for certification
of the mill levy 1o the County.

On or before December 31, the City Council enacts a resolution appropriating the budgets
for the ensuing fiscal year. The City Council may amend the appropriation resolution upon
notice of a public hearing at any time during the year and increase appropriations upon
certification by the City Manager that excess revenues are available. The Council may also
make emergency appropriations by emergency ordinance, ond in the event there are
insufficient revenues for the emergency appropriation, the Council may authorize, by
emergency ordinance, the issuance of short-term notes.

The level of budgetary control {that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed
the appropriated amount) is established at the individual fund level. Even though the budget
enacted by the City Council is at the fund level, the City prepares a line item budget by
department and program for control at the line item level. The City Manager has the
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authority to reallocate the distribution of budgeted amounts at the department level.

Transfers of appropriations between departments require approval of the City Council
through adoption of a resolution amending the budget.

The City Council made several supplemental budgetary appropriations throughout the year

as follows:

Fund Original Amount Amended Amount
Govermmental Activities

General Fund $ 9,291,290 $ 9,319,432
Capital Projects Fund 8,881,070 11,423,838
Conservation Trust Fund 96,500 197,500

Business-Type Actlvities
Proprietary Funds:

Irrigation 87,875 92,875
Sewer 3,275,475 4,301,750
Trash 511,000 542,000

Excess of expenditures over appropriations

For the year ended December 31, 2008, there were no expenditures which exceeded
appropriations.

C. Deficit fund equity

For the year ended December 31, 2008, there were no funds that had a deficit fund equity.

NOTE 4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash and investments

The composition of all cash and investments held by the City at December 31, 2008 and
2007 is as follows:
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2008 2007
Cash on hand 950 $ 1,360
Cash in checking account(s) 517,529 (50,711}
Certificates of deposit 2,731,820 2,571,042
Investment pools 6,371,824 3,625,823
Money Market Funds 406,390 180,199
Federal Agency securities:
Federal National Mortgage Association - 627,622
Federal Home Loan Bank - 298,170
Denver City/County Airport Bonds 492,778 -
Repurchase agreement 5,102,340 8,119,336
15,623,631 15,372,841

The captions on the statement of net assets of the City related to cash and investments are
as follows:

2008 2007
Cash and investments 13,739,105 13,329,226
Restricted cash 1,884,526 2,043,615
15,623,631 15,372,841

Credit risk.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligation.

Custodial credit risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bark failure, the City
will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that
are in possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that,
in the event of the failure of the counter party fo a transaction, a government will not be
able to recover the value of investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. The City’s deposits are either covered by depository insurance or are
collateralized under the Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act and are therefore not
deemed to be exposed to the custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2008, $3,002,163
of the City’s deposits were covered by FDIC insurance and $5,178,190 were collateralized
under the Public Deposit Protection Act. The City's investments are not deemed to be

exposed to custodial credit risk because they are held by the City or the City's custody agent
in the City's name.
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Concentration of credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of o government's
investment in a single issuer. The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any
one issuer. More than five percent of the City's investments are in public entity investment
pools. These investments are 41% of the City’s total investments at December 31, 2008.

Interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates. Colorado statutes do not allow investment maturities to exceed five years
unless longer maturities are specifically authorized by the goveming body.

Deposits.

In the case of depaosits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's
deposits may not be returned to it. The City’s deposits are governed by Colorado Statute.
The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local government
deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by state regulators.
Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized. The eligible
collateral is maintained by another institution or held in trust for all uninsured public deposits
as a group. The market value of the collateral must be ot least equal to 102% of the
aggregate uninsured deposits. All deposits of the City are insured or collateralized with
securities held by or for the entity. The Colorado Divisions of Banking and Financial Services
are required by statute to monitor the naming of eligible depositories and reporting of the
uninsured deposits and assets maintained in the collateral pools.

Investments

Colorado statutes specify investments meeting defined rating and risk criteria in which local
government may invest which include:

Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agency securities
* Local government investment pools

+ Certain international agency securities

* General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities

¢ Guaranteed investment contracts

* Commercial paper

Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities
* Banker's acceptances of certain banks

¢ Certain money market funds

As of December 31, 2008, the City had $6,371,824 in governmental and business type

funds in several local government investment pools established for local governments in
Colorado to pool surplus funds (CSAFE and Colotrust). These pools operate similarly to a
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money market fund and each share is equal in value to $1.00. Investments of these pools
consist of U.S. Treasury and Agency securities, the highest rated commercial paper and
repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury and agency securities. Each pool is
rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. To obtain financial statements for CSAFE you may

visit their website at www.csafe.orq. Colotrust’s financial statements are available on their
website at www.colotrust.com.

In September 2008, the securities and holdings of the Colorado Diversified Trust (CDT)
investment pool were adjusted to market value due to the Lehman Brothers bankruptcy and
the fund’s resulting inability to maintain a net asset value of $0.995. The per share value
in the Colorado Diversifiad Trust investment pool decreased to $0.9819 and the investment
pool was dissolved due to its’ inability to maintain the $1.00 per share valve. All assets of
CDT were transferred to the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLO Trust)
investment pool. Any recovery of the Lehman assets will be allocated to participants of the
pool based on their September 14, 2008 balances. The City of Fruita had $212,663
invested in the pool and incurred a loss, pending any future recovery, of $3,850.

Investments in general obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities at
December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Face Amount Security Maturity
490,000 Denver City/County Alrport Revenue Refunding November 15,
Bonds, A1 Moody's Rating, AA S & P Rating 2009

Deferred revenues

Govemmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Govemmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have
been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various

components of deferred revenue and unearned revenve reported in the governmental funds
were as follows:

Unavailable Unearned

Property taxes assessed for 2008 but not receivabie

until 2009 (general fund) $ 1,024,750 $ -
Impact fees for chipseal which have been received but

not yet earned (general fund) - 445,301
Impact fees for open space, road and drainage

improvements which have been received but not

yet earned (capital projects fund) - 945,763
Grant revenue for infrastructure (capital projects funds) 437,280
Unallocated utility billing receipts {general fund) - 17,644
Total deferred/unearned revenue for governmental funds $ 1,024,750 $ 1,845,988
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C. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows.

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being

deprecioted

Capital assets, being depreciated

Buildings and other structures
Machinery and equipment

Hospital equipment
Infrastruciure

Total capital assets being depreciated 20,857,050

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and other structures
Machinery and equipment

Hospital equipment
infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets,

net

Beginning Ending
Balance Increase Decrease Balance
$ 4,103,909 $1,539,511 § - $ 5,643,420
- 1,292,955 - 1,292,955
4,103,909 2,832,466 - 6,936,375
3,440,472 74,131 - 3,514,603
3,820,607 2,907,931 (72,998) 6,655,540
500,000 - - 500,000
13,095,971 2,547 171 - 15,643,142
5,529,233 (72,998) 26,313,285
(1,026,197) (91,739) - (1,117,936}
(998,472) {242,405} 65,268 {1,175,609)
(4,340) (42,814) - (47,1 54)
{508,460) (334,803) - (843,263)
(2,537,469) (711,761) 65,268  (3,183,962)
18,319,581 4817,472 (7.730) 23,129,323
$22,423,490 $7,649938 § (7,730 é 30!0655698
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increase Decrease Balance
Business-type aclivities:
Capital assets, not bein reciated
Land $ 308,256 $§ 681,431 § - $§ 989,687
Source of supply 14,712 - - 14,712
Construction in progress 365,296 1,325,212 - 1,690,508
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 688,264 2,006,643 - 2,694,907
Copital ing depreciate
Buildings 1,643,978 - - 1,643,978
Distribution and collaction system 10,441,675 1,172,054 - 11,613,729
Machinery and equipment 1,065,059 (13,585) 1,051,474

Total capital assets being depreciated 13,150,712 1,172,054 (13,585) 14,309,181

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings {552,350) (40,108) - {592,458)
Distribution and collection system {3,908,451) (230,688) - (4,139,139)
Machinery and equipment (564,196} (80,177} 13,585 (630,788}
Total accumulated depreciation (5,024,997} (350,97 3) 13,585 (5,362,385)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 8,125,715 821,081 - 8,946,796

Business-type activities capital assets, net $8,813,979 g 2,827,724 $ - g 11,641,703

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities

General government $ 124,737

Park and recreation 70,798

Public works 421,044

Public safety 94,393

Capital assets held by the government’s internal service fund are charged

to various functions based on their usage of assets 789
- Total depreciation expense - governmental activities : $ 711,761
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Business-type activities

Devils Canyon Center $ 37,045
lrrigation Water 17,965
Sewer 295,363
Trash 4600
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 350,973

D. Interfund transfers

Transfers In:
Debt Capital
General Service Projects
Transfers outs Fund Fund Fund Total
General Fund $ - $ 44,285 $ 1,467,585 $1,511,870
Nonmajor governmental funds - - 61,000 61,000
lrrigation Water 7,000 - - 7,000
Sewer 113,400 - - 113,400
Trash 42,000 - - 42,000

Total transfers out  $162,400 $ 44,285 $ 1,528,585 $1,735,270

E. Capital leases

During 2003, the City entered into a lease agreement for a vactor truck financed through
the Municipal Services Group, Inc. for the amount of $230,343 at 3.59%. The final lease
payment was made in February 2008.

During 2006, the City entered into a lease agreement for a dump truck financed through

Bank of the West for the amount of $115,100 at 4.73% with a current balance of $68,962.

The City is obligated under this agreement to make annual payments of $25,197 every June
1 through 2010.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:
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Governmentaol Sewer
Asset: Activities Fund
Machinery and equipment $ 57,675 $ 57,675
Less: Accumulated depreciation (8,659) (8,659)
Total 49,016 49016

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of the minimum lease
payments as of December 31, 2008, were as follows:

Governmental
Year Ending December 31 Activities Sewer Fund
2009 12,598 12,598
2010 12,598 12,598
Total minimum lease payments 25,196 25,196
Less: amount representing interest (1,682) {1,682)
Present volue of minimum lease payments $ 23,514 $ 23,514

e

Interest expense on capital leases for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $1,450 in
the Sewer Fund and $1,632 in the Debt Service Fund.

Long-term debt

1. Notes and loans payable

The Debt Service has historically been used to account for long term debt and lease
payments for governmental funds. The City was obligated under two notes payable to
the Colorado Water Conservancy Board which required 40 annual payments of
$12,233 on May 1, beginning May 1, 1984, and 40 annual payments of $30,709 on
December 1, beginning December 1, 1984. These loans were paid off early in 2008.

During 1995 the City entered into a loan agreement with the Colorado Water Resources
and Power Development Authority in the amount of $155,435. This loan was for the
construction of the Kingsview sewer line extension. The City is obligated under the
agreement to make an initial payment of $8,962 on March 1, 1996, and quarterly
payments of $2,980 each March 1, June 1, September 1 and December 1 beginning
June 1, 1996 and ending March 1, 2015. The loan agreement requires compliance with
specified covenants and obligations. In compliance with the requirements, the City has
maintained a three-month operations and maintencnce reserve, and has complied with
the rate covenant. A surcharge on plont investment fees and monthly sewer charges is
assessed on all properties in the basin served by the extension of the sewer line to cover
the costs of annual debt service. Additional revenues collected above the amount owed
is applied on an annual basis to the balance of the note. The outstanding balance on this
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2.

note at December 31, 2008 was $39,478 and is included in the Sewer Fund.

During 2002 the City entered into a loan agreement with the Colorado Department of
Local Affairs for a loan from the Local Government Severance Tax Fund in the amount
of $123,000 for construction of the Greenway Business Park sewer line and sewer
facility improvements. The City is obligated under the agreement to make an initial
payment of $15,929 on September 1, 2003, and annual payments of $15,929 each
September thereafter ending September 1, 2012, Revenues of the sewer fund are used
to make these payments and additional charges will be assessed to properties
benefitting from the extension of the sewer line at the time they connect to the City sewer
system. The outstanding amount on this note at December 31, 2008 was $56,484 and
is included in the Sewer Fund..

Notes and loans currently outstanding are as follows:

Purpose Interest Rates Amount
Business type activities
sewer line extensions 4,50 - 5.00% 95,962
$ 95,962

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes and loans are as follows:

Year ended Business-type Activities
December 31 Principal Interest
2009 21,903 4,390
2010 19,062 3,461
2011 19,993 2,530
2012 20,969 1,554
2013 6,064 530
2014 6,341 253
2015 1,630 18
$ 95,962 $ 12736
e —

Interest expense on notes and loans payable for the year ended December 31, 2008
was $5,148 in the Sewer Fund and $26,331 in the Debt Service Fund.

Changes in long-term liabilities
Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2008, was as follows:
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Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additions  Reductions Balance One Year
vernmental viti
Notes payable $ 621,557 § - $(621,557) ¢ - 3 .
Capital leases 34,480 - (10,966) 23,514 11,485
Compensated absences 75,448 15,533 - 90,981 -

Governmental activity

long-term liabilittes $§ 731,485 $15,533 25632é23§ $114495 §$ 11,485

Business-type activities:

Notes and loans 113,796 - {17,834) 95,962 21,903
Capital leases 74,883 - {51,369) 23,514 11,485
Compensated absences 8,496 100 ' - 8,596 -

Business-type

Long-term liabilities $ 197,175 $ 100 $ (69,203) $128072 §$ 33388

The internal service fund predominately serves the governmental funds. Accordingly,
long-term liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for governmental
activities. At year end, $3,505 of intemal service funds compensated absences are
induded in the above amounts. Also, for the governmental activities, compensated
absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.

G. Reserved funds

Fund balance is reserved to indicate that assets of corresponding amounts are not available

for appropriation. The following balances have been reserved on the balance sheet for
govemmental funds.

1.

2.

General Fund. The reserved fund balance of $781,415 consists of $11,623 reserved
for gas inventory, $11,848 for maintenance on the Viemam War Memorial, $87,710
reserved for a community center, $102,234 is reserved for chip seal on streets,
$168,000 is reserved for vehicle/equipment replacement and $400,000 is reserved
for emergencies as required by Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution.
Unreserved designations for subsequent years expenditures of $26,164 include amounts
designated by the City Council for swimming pool improvements of $5,320 and the
employee supplemental health insurance program of $20,844.

Capital Projects Fund. The reserved fund balance of $263,281 represents interest

eamings on development impact fees of which $42,798 is reserved for parks and open
space and $220,483 is reserved for street and drainage improvements.
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3. Other Governmental Funds. The reserved fund balance of $227,678 represents the
fund balance of the Marketing and Promotion Fund of $157,530 which is restricted for
use in marketing and promotion of the City and $70,148 which represents the fund
balance of the Conservation Trust Fund which is restricted in used for parks, open space
and recreational facilities pursuant to C.R.S. 29-21-101.

NOTE 5. BUDGET TO ACTUAL PRESENTATION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The City’s enterprise funds' budgets are prepared on a basis other than accrual. Modifications to
the budgetary basis consist of adding capital expenditures and debt service principal payments
and deducting depreciation and amortization expense from GAAP basis expenses. A comparison
of budget and actual expenditures with adjustments to convert the expenses at the end of the year
on the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis to the budgetary basis follows.

Devils
Canyon Irrigation
Sewer Trash Center Water
Expenses reported in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP):
Operating expenses, deductions $ 828046 $ 497505 § 42,493 89,989
Transfers 113,400 42,000 - 7,000
Loss on disposal of equipment - - - -
Interest 6,598 - - -
Total expenses GAAP basis 948,044 539,505 42,493 96,989
Modifications to GAAP expenses:
Add capital expenditures 2,698,851 - - 4,956
Add debt service payments 69,204 - - -
Deduct depreciation and amortization (295,363) {600} {37,045) (17.965)
Expenditures on budgetary basis 3,420,736 538,905 5,448 83,980
Orlginal Budget 3,275,475 511,000 17,750 87,875
Final Amended Budget 4,301,750 542,000 17,750 92,875
Variance - positive (negative) $ 881,014 $ 3,095 $ 12,302 $ 8,895

NOTE 6. RETIREMENT PLANS

Effective January 1, 1974, the City of Fruita adopted a defined contribution retirement plan (“City
of Fruita Employee’s Retirement Plan) for full fime employees with six months continuous service,
excluding elected officials. The statement of fiduciary net assets and statement of changes in
fiduciary net assets for the Retirement Trust Fund are the financial statements of the retirement plan.
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The City contributes 3 /2 % of the amount of the employee's compensation as defined by the plan.

Vesting of the City’s contribution is 50% ct the completion of three years of service, 75% at the
completion of four years of service and 100% at the completion of five years. ICMA Retirement
Corporation is the trustee for the plan and the City Manager is the plan administrator. The total
contribution to allocate for this plan year of 2008 is $87,294. No employee contributions were
made to this plon in 2008. The City's total payroll for all employees in 2008 was $2,825,264 of
which $2,494,103 was subject to this plan. The plan uses the accrual method of accounting similar
to the method used for the proprietary funds. Fair value of the plan investments at December 31,

2008 was $394,742. The investments consist of various funds offered by ICMA Retirement
Corporation.

The Colorado legisiature established a statewide benefit plan for all policemen hired after April
7, 1978 and for those hired on or before April 7, 1978 who choose to participate. All of the City's
police employees were covered by the plan administered by the State until January 1, 1989, when
the funds were transferred to another administrator. These funds are now administered in a private
money purchase defined contribution pension plon (Fruita Police Department Money Purchase
Pension Plan). Employees are eligible to participate from the date of employment. The employee
makes o contribution of 10% and the City makes o contribution of 8% of the employee's base
salary. The employees cannot make any additional contributions. The City's contribution for each
employee (and interest allocated to the employee’s account) becomes 20% vested at the
completion of two years of service, 40% at the completion of three years of service, 60% at the
completion of four years of service and 100% vested at the completion of five years of service.
Any non-vested City contributions forfeited by an employee who leaves the City's employment are
held in on invesiment account for the City. The City's policy is to use these forfeited contributions
to reduce future contributions to the plan.

The total payroll covered by the plan in 2008 was $785,115. Total contributions for the year
ended December 31, 2008, were $78,511 by the employees and $62,809 by the City. These
expenses are recorded in the General Fund.

NOTE 7. PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL

The City is a member of the Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (CIRSA). CIRSA
provides workers compensation, property and casualty insurance coverages to the City. The
coverages are provided through joint self-insurance, insurance ond reinsurance, or any combination
thereof. CIRSA’s rate setting policies are established by the Board of Directors, in consultation with
independent actuaries. The City Is subject to a supplemental assessment in the event of deficiencies,
and may receive credit on future contributions in the event of a surplus.

CIRSA has entered Into various excess insurance contracts to limit large losses and minimize
exposure on large risks. Excess of loss contracts in effect during 2008 limit CIRSA's per occurrence

exposure to $500,000 for property coverages, $1,000,000 for liability coverages and $150,000
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for crime coverages, and provide coverage to specified upper limits.

NOTE 8. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A.

Risk Management

The City is self-insured for property and liability insurance. As discussed in Note Vi, the
City is a member of the Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (CIRSA). CIRSA
has a legal obligation for claims against its members to the extent that funds are available
in its annually established loss fund and amounts are available from insurance providers
under excess specific and aggregate insurance contracts. Losses incurred in excess of loss
funds and amounts recoverable from excess insurance are direct liabililes of the
participating members. CIRSA has indicated that the amount of any excess losses would be
billed to members in proportion to their contributions in the year such excess occurs, although
it is not legally required to do so.

The ultimate liability to the City resulting from claims not covered by CIRSA is not presently
determinable. Management and the City's ctomey are of the opinion that the final
outcome of such claims, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the City’s financial
statements.

Pending lifigation

The City is contingently liable in respect to lawsuits and other claims incidental to the
ordinary course of its operations. The City Attorney estimates that the potential claims
against the City not covered by insurance resulting from such litigation would not materially
affect the financial statements of the City.

C._ Contract Commiimenis

The City has several signed commitments for engineering and construction projects in
progress, At year end, the major commitment was for engineering services for the
wastewater treatment plant with an outstanding contract balance in the amount of
$648,403. Expenses for this commitment are included in the 2009 Budget.

NOTE 9. OPERATING LEASE

The City entered into a ten-year operating lease with a nonprofit corporation for the use of a
building, grounds and equipment to be used as a quality science/learning center. According to the
lease terms, the City will receive escalating amounts of base rents from $4,200 per month to
$4,800 per month. In addition to the base rent, if 10% of admissions receipts exceeds the hase
rent, then the larger amount will be received. The percentage rent shall be increased to 12.5%
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following any year in which the total attendance exceeds 100,000 visitors and 15% following any
year in which total attendance exceeds 150,000 visitors. The lease is renewable by lessee for four
additional five-year periods at base rents as stipulated in the lease agreement. At the fifth
anniversary date of the initial term, the date of expiration of the initial term or the date of
expiration of each renewal term the lessee has an option to purchase. The commencement date of
the lease was July 1, 2000. The total base rent for the initial ten-year period is $540,000.

NOTE 10. TAX, SPENDING AND DEBT LIMITATIONS

Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, commonly
known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (TABOR) which has several limitations including revenuve

raising, spending abilities, debt limitations and other specific requirements of state and local
govermnments.

Future spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior year's “Fiscal Year
Spending” adjusted for allowable increases based upon information and local growth. An election
was held in April 2006 ond voters approved a measure to allow the City to keep and retain all
revenues, including grants, in excess of the fiscal year spending limit for the purpose of

implementing the City's capital improvement plan, including the maintenance of capital
improvements until December 31, 2012.

TABOR requires the establishment of an emergency reserve of ot least 3% of fiscal year spending
(excluding bonded debt service). These emergency reserves are restricted in use. This reserve is
noted as part of the reserved net assets of the City.

The amendment is complex and subject to judicial interpretation. The City believes it is in

compliance with the requirements of the amendment. However, the City has made certain
interpretations for the amendment's language in order to determine its compliance.
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APPENDIX C

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The following information is provided to give prospective investors general information
concerning selected economic and demographic conditions existing in the area within which the City of
Fruita (the “City”) is located in Mesa County (the “County”), Colorado. The statistics presented below
have been obtained from the referenced sources and represent the most current information available from
such sources; however, certain of the information is released only after a significant amount of time has
passed since the most recent date of the reported data and therefore, such information may not be
indicative of economic and demographic conditions as they currently exist or conditions which may be
experienced in the near future. Further, the reported data has not been adjusted to reflect economic
trends, notably inflation. Finally, other economic and demographic information not presented herein may
be available concerning the area in which the City is located and prospective investors may want to
review such information prior to making their investment decision. The following information is not to be
relied upon as a representation or guarantee of the City of its officers, employees, or advisors.

Population

The following table sets forth population statistics for the City, the County, and the State.

Population
City of Fruita Mesa County State of Colorado
Percent Percent Percent
Year  Population Change Population Change Population Change
1960 1,830 - 50,715 - 1,753,947 -
1970 1,822 (0.4)% 54,374 7.2% 2,207,259 25.9%
1980 2,810 54.2 81,530 49.9 2,889,964 30.9
1950 4,045 44.0 93,145 143 3,294,394 14.0
2000 6,478 60.2 116,255 24.8 4,301,261 30.6
2008 11,535 78.1 144,440 24.2 5,011,390 16.5
TEstimate.

Sources: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, and Colorado Division of Local Government

The 2000 median age of the County was 38.1 years, as compared with 34.7 years in 1990. The
State’s median age for the same period increased from 32.5 in 1990 to 34.3 years in 2000, with the
median age of the United States being 32.9 and 35.3 years in 1990 and 2000, respectively.

Income

The following tables set forth historical median household effective buying income and the
percentage of households by classification of effective buying income (“EBI”) levels for the County, the
State and the United States.



Median Household Effective Buying Income

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Mesa County $33,198  $34,156  $34,980  $35,567  $36,354
Colorado 43,544 44,489 45,594 45,477 44,711
United States 38,201 39,324 40,529 41,255 41,792

Source: Total Dimensions International, Inc.-Demographics USA 2004-2008
Percent of Households by Effective Buying Income Groups—2008

Less Than $15,000-  $25,000-  $50,000- $75,000- $100,000- $150,000
$15,000 $24,999 $49,999  $74,999  $99,999 $149,999 or more

Mesa County 14.3% 15.7% 39.2% 17.2% 8.1% 3.4% 2.1%
Colorado 10.7 11.6 345 20.7 12.3 6.7 3.5
United States 13.6 13.1 333 19.8 11.0 6.0 3.2

Source: Total Dimensions International, Inc.-Demographics USA 2008

Per Capita Personal Income

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Mesa County $25,811 $27,131 $28,872 $30,576 $32,422
Colorado 34,041 35,594 37,611 39,612 41,192
United States 31,530 33,157 34,690 36,794 38,615

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Economic Accounts

School Enrollment

The following table presents a five-year history of school enrollment for the Mesa County Valley
School District 51, the school district serving the City.

School Enrollment

School Year Number of Pupils Percent Change
2004/2005 20,130 --
2005/2006 20,578 2.2%
2006/2007 21,173 2.9
2007/2008 21,308 0.6
2008/2009 22,159 - 4.0
2009/2010 22,165 0.0

"Preliminary as of September 30, 2009; subject to change prior to submission of
the October headcount to the Colorado Department of Education.

Source: Colorado Department of Education and the Mesa County Valley School
District 51
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Housing Stock

units in the City in 2007. There was a 23.7% and 75.1% increase, respectively.

According to the 2000 Census, there were 48,427 housing units in the County and 2,610 housing
units in the City in 2000, compared to a total of 59,924 housing units in the County and 4,569 housing

Building Activity

Year

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009

The following table sets forth historical building permit activity for the City and the County. The
County includes incorporated municipalities and unincorporated areas.

History of Estimated Building Activity
in the City of Fruita

Residential Permits

Year
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009

432
377
228
242
104
47

Commercial Permits

Valuation all
Construction

10
20
8
20
13
2

$31,934,310
50,573,100
50,056,919
48,534,370
56,553,890
11,463,034

*Mesa County Assessor’s Office valuation of additions to taxable real property due to construction.
! Building permits issued through September 30, 2009.
Source: City of Fruita and Mesa County Building Department

History of Estimated Building Permits Issued

for New Structures in Mesa County

Single Family Multi-Family Commercial/Industrial
Permits Valuation Permits Valuation Permits Valuation
1,381 $199,436,592 36 $11,723,738 70 $ 30,560,842
1,525 258,047,120 13 3,827,361 80 66,756,203
1,427 267,061,232 27 16,032,577 125 102,725,899
1,308 264,642,448 19 3,724,322 104 83,457,728
223 44,150,306 2 725279 26 6,933,774
309 58,728,943 -- - 50 29,984,594

I Building Permits issues through September 30, 2009 and includes incorporated municipalities and unincorporated areas.
Source: Mesa County Building Department
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Foreclosure Activity
The following table sets forth historical foreclosure activity in the County.

History of Foreclosures in Mesa County

Percent
Year Foreclosures Filed Change
2004 392 -
2005 384 (2.0)%
2006 352 (8.3)
2007 393 11.7
2008 469 19.3
2009 ' 915 -

! Foreclosures filed through October 14, 2009. The large
increase in foreclosures is due in primarily to softening in
the housing market in the Grand Junction area in response
to the diminished oil and gas development in the region.
Source: Mesa County Public Trustee’s Office

Retail Sales

The retail trade sector employs a large portion of the county’s work force and is important to the
area’s economy. The following table sets forth recent retail sales figures for the City, the County and the
State as reported by the Colorado Department of Revenue.

Retail Sales '

City of Percent City as Percent State of
Year Fruita Change Mesa County of County Colorado
2004 $ 99,637,716 - $3,215,831,708 3.1% $114,280,780,304
2005 119,495,118 19.9%  3,777,368,959 3.1 122,907,090,008
2006 136,585,123 14.3 4,448,537,027 3.1 133,531,307,352
2007 184,166,163 34.8 5,083,618,277 3.6 148,673,215,731
2008 226,083,022 22.8 5,418,766,800 4.2 152,747,684,188
2009 * 40,435,822 - 1,005,263,644 4.0 31,421,789,409

"'Retail sales differ significantly from taxable sales due to the exemption of various classes of tangible personal property
and sales transactions from taxation.

? Retail sales through March 2009.

Sources: State of Colorado, Department of Revenue, Sales Tax Statistics

C-4



Employment

The following tables set forth the most recent employment statistics by industry for the County
and historical labor force estimates for the Grand Junction Metropolitan Statistical Area (“MSA”) and the
State.

Total Business Establishments and Employment-Mesa County

First Quarter 2008 First Quarter 2009 Annual Change

Average Average Average
Industry ' Units Employment Units Employment Units Employment

Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting 39 317 47 363 8 46
Mining 168 3,552 215 4,158 47 606
Utilities 14 224 13 234 1) 10
Construction 854 5,545 822 5,314 (32) 231
Manufacturing 201 3,168 199 2,784 2) (384)
Wholesale trade 290 2,392 305 2,549 15 157
Retail trade 636 8,510 630 8,118 (6) (392)
Transportation and warehousing 221 2,223 233 2,384 12 161
Information 66 987 61 913 5 (74)
Finance and insurance 277 2,193 268 2,152 9 41
Real estate and rental and leasing 340 1,219 318 1,158 22) (61)
Professional and technical services 598 2,317 643 2,426 45 109
Management of companies and enterprises 21 83 23 190 2 107
Administrative and waste services 283 3,153 291 2,877 &) (276)
Educational services 32 235 35 264 3 29
Health care and social assistance 388 8,441 414 8,570 26 129
Arts, entertainment, and recreation 70 1,119 64 1,106 (6) (13)
Accommodation and food services 280 6,244 290 6,151 10 (93)
Other services, except public administration 342 1,722 344 1,829 2 107
Non-classifiable 6 7 4 2 2) 5)
Government 111 8,762 110 9.116 b 354

Total 5,237 62.413 5329 62.658 2 245

"Information provided herein reflects those employers who are subject to state unemployment insurance law.
Source: Colorado Department of Labor and Employment, Labor Market Information, Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages
(“QCEW”) Colorado

Labor Force Estimates

Grand Junction MSA Colorado

Year Labor Force  Percent Unemployed Laber Force Percent Unemployed
2004 69,472 5.5% 2,536,946 5.6%

2005 71,417 5.0 2,585,986 5.1

2006 74,978 4.0 2,651,378 43

2007 78,896 3.2 2,705,557 3.8

2008 82,111 3.9 2,730,447 4.9

2009 85,224 8.0 2,714,661 7.6

"'Labor force estimates averaged through July 31, 2009.
Source: State of Colorado, Division of Employment and Training, Labor Market Information, Colorado Labor Force Review
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The following table sets forth selected major employers in the City and County. No independent
investigation has been made of and no representation is made herein as to the stability or financial
condition of the listed entities, or the likelihood that they will maintain their status as major employers in
the area.

Selected Major Employers in the Area '

Estimated
Firm Product or Service Employees
St. Mary’s Hospital Health Care Services 2,2352
State Government Government Services 1,259 2
Mesa County School District Public Education 398
Family Health West Elder Care 386
City Market Grocery 123
Fruita (City of) Government Services 101
Craftmasters Custom Building Systems, LLC. Manufactured Home Production 80
Fruita Coop Farm and Ranch Cooperative 75
Cudd Pumping Services Oil Field Services and Equipment 60
Industrial Insulation Group, LLC Insulation Products 60

' As of June 2009.
2 Employee count includes the entire County.
Source: City of Fruita
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APPENDIX D

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

The information in this section concerning The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) New York,
New York and DTC’s book-entry-only system has been obtained from DTC, and the City and the
Underwriter take no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered
securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered certificate will be issued for
the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of each maturity of the Bonds and will be deposited
with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized
under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York
Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of
the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions
of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over
3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money
market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants™) deposit with
DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other
securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of
securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,
banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company
for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which
are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the
DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,
banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has Standard &
Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and
www.dtc.org.

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants,
which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual
purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect
Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their
purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of
the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the
Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on
behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership
interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration



in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.
DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity
of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the
Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants remain responsible for keeping accounts of their
holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain
steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such
as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example,
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their
benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial
Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices
be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices will be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in
such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date. The
Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose
accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede &
Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice
is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail
information from the City or Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings
shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing
instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in
bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of
DTC, Paying Agent, or City, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from
time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of
City or Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of
DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct
and Indirect Participants.

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Bonds purchased or tendered, through its
Participant, to Tender or Remarketing Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Bonds by causing the
Direct Participant to transfer the Participant’s interest in the Bonds, on DTC’s records, to Tender or
Remarketing Agent. The requirement for physical delivery of Bonds in connection with an optional
tender or a mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Bonds are
transferred by Direct Participants on DTC’s records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered
Bonds to Tender or Remarketing Agent’s DTC account.



DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time
by giving reasonable notice to City or Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a
successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC

(or a successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to
DTC.



APPENDIX E
FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION

City of Fruita Assured Guaranty Corp.
Fruita, Colorado New York, New York

George K. Baum & Company
Denver, Colorado

$2,440,000 $10,125,000
City of Fruita, Colorado City of Fruita, Colorado
Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds
Series 2009A (Federally Taxable—Issuer Subsidy—Build America Bonds)
Series 2009B

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have been engaged by the City of Fruita, Colorado (the “City”), as bond counsel in
connection with the issuance of its Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 20094, in the aggregate
principal amount of $2,440,000 (the “Series 2009A Bonds™) and its Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds
(Federally Taxable—Issuer Subsidy—Build America Bonds), Series 2009B, in the aggregate principal
amount of $10,125,000 (the “Taxable Series 2009B Bonds™ and together with the Series 2009A Bonds,
the “Bonds”).

The Bonds mature on the dates, bear interest at the rates, and are transferable and payable in the
manner and subject to the conditions and limitations provided in the ordinances authorizing the issuance
of the Bonds (collectively, the “Bond Ordinance”) adopted by the governing body of the City (capitalized
terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings assigned them in the
Bond Ordinance).

We have examined the Constitution and laws of the State of Colorado, the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the regulations, rulings and judicial decisions relevant to the
opinion set forth in paragraph 3 below; the provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the
regulations, rulings and judicial decisions relevant to the opinion set forth in paragraph 5 below; and such
certified proceedings, certificates, documents, opinions and other papers as we deem necessary to render
this opinion. As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon the representations of
the City contained in the Bond Ordinance and in the certified proceedings and other certifications of
public officials furnished to us without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion, under existing law and as of the date hereof,
that:

I. The Bonds in the principal amount stated above are valid and binding revenue obligations
of the City, legally enforceable in accordance with their terms, and the Bond Ordinance and the ordinance
authorizing the imposition of the City’s Sales and Use Tax (which ordinance is identified in the Bond
Ordinance) have been duly authorized, are in full force and effect, and are valid and enforceable in
accordance with their respective terms.

2. The City irrevocably pledges for payment of the Bonds, and grants a first lien (but not
necessarily an exclusive first lien) for such purpose on the Pledged Revenues.



3. Under the statutes, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions existing on the date hereof,
interest on the Series 2009A Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and
is not a specific item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. Also, because
the City has properly designated the Series 2009A Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the
meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Tax Code, any bank, thrift institution or other financial institution
owning the Series 2009A Bonds may be able to avoid the loss of 80% of any otherwise available interest
deduction attributable to its tax-exempt holdings. The opinions set forth in the preceding sentences
assume compliance by the City with certain requirements of the Tax Code that must be met subsequent to
the issuance of the Series 2009A Bonds. Failure to comply with such requirements could cause such
interest to be includible in gross income for federal income tax purposes or could otherwise adversely
affect such opinions, retroactive to the date of issuance of the Series 2009A Bonds. The City has
covenanted in the Bond Ordinance and in the Tax Compliance Certificate executed and delivered in
connection with the issuance of the Series 2009A Bonds to comply with such requirements. We express
no opinion regarding other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.

4. Interest on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds is includable in gross income for federal
income tax purposes, although there is no legal precedent regarding characterization for federal income
tax purposes of instruments with the same terms as the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds, we are of the
opinion that the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds will be characterized as indebtedness for federal income tax
purposes. We express no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the
Taxable Series 2009B Bonds.

5. Under State of Colorado existing statutes, the Series 2009A Bonds and the Taxable Series
2009B Bonds and the income therefrom are exempt from taxation in the State of Colorado, except
inheritance, estate, and transfer taxes.

6. The Bonds are exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds and the Bond
Ordinance may be limited by bankruptey, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws
affecting creditors’ rights generally and by equitable principles, whether considered at law or in equity.

This opinion is given as of the date hereof and we assume no obligation to update, revise or
supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our attention or
any changes in law that may hereafter occur.

Any federal tax advice contained in this opinion and in the Official Statement was written to
support the marketing of the Bonds and is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by a
taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding any penalties that may be imposed under the Code. All taxpayers
should seek advice based on such taxpayer’s particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

The City is our sole client in this transaction and we have not been engaged by, nor have we
undertaken to advise any other party or to opine as to matters not specifically covered herein. This
opinion letter is solely for the benefit of the addressees hereof and-may not be circulated, quoted or relied
upon by any party other than the addressees without our prior written consent, except that a copy may be
included in the closing transcripts for the Bonds. The inclusion of George K. Baum (the “Underwriter”)
and Assured Guaranty Corp. (the “Bond Insurer”) as an addressee to this opinion does not create or imply
an attorney-client relationship between Kutak Rock LLP and the Underwriter or the Bond Insurer in
connection with the Bonds.

Respectfully submitted,
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APPENDIX F

SPECIMEN FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY

[Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank]



ASSURED
GUARANTY

EHDURING FINANCIAL STRENGTH™

Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy

Issuer: Policy No.: e \\
\& N
Obligations: Premium: - -~ \\ \\

™
e f\\\ ™ \\ E
E Da?e} \\\ \\ \

d ~ : “*

Py N hS

Assured Guaranty Corp., a Matyland corporation {Ass%red\ Guamn@;tg%&gﬁegaﬁd’ ofthe pay\ nt of the Premium

and o the terms and subject 1o te conditions of this Policy {whijch inclydés ead) ndotsj;neﬁ heretg%ew;ﬁncondiﬁona%y and

irrevocably agrees to pay 1o the trustee {the “Trustee™} or the pa y%’ng agen tﬁ”a:Paying fent’} fordhe Obligations {as set forth in the

documentation providing for the issuance of and securing $e-Ottigatops) for the benéfit of xﬁﬁ‘k@kﬁis}mat portion of the Insured
v ,

Payments which shali become Due fo Payment butshalife unBaid B ot Nonpayment. .
¥ ¥ d Apayqen S

., 3 ,

Assured Guaranty will make such lnsurqui%hehis 15\@{}?}%%&; Ma\;\k;‘g Ag 6 the later o oceur of i the date
applicable principal or interest becomes Due for Rayment, "ot fithe Bysigss Day gxﬁ,f lowing the day on which Assured
Guaranty shalf have Received a completed Nmi&;&c\:f Nanga§sqe§\ lf*a‘ltNglice [ i\\’c\ngﬁyméﬂl by Assured Guaranty is incomplete o
does not in any instance conform o the 1&;:‘55 and congﬁions o&@ié{ot?ﬁy:{i\sha\m@aﬂeémed not Received. and Asswed Guaranty
shall promptly give nctice to the Trustee pr the Paying Aﬁ nt. Upgn‘ggecérm Q&)i;];th Hotice, the Trustee or the Paying Agent may
submit an amended Notice of Nonpaymen), Thqjﬁﬁsﬁee or thie Paying Ageniwi isburse the lasuwred Payments 1o the Holders only
upon receint by the Trustee or the Paying Agenl i form teaso‘nq\bfy tisfactoty to it of {i} evidence of the Holder's right 1o receive
such payments, and {il} evidengé. énctua‘ng\'viihém limisgon-uny.apps i instruments of assignment. that all of the Holder's
rights 1o payment of such prigdipal or inerest Dye iék!’aym nt shall theregnon vest i Assured Guaranty. Upon and to the extent of

such disbursement. Assured Guaragly shaibbetome the Holder ‘of e Obligations, any appurtenant coupen thereto and cight to
receipt of payment of B:maipgifgreéigﬁ?nerész qureoz\f,‘aﬁd sha}% be fully subrogated o all of the Holder's right, titie and interest
thereunder, inclidingVithout Brmitagon the dghtlo receiye paymenss @ respect of the Obligations. Payment by Assured Guaranty o
the Trustee or xhef’ayéng Agent ?t;g\ﬁxg beael of thejkjplﬁae;s»shaﬁ discharge the chligation of Assured Guaranty undes this Policy to
the extent of such pqimeq{.\ ' \‘& N \ N
TN N N 7
/This Polioy is 1on-Bdncetatiie by Nssured Guatanty for any reasen. The Premium on this Policy is not refundable for any
reason. [This E,c[icz,dues ot msure’%gainsx ss of afly prepayment premium or other acceleration payment which at any time may
become Hue ig :éﬁg_egwf agy O’éiigaﬁon, ottieg-fhan at the sole oplion of Assured Guaranty, not against any risk other than
Nonpayméqil. - I N

RN %,

., N R

Exceptin he-extgnt expiassly modified by any endorsement hereto. the following terms shall have the meanings specified
for all purposes of thig olicy. “Avol Payment’ means any amount previcasly distibuted to a Holder in respect of any Insured
Payment by or on pehat.ef the| Issuer, which amount has been recovered from such Helder pursuant w the United Suates
Bankruptoy Code in ‘agcordancg/‘with a final, nonappealable order of a court having competent jurisdiction that such payment
constiutes an avoidablé-preferénee with respect v such Holder. “Business Day’ means any day other than {i} a Sawrday or
Sunday. {ii} any day on which the cffices of the Trustee, the Paying Agent or Assured Guaranty are closed, or (i} any day on which
banking institutions are authorized or required by law, executive order of governmental decree o be closed in the City of New Yok
or in the State of Maryland. “Due for Paymant’ means {i} when referring © the principal of an Obligation, the stated maturity date
thereot, or the date on which such Obligation shall have been duly calfed for mandatory sinking fund redemption, and does not refer
1o any eatdlier date on which payment is due by reason of a call for redemption {other than by mandatory sinking fund redemption),
acceleration or other advancement of maturity (unless Assured Guaranty in its sole discretion elects to make any principal payment,
in whole or in part. on such earfier date} and {ii) when referring 1o interest on an Obligation, the swted date for payment of such
interest. “Holder” means, in respect of any Otfigation, the perscen of entity who, at the time of Nonpayment, is entifed under the
terms of such Obligation o payment of principal or interest thereunder, except that Helder shall not include the Issuer or any person
or entity whose direct or indirect obligation constitutes the undetlying security for the Obligations. “Insured Payments” means that
porion of the puncipal of and interest on e Obligaticas that shak become Due for Payment but shall be unpaid by reason of
Nonpayment lnsured Payments shall not include any additional amounts owing by the Issuer solely as a result of the fature by the
Trustee or te Paying Agent 1 pay such amount when due and payable. including without Emitaton any such additonal amounis as
may be atiributable 1o penalties or to interest accruing at a default rate, © amounts payable in respect of indemnification, or o any
other addiional amounts payable by the Trustee or the Paying Agent by reason of such failure. “Nonpayment’ means, in respect of
an Obligation, the failure of the Issuer 1o have provided sufficient funds w the Trustee or the Paying Agent for payment in full of all
principal and interest Due for Payment on such Obligaton. It is further undersicod that the term “"Nonpayment” in respect of an
Obfgation includes any Avoided Payment “Receipt” or “Received” means actual receipt or notice of or, # notice s given by
evemight or other delivery service, or by certfied or regisiered United States mad. by a delivery receipt signed by a person
authorized 1o accept delivery on behalf of the person to whom the notice was given. Notices o Assured Guaranty may be mailed by
registered mail or personally delivered or elecopied 1o it at 1225 Avenue of the Americas. New York, New Yark 10018, Telephone
Numbes: {212} 974-0100. Facsimie Number: (212} §81-3268, Attention: Risk Management Department - Public Finance
Surveillance, with a copy to the General Counsel, or 1o such other address as shall be specified by Assured Guaranty 1o the Truslee
or the Paying Agent in writng. A Notice of Nonpayment will be deemed to be Received by Assured Guaranty on a given Business
Day if it is Received prior 1o 12:00 noon {New York City time} on such Basiness Day: ctherwise it will be deemed Received on the
next Business Day. “Term” means the pericd from and including the Effective Date untt the earlier of {i} the maturity date for the
Obkgatons, of {ii} the date on which the Issuer has made af payments required 1o be made on te Obligations.
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Atany time during the Term of this Policy, Assured Guaranty may appoint a fiscaf agent {the "Fiscal Agent'} for purposes
of this Palicy by written notice 1o the Trustee or the Paying Agent specifying the name and notice address of such Fiscal Agent.
From and ster the date of Receipt of such notice by the Trustee or the Paying Agent. copies of all notices and documents required
1o be delivered to Assured Guaraniy pursuant io this Policy shall be defivered simultanecusly io the Fiscal Agent and to Assured
Guaranty. All payments tequired to be made by Assured Guaranty under this Policy may be made dhecty A§5g{ed Guaranty or
by the Fiscal Agent on behalf of Assured Guaranty. The Fiscal Agent is the agent of Assured Gua s’?ﬂy\uniy.\qnd e Fiscal Agent
shall in no event be lable to the Trustee or the Paying Agent for any acts of the Fiscal Agent o a \jaikﬂé‘cf\ﬁn‘s?ee Guaranty to
deposit, or cause to be deposited. sufficientfunds 1o make payments due under this Policy. f\\ ., Y ‘a\

= N, s,
To the fulfest extent permitted by applicable law. Assured Guaranty hereby walves, in e%ch ‘ca\se ‘&,\tttle benefitof the
Holders oaly, aff rights and defenses ofany kind {including, without fimitation, the defensé of fraudin zh?,@dﬁqemén g in fact orany
other circumstance that would have the effect of discharging a surety. guarantor or an‘y\gxhgr petspn i tav, ox\klxeq?rhy}‘\?tat may
availabie to Assured Guaranly o deay o avoid payment of its obligations uzQ(fer this Pglicy 1 accor nce\svixﬁxg\he\éx ess
provisions herec!. Nothing in this paragraph vill be ceastrued ) 1o waive, imit or athersisedmpal, and AsSured Guaranty.expressly
reserves. Assured Guaranty's rights and remedies, including, without limitagen iis dght' asserbany daim o xf‘an?w\e coveries
{based on contractual rights, securites law viclations, fraud or other causes of Qbﬁg:’f} a ‘}ls‘ﬁani& 315 V,e’r; enﬁt}h_in”éach case,
whether directly or acquired as a subtogee. assignee or otherwise, sub qbe{u Y mak‘%g a‘n?(s,ga‘)‘ifg‘e Y the Tr‘usgae’ or the Paying
Agent, in accordance with the express provisions hereof, andfer {iijio ré‘qu&,ire\ Z}m\en &y Assured-Guazanty ofdny amounts that
have been previously paid or that are not otherwise due in acccxdance‘vgjth exgreié‘%cﬁsic}g‘u{ ﬁﬁs}ﬁ?b{'{ciyf
— =, %, *,

This Policy {which includes each endorsement heré;:) s?séqﬁ%\hib}{tife ndeftaking \?}f:?%ss;?ed Cuaranty with respect
10 the subject matter heredf, and may not be modified, altefed o affectgd By, any ‘ethénagreement & inévument, including, without
limitaticn, any modification thereto or amendment thereofy THIS”P@ie!CY ISNO OV, ?EQ%MHE PROPERTYICASUALTY
INSURANCE SECURITY FUND SPECIFIED IN ARTICLE 76, OF THE NEW YORKKIN RANCEY4AW. This Policy will be govemed
by, and shak be construed in accordance with, iherfé".vs of}he “‘Qfaié‘vf New Y'{(zzk. S \\\P v

:&e}iﬁg/&d

d S
IN WHTNESS WHEREOF, Assured G:uarang’ﬁ’as Cc# u§e§ this, Poficy e with its corporate seal. to be signed by
its duly authotized officer. and to become eﬁecuvg\ an sp\ifrgki;\bpom(\ssz}redﬁuarahiy by virtue of such signatuee.
Ve \\ S A - f

< SON < g
NN n\\ .~ ASSURED GUARANTY CORP.
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&
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‘. i *, e
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% f’“‘v\vf‘) ~ e \\\ / By: :
VN w finsert Authorized Signatery Name)
5 SN N finsert Authorized Signatery Titte}
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< ] Signature atiested 1 by:

Counsel
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